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KIRAÇA    HOLDING

     ıraça Holding was founded by İnan Kıraç and Klod Nahum in 
1998, as Kıraça Group of Companies.

Kıraça Holding, which operates in the international business 
arena, aims to bring in the idle facilities resulting from 
excess capacity within the automotive sector back to the 
Turkish economy, to organize the dispersed structure of the 
independent aftermarket sector through a new marketing and 
distribution model.

The most important management principle of the Group, 
respect for people and professionalism, is beeing applied 
in management positions with its young team. Today, 
Kıraça Holding operates in the automotive, marine, design-
engineering and energy sectors.

The activities of the Suna-İnan Kıraç Foundation in education, 
culture, arts and healthcare shed a different light to the 
achievements of the Holding in industry and trade. Within 
the Foundation are also the Pera Museum and the Istanbul 
Research Institute.

K
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Minister of Science, Industry and Technology of the Republic 
of Turkey, and then we started our promotion activities at full 
speed. The vehicles, offering safety, quality and comfort, have 
become known and appreciated by customers. Even though 
Hyundai H350 is a model newly offered for sale in Europe and 
in the other markets, we sold 5,382 vehicles in the country and 
abroad in 2015.

These achievements of Karsan are all appreciated by the 
industry, as well. Karsan received an award in the category of 
“Leaders of Transformation” in the “Adding Value to Economy 
2015” ceremony, which was held for the 42nd time under 
the leadership of Bursa Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
(BTSO).

Today, Karsan is one of the oldest companies of the Turkish 
automotive industry, which is recognized by the global giants 
with its 50 years of experience and high production quality. 
Our organization believes that Turkey must keep up with 
international developments at all times, or even lead the 
changes. We are, as Turkey’s brand, always working towards the 
better thanks to our innovative products launched in the Turkish 
market, the concept we have developed and our technological 
and innovative approach, as well as our experience spanning 
half a century, and we will continue to do so.

I would like to present my thanks to our shareholders, 
customers, business partners, employees and all our 
stakeholders, who have never left us alone in this challenging 
but exciting and enjoyable journey.

Yours sincerely,,

İnan KIRAÇ
Chairman of the Board
Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş.

MESSAGE FROM    THE CHAIRMAN
     ear Esteemed Shareholders,

The automotive industry, which is the leading industry in 
Turkey, has completed 2015 with a record-high growth due to 
a significant increase in both production and exports. Karsan 
contributed to this growth with its exports that have reached 
USD 74.7 million. 2015 was a very successful year for Karsan in 
many aspects. Our net sales revenue has increased by 186% 
compared to the last year as a result of our sales activities, 
reaching TL 1.026 billion, and we have achieved an operating 
profit of TL 43.5 million. This was the highest sales revenue we 
have reached so far. As a result of our “Urban Transformation in 
Transport” approach, we are gaining significant achievements 
with our Karsan public transport family including the 6-meter 
JEST and 8-meter ATAK and STAR introduced to the market in 
2013 and 2014. Nearly 4,000 JEST vehicles we have sold so far 
across the country are being used in 50 provinces. Reaching 
a market share of 32% in its segment in 2015, ATAK continues 
its sales success. In addition to our vision, the features of our 
vehicles allow Karsan to compete in the global marketplace. 
Today, Karsan vehicles are preferred in significant markets such 
as Germany, Austria, Romania, Bulgaria, Azerbaijan, Georgia, 
Hungary, Macedonia, Dubai and Greece. The fairs we attend 
abroad also make a positive contribution to our organization 
in terms of the recognition and reputation of Karsan brand. 
For example, we exhibited our Karsan-brand products at 
Busworld Europe Kortrijk, the most prestigious and largest bus 
fair of the world, on October 16 - 21. This was the second time 
we attended the event with our electric minibus JEST.

Many municipalities prefer our 12-meter and 18-meter 
buses produced in Karsan plants, of which more than 50% 
materials are locally manufactured. We delivered two 
18-meter articulated buses to Şanlıurfa in March 2015. We  
signed an agreement with Kocaeli Metropolitan Municipality at 
the end of April 2015 for the solo type bus running on CNG, 
and we  delivered 240 buses within the year together with the 
increasing workload. We won the tender announced by Konya 
Metropolitan Municipality for 120 solo-type and 21 articulated 
buses running on natural gas, and we delivered these buses 
within the same year. At Karsan, we continue to closely follow-
up with the tenders held both in the country and abroad.

One of the most important developments of 2015 for us was 
SOP (Start of Production) of Hyundai H350 vehicles in April, in 
line with the agreement we signed with our business partner 
Hyundai Motor Company (HMC). We held a grand opening 
ceremony on May 14th with the participation of Mr. Fikri Işık, 

D
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İnan Kıraç
Chairman

İnan Kıraç
Chairman

İnan Kıraç began his career as a sales officer 
in 1961 at Ormak A.Ş., a division of Koç Group. In 
1966, he was promoted as the general manager 
of Otoyol, the manufacturing company of Fiat 
trucks and midibuses. He later became the 
general manager of Tofaş Oto Ticaret, the sales 
and distribution company of Fiat cars produced 
in Turkey. Kıraç was then promoted as the vice 
president and later on president of the Koç 
Holding Automotive Group. He served as the 
CEO of Koç Holding until his retirement in 1998. 
İnan Kıraç was privy to every development in 
the Turkish automotive industry and left his 
signature on many great automotive factories.

BOARD OF    DIRECTORS
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Antonio Bene
Board Member
Antonio Bene
Board Member

After mechanical engineering studies, Bene 
started to work in Alfa Romeo S.p.A in 1972. He 
served as director of FIAT Auto S.p.A Mirafiori 
plant, platform and industrial director. Later, 
he served as Ferrari S.p.A industrial general 
manager and as TOFAS Türk Otomobil Fabrikası 
A.Ş. CEO between 2002-2004, and until 2005 
he served as senior vice president and global 
industrial director.

Klod Nahum
Vice Chairman

Klod Nahum
Vice Chairman

Jan Nahum
Executive Director

Jan Nahum
Executive Director

Klod Nahum joined the Koç Group after he 
graduated from the London University of 
Kings College with a masters in automotive 
engineering. He began his career as a technical 
maintenance officer in 1969 at Tofaş Oto A.Ş., 
a division of Koç Group. In 1980, he moved 
to Switzerland as the president of the Kofisa 
Trading Company, where he began forming Koç 
Group’s other foreign trading companies. He was 
appointed as vice president of the International 
Trade Group in 1991 and was promoted to 
president in 1997. During the period of Nahum’s 
service to the International Trade Group the gross 
turnover went from $10 million to $1.6 billion. He 
is currently the managing director and founding 
partner of the Kıraça Group.

Jan Nahum graduated from the Royal Collage of 
Art with a degree in Automotive Designing after 
his engineering education in Robert College. In 
1973, he joined the Koç Group as project engineer. 
Until 2002, he took part in various positions in 
automotive companies of the Group. He served 
as the general manager of Otokar between 
1984-1994 and then of Tofaş between 1994-1997. 
Between 2002-2004, he served as the head of 
International Business Development at FIAT S.p.A. 
In between 2005-2007 he served as the general 
manager of Petrol Ofisi. He is now the founding 
partner of Hexagon Danışmanlık A.Ş.

Giancarlo Boschetti
Board Member

Giancarlo Boschetti
Board Member

After graduating from mechanical engineering 
and economy, Giancarlo Boschetti, started to 
work in FIAT Group in 1964 where he occupied 
different positions for nearly 40 years. He served 
as global CEO of Iveco S.p.A from 1991 to 2001, 
as global CEO of FIAT Auto between 2002-2003. 
Giancarlo Boschetti serves as board member to 
many international companies.

Karsan Annual Report 2015
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Oğuz Nuri Babüroğlu
Board Member

Mehmet Altan Sungar
Independent Board Member

Oğuz Nuri Babüroğlu
Board Member

Mehmet Altan Sungar
Independent Board Member

Nadir Özşahin
Independent Board Member

Nadir Özşahin
Independent Board Member

In 1963, Mehmet Altan Sungar started to work 
as an intern at Royal Lastikler Tevzi A.Ş, a Koç 
Holding company, while he was still a student 
in Academy of Economics and Commercial 
Sciences. He took different positions in the same 
company, and took part in the establishment 
of the dealer network while he was serving as 
a Regional Director in various regions across 
Turkey. Taking part in the foundation of Otoyol 
Pazarlama in 1975, Sungar worked in several 
positions such as a Marketing Manager, Assistant 
General Manager and Deputy General Manager in 
the same company. He also worked in Istanbul 
Oto A.Ş. between 1985 and 2001. During the same 
period, Sungar worked as a member of the 
automotive professional community of Istanbul 
Chamber of Commerce. Having served as a 
General Manager and Board Member in Karsat 
A.Ş. between 2001 and 2004, Sungar worked as 
a shareholder and counsel in TURAVEL (Tourism, 
Education and Consultancy) between 2004 and 
2012.

Assoc. Prof. Oğuz Nuri Babüroğlu graduated 
from Sussex University in 1977. He received his 
first graduate degree from Lancester University, 
and obtained his PhD degree in Social Systems 
Science at Pennsylvania University, The Wharton 
School. Having worked as a Faculty Member 
in West Chester University (USA), Clarkson 
University (USA), INSEAD (France), Work Research 
Institute (Norway), Bilkent University (Turkey) and 
Norwegian University of Science and Technology 
EDWOR’s Program, Babüroğlu has been working 
in Sabancı University as a faculty member 
since 1998. Babüroğlu, who founded Arama 
Participatory Management Consulting in 1995, is 
also the Founding Director of Akıl Limanı Mindport 
Education Services. Assoc. Prof. Babüroğlu has 
been working as an Independent Board Member 
in ETİ Gıda Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. and Teknosa 
İç ve Dış Ticaret A.Ş. since 2006 and April 2012, 
respectively. Assoc. Prof. Babüroğlu, who has 
publications in scientific journals and books, 
is also the co-author of the book “Educational 
Futures”.

İpek Kıraç
Board Member

İpek Kıraç
Board Member

İpek Kıraç graduated from Koç High School in 
2002, and received her undergraduate degree 
from Brown University’s Biology Department 
in 2007. She continues her graduate studies at 
Brown University’s Public Health department. 
As a founding board of directors member of the 
Suna and İnan Kıraç Foundation, İpek Kıraç is 
also a member of the Management Committee 
of Koç High School, member of the board of 
directors at Temel Ticaret ve Yatırım A.Ş., member 
of the board of directors at TEGEV, member of the 
board of directors at Amerikan Hastanesi Sağlık 
Hizmetleri Ticaret A.Ş. and member of the board 
of directors at Zer Merkezi Hizmetler A.Ş. As of 
March 2012 İpek Kıraç was appointed as a CEO 
for Sirena Marine.

Nadir Özşahin graduated from Istanbul University 
Faculty of Economics in 1965. Özşahin began his 
career as an auditor at the Ministry of Finance 
in 1965. In 1974, Özşahin started working in the 
private sector, and served as a coordinator, 
vice president and president of Audit and 
Finance Group at Koç Holding A.Ş. Following his 
retirement in 2003, Özşahin worked as a certified 
public accountant between 2004-2005, and 
a board member of Döktaş Döküm Sanayi A.Ş. 
between 2005-2008. Özşahin was a member of 
the Foundation Board of Trustees and Graduates 
in Faculty of Istanbul University Faculty of 
Economics between 2000 and February, 2013. 
Nadir Özşahin worked as a board member in 
Ram Dış Ticaret A.Ş. between 2008 and February, 
2012.

Karsan Annual Report 2015
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Hyundai Motor Company

Established in 1967, Hyundai Motor Company is 
committed to becoming a lifetime partner in 
automobiles and beyond. The company leads the 
Hyundai Motor Group, an innovative business structure 
capable of circulating resources from molten iron to 
finished cars. Hyundai Motor has eight manufacturing 
bases and seven design & technical centers worldwide 
and in 2015 sold 4.96 million vehicles globally. With 
more than 110,000 employees worldwide, Hyundai Motor 
continues to enhance its product line-up with localized 
models and strives to strengthen its leadership in 
clean technology, starting with the world’s first mass-
produced hydrogen-powered vehicle, ix35 Fuel Cell 
and IONIQ, the world’s first model with three electrified 
powertrains in a single body type.

IIA

Industria Italiana Autobus (IIA), a major Italian bus 
manufacturer, designs, manufactures and sells a broad 
range of vehicles, from 6 to 18 meters long and with a 
variety of engine types and sizes. IIA also services the 
vehicles and maintains a large inventory of original 
replacement parts for the vehicles.

IIA, was formed in January 2015 as an initiative of the 
Del Rosso Group and Finmeccanica S.p.A. The creation 
of IIA is rooted in two well-known and historic bus 
brands – Menarinibus and Padane. Menarinibus has 
been manufacturing buses in Bologna since 1919. The 
legendary Padane brand developed the Modena tourist 
vehicles, which symbolized excellence and luxury.  
The first new products by Padane line of buses will be 
introduced to the market during the second half of 2016. 

IIA currently employs 488 professionals within three 
locations and two production sites. The historical 
Bolognese factory on Via San Donato 190 is the 
administrative and operational headquarters of IIA.  Of 
the Company’s 155,000 square meters facility, 50,000 
square meters is a covered, two kilometer test track. 

The Flumeri factory, in the province of Avellino, is 
currently being renovated. It will total 975,000 square 
meters, of which a 105,000 square meters test track 
includes a 7 kilometer slope.Lastly, IIA also has a small 
headquarters facility in Fiano Romano.

BUSINESS    PARTNERS

Karsan Annual Report 2015
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It has been almost seven years since the 2008-2009 crisis; 
however, the global economy is still picking up the pieces. In 
the last seven years, many major central banks in the world 
monetized in unprecedented amounts, providing cheap 
liquidity. Under normal conditions, this much liquidity would 
have boosted the demand and increased the prices. However, 
there is no sign of increase in inflation in the U.S., Europe or 
Japan. There is no doubt that declining oil and other commodity 
prices support the fall in inflation. However, it is quite obvious 
that the monetary policy is not effective in stimulating the 
demand as it used to be, no matter how expansionary it is.

So why expansionary policies are implemented persistently 
and even the interest rates are reduced to negative figures, 
despite this noticeable shortcoming of the monetary policy? 
Many states, particularly those in Europe had high indebtedness 
levels. On the other hand, those who increased their public 
spending by announcing financial packages, especially the 
U.S., witnessed a sharp increase in their debts. Therefore, as 
of 2011, developed countries either had no financial space 
or already consumed up what they had. Structural issues 
revealed by the crisis are still continuing in many parts of the 
world. There are some reform attempts, but the progress is 
rather sluggish. Central Banks are still pumping money into 
the market while waiting for the impact of structural reforms 
to become visible. Both IMF and the World Bank, expect slow 
growth to carry on for the next 2 years.

TURKISH ECONOMY    ON THE VERGE OF 2016

Karsan Annual Report 2015
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the exchange rate impact was excluded. In this period, major 
decreases were noted in the consumer and real sector 
confidence indices. Both loans and confidence indices started 
to improve after November elections, but they still have not 
returned to pre-election level in June.

In the preceding 6 years, the inflation has been lingering in the 
vicinity of 8%, way above 3-4%, which has been the average 
for developing countries. When global capital inflows poured 
into developing countries in 2010-2013, the Central Bank 
relinquished its inflation targets to a great extent in order to 
achieve financial stability. The current account deficit, which 
increased to 10% in 2011, can be seen as a justification of the 
Central Bank’s concerns. However, after 2013, capital flows 
reversed, and despite fluctuations, there was a substantial 
outflow from developing countries. In 2015, this outflow 
intensified sharply. Despite this reversal in the capital flow and 
normalization of the monetary policy by the Federal Reserve 
with higher interest rates, the Turkish Central Bank did not 
make any substantial change in its monetary policy. With the 
rising exchange rate, the inflation reached 8.8% in 2015, which 
was 3.3 points above the target. In the same period, the core 
inflation level reached 9.5%.

In general, in 2016, the growth in the Turkish economy is 
expected to be driven domestically. Net external demand is 
expected to have zero or a very limited negative contribution 
to the growth. The major determinants of the net external 
demand will include recovering EU economy, the impact of 
the European Central Bank on the Euro/Dollar parity, and the 
regional geopolitical risks.

It is foreseen that the high increase in the minimum statutory 
wage will be instrumental in boosting the domestic demand 
particularly in the first half of the year, and its effect will 
diminish in the second half with the surging prices. Private 
sector investments are expected to remain weak due to 
global conditions. In the event public spending takes place 
as planned in the Medium Term Program, its contribution to 
growth will be more limited compared to 2015.

In case the quantitative expansion in EU economy continues 
to have a positive impact, and geopolitical risks are avoided 
substantially, and Euro/Dollar parity does not decline 
significantly, the contribution of the net external demand to 
the growth may increase. In this case, the growth rate may 
be approximately 0.5 points higher. In our existing projection, 

we assumed that the Chinese economy would not come to a 
sudden halt. The annual GDP in 2016 is expected to increase 
3.6% under the base scenario relying on these assumptions.

The level of adoption of reforms under the Action Plan 
announced by the government is critical to the growth rate 
of economy, not only in 2016 but also in the medium term. 
Particularly, adoption of reforms in the labor market will soften 
the market and lower the structural unemployment level. More 
importantly, implementation of the reforms has the potential 
to increase the confidence in the real sector, and in turn to 
boost the investments.

In the same way, an increase in geopolitical risks, particularly 
those stemming from Syria, decline of the parity below 1.05 
with the increasing quantitative expansion policy of the EU 
Central Bank, growth of the EU domestic demand below the 
expected level may lessen the contribution of the net external 
debt to the growth by 0.5 points. In other words, in the base 
scenario, the expected annual GDP growth of 3.6% in 2016 may 
vary +/- 0.5 points.

Furthermore, a sudden halt in the Chinese economy or 
deepening of existing problems in the European banking 
sector may have an adverse outcome exceeding the above 
projections. Should oil prices fall below 30 dollars permanently, 
the crisis in the oil exporter companies may deepen and cause 
a new wave of recession.

The relief brought by decreasing commodity prices in financing 
the growth, is felt less than expected due to decreasing export 
revenues. In 2016, the current account deficit is expected to 
deteriorate due to the anticipated negative impact of terrorism 
and Russia sourced tensions on the tourism revenues. In 
any case, structural reform-growth relationship may make 
a significant contribution to growth in 2016, provided that the 
reform program is fully implemented.

Developing countries, which achieved high growth rates with 
post-crisis cheap finance and increasing capital flow from 
developed countries, are not so happy today. The growth rate of 
developing countries, which displayed a heavy capital outflow 
last year, is almost halved.

There are many developing countries, notably China, caught in 
the high private sector debt - low demand spiral. In the past, 
developing countries were hit by the crisis, which started in 
the developed countries, but today, the slowing growth and 
demand in the developing countries is challenging developed 
countries, notably Europe. Therefore, world trade indexes are 
at all-time low; and despite a substantial depreciation of their 
currencies, the export volume of developing countries is, on 
the other hand, decreasing with the declining demand and 
their debt in foreign currency is exponentially increasing. While 
the Central Banks of developed countries are trying to transfer 
liquidity to the real sector with negative interest rates, the 
developing countries are trying to attract capital flows once 
again by interest rate hikes or reform promises.

Whilst uncertainties and lack of demand went on to dominate 
the global economy, the developments in the neighboring 
countries continued to produce devastating effects on the 
Turkish economy. Unfortunately, in 2015, terrorism intensified 
in Turkey and the flow of refugees through Turkey to the West due 
to the ongoing civil war in Syria also continued. Russia’s active 
involvement in the Syrian civil war generated tension between 
Turkey and one of its crucial trade partners. In addition to the 
prevailing trade issues in the Middle East, Turkey also suffered 
from trade sanctions imposed by Russia. Despite these adverse 
developments, Turkish economy grew 4% in 2015. The growth 
stemmed from the growth in the domestic demand, however, 
the increase in the investment volume remained limited, and 
the exports made a negative contribution to the growth. In 
2015, domestic demand-based growth and reducing exports 
volume caused an increase in the foreign trade and current 
account deficit, when gold and energy are excluded.

Particularly in the first half of 2015, the regression in energy 
prices and Euro’s depreciation against USD, which reached 
18%, increased the demand, notably for cars. However, 
the uncertainty, which emerged after June elections and 
depreciation of TL started to have a negative impact on 
demand. For the first time in last three years, the loan 
growth rate retreated substantially. Especially, the growth 
rate in consumer loans was noted to fall below zero, when 
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European Automotive Production / Market

AUTOMOTIVE SECTOR    AND POSITION OF
KARSAN IN THE SECTOR

Karsan Annual Report 2015

European Automotive Sales / Market
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Karsan Production Units Karsan Distribution Units 
Turkish Commercial Vehicle Production / 
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Turkish Commercial Vehicle Sales / 
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Karsan Brand Minibus Market 
Performance 

Karsan Export UnitsBredaMenarinibus BUS Serisi Market 
Performance

Share of Exports in Karsan Sales 
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Export Units
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In 2015 Karsan was ranked 8th in exports among the OSD 
member automotive companies and 5th among the companies 
producing commercial vehicles.    
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KARSAN PRESS    REVIEW 2015
KARSAN NOW IN EUROPE WITH “KARSAN-ITALY”

Commercial Vehicles World (01.03.2015)

Hizmetix (01.03.2015)
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KARSAN AND HYUNDAI TAKE A GIANT STEP TOGETHER!

Posta (15.05.2015)

Dünya (15.05.2015) Cumhuriyet (15.05.2015)Milliyet (15.05.2015)
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KARSAN SIGNED CONTRACT WITH KOCAELI MUNICIPALITY FOR 200 UNITS OF CNG BUSESKARSAN DELIVERS TWO UNITS OF 18M ARTICULATED, DIESEL BUSES TO ŞANLIURFA MUNICIPALITY

Halk Ulaşım (01.04.2015)

Otobüs Dünyası (01.03.2015)

Taşıyanlar (01.03.2015)

Ulaştırma Dünyası (07.05.2015)

Ulaşım Online (01.06.2015)

Hürriyet (02.05.2015)
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KARSAN ATTENDS BUSWORLD EUROPE KORTRIJK FAIR WITH ITS OWN PRODUCTSMANISA AGREED TO BUY 53 UNITS OF ATAK BUSES

Taşıma Dünyası (28.05.2015)

Kentiçi Toplu Taşıma (20.04.2015)

Commercial Vehicles World (01.10.2015)

Otobüs Dünyası (01.10.2015) Kargo Haber (01.10.2015)
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KARSAN MANUFACTURED HYUNDAI H350 VEHICLES INTRODUCED TO LOCAL AND INTERNATIONAL PRESS

Devir Saati (01.06.2015)

Kamyonum (01.06.2015)
GüleGüle (25.05.2015)

TransMedya (01.05.2015)
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KARSAN JEST AND ATAK VEHICLES ARE ON ÇANKIRI ROADS KARSAN DELIVERS 45 UNITS OF ATAK AND 6 UNITS OF JEST TO AYDIN

Ulaşım Online (01.06.2015)

Kent Gazetesi (26.05.2015)

Kentiçi Toplu Taşıma (16.11.2015)

Taşıma Dünyası (08.06.2015)
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KARSAN ATAK BUSES ARE DELIVERED TO MANISA KARSAN ATAK BUSES ARE IN BUDAPEST

Taşıyanlar (01.06.2015)

Otobüs Dünyası (01.05.2015)

Ulaşım Gazetesi (01.12.2015)

Taşımacılar (01.11.2015)
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KARSAN ATAK BUSES ARE IN BALIKESIR KARSAN HYUNDAI TRUCK&BUS AUTHORIZED DEALER ÖMER EKBIÇ GROUP DELIVERED ITS FIRST HYUNDAI 
H350 FLEET TO ERZURUM

Ulaşım (01.07.2015)

Halk Ulaşım (01.08.2015)

Kasa (01.10.2015)

Ticariden (12.11.2015)
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HYUNDAI H350 VEHICLES ARE ON TURKEY ROADSHOW KARSAN DELIVERED 60 OUT OF 200 UNITS OF CNG BUSES TO KOCAELI WITH CEREMONY

Commercial Vehicles World (01.08.2015)

Otoban (01.07.2015) Star (21.08.2015)

Kentiçi Toplu Taşıma (05.10.2015)

Taşıma Dünyası (12.10.2015)
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KARSAN PRESENTED ALL OF ITS BURSA MANUFACTURED PRODUCTS IN IZMIR KENT EXPO FAIR TO ITS 
VISITORS

AYDIN, ONCE AGAIN PREFERED KARSAN, 25 UNITS OF ATAK BUSES AND 10 UNITS OF JEST MINIBUSES 
DELIVERED TO THE MUNICIPALITY

Radius (01.11.2015) Aydın Hedef (11.11.2015)

Devir Saati (01.11.2015)

Ulaştırma Dünyası (16.11.2015)
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KARSAN STARTED THE TRANSFORMATION IN MUĞLA’S TRANSPORTATION WITH THE DELIVERY OF 22 UNITS 
OF JEST MINIBUSES TO DALYAN

MANISA MADE A GIANT “ATACK” IN TRANSPORTATION AND AGAIN PREFERED KARSAN

Taşıma Dünyası (09.11.2015)

Ulaştırma Dünyası (09.11.2015)

Halk Ulaşım (01.122015)

Taşıma Dünyası (23.11.2015)
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KARSAN ATAK BUSES PUT IN SERVICE IN BUDAPEST EYAF OPENED WITH THE AWARD CEREMONY HELD IN KARSAN STAND

Commercial Vehicles World (01.11.2015)

Taşımacılar (01.11.2015)

Taşıyanlar (01.12.2015)

Otogar GüleGüle (14.12.2015)
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KARSAN DELIVERS 91 UNITS OF JEST MINIBUSES TO MUŞ HÜRRİYET, SABAH AND POSTA NEWSPAPERS’ ADVERTORIALS

Taşıma Dünyası (14.12.2015)

Commercial Vehicles World (01.12.2015)

Hürriyet (25.12.2015) Sabah (25.12.2015)

Posta (28.12.2015)
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KARSAN DELIVERS “ATAK” TO THE NEIGHBOUR KARSAN WAS AWARDED BY BTSO

Ekonomi Yöntem (01.01.2016) Subcon Turkey (01.01.2016) Haber Ekonomi (12.01.2016)

Ulaştırma Dünyası (28.12.2015)
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Opinion

4. We are of the opinion that the financial information included in the annual report of the board of directors is consistent, in all 
respects, with the consolidated financial statements subjected to auditing and reflects the truth.

Other Obligations Arising from the Legislation

5. No material finding has been made, which needs to be reported, indicating that the Group will not be able to continue its activities 
in the foreseeable future in line with the BDS 570 “Going Concern” principle, pursuant to the third paragraph of Article 402 of the Turkish 
Commercial Code No. 6102.

Başaran Nas Bağımsız Denetim ve 
Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş. 
a member of 
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Beste Gücümen, Certified Public Accountant
Chief Auditor

Istanbul, March 10, 2016

To the Board of Directors of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş.

Report on the Audit of the Annual Report of the Board of Directors with respect to Independent Auditing Standards

1. We have audited the annual report of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (shall be referred 
to as the “Group” collectively) for the financial period ended December 31 , 2015.

The Responsibility of the Board of Directors for the Annual Report

2. The Group Company management is responsible for the preparation of the annual report in a manner to be consistent with the 
consolidated financial statements and reflect the truth in line with Article 514 of the Turkish Commercial Code No. 6102 (“TCC”) and 
the provisions of the “Communiqué No. II-14.1 of the Capital Markets Board (“CMB”) on the Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital 
Markets”, and for the internal audit as deemed required for ensuring that an annual report of such quality is prepared.

Independent Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to provide an opinion, on the basis of the independent audit we have performed for the Group’s annual report 
in line with Article 397 of the TCC and the Communiqué, about whether the financial information included in this annual report is 
consistent with the Company’s consolidated financial statements, which were the subject of the Group’s independent auditor’s report 
dated March 10, 2016, and whether this information reflects the truth.

The independent audit we have performed has been conducted in accordance with the Independent Auditing Standards published by 
the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority, which are a part of the Turkish Auditing Standards. These standards 
require compliance with ethical standards and the planning and performance of the independent audit in a manner to obtain a 
reasonable assurance that the financial information included in the annual report is consistent with the consolidated financial 
statements and that they reflect the truth.

The independent audit involves the application of the auditing procedures in order to gather audit evidence related to the historical 
financial information. These procedures are selected on the basis of the professional judgment of the independent auditor.

We believe that the independent audit evidence we have gathered during the independent audit constitutes sufficient and appropriate 
basis for the formation of our opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT RELATED TO THE ANNUAL REPORT 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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I. GENERAL INFORMATION

a. Accounting Period of the Report : 01.01.2015 – 31.12.2015
b. Trade Name of the Company  : KARSAN OTOMOTİV SANAYİİ VE TİCARET A.Ş.
    MERSIS No. of the Company  : 0525000190600019  
    Tax Office and No. of the Company : BURSA - Ertuğrulgazi V. D.- No: 5250001906
    Trade Registration No. of the Company : 13366/22498
    Contact Information of the Company :

Headquarters and Factory
Address     : HASANAĞA ORGANİZE SANAYİ BÖLGESİ (HOSAB), 
       SANAYİ CADDESİ 16225 NİLÜFER / BURSA 
Telephone    : +90 (224) 484 21 70 (25 LINES) - +90 (224) 280 30 00 
Fax     : +90 (224) 484 21 69

Organized Industrial Zone Factory
Address     : ORGANİZE SANAYİ BÖLGESİ MAVİ CAD. NO: 13 16159 NİLÜFER / BURSA
Telephone    : +90 (224) 243 33 10 (4 LINES) 
Fax     : +90 (224) 243 74 50

İstanbul Office
Address     : EMEK MAH. ORDU CAD. NO: 10 34785 SARIGAZİ / SANCAKTEPE / İSTANBUL
Telephone    : +90 (216) 499 65 50 
Fax     : +90 (216) 499 65 53
Website     : www.karsan.com.tr

c. Changes During the Period Regarding the Organization, Capital and Shareholding Structure of the Company
Registered Capital Ceiling  : 600,000,000 TRY 
Issued Capital    : 460,000,000 TRY 

As of year-end of 2015, our free-float rate listed under the Central Registry Agency (CRA) is 34.76%.

In 2015, the Foreign Trade Department was established in the Company. The Corporate Risk Management Department was restructured 
and renamed as the Corporate Risk Management and Internal Auditing Department. Industrial sales and tenders for vehicles excluding 
busses were added to the scope of the Project Coordination Office, which was renamed as the Industrial Sales Department. The entire 
program and business development activities of Karsan were restructured under the Business Planning, Development and Projects 
Directorate. In order to keep up with the changing competition environment, which is the product of developing and changing needs 
and innovative business models; to be aware of existing opportunities and/or threats, and to be able to turn them into advantages for 
Karsan, the Chief Ecosystem Officer position was created and an appointment was made to this position.

d. Disclosure on Preferred Shares and Voting Rights of Shares
According to Article 8 of the Articles of Association, the article on Board of Directors, Group A shares possess a right of “privilege to 
nominate candidates for the election of members of the Board of Directors”. The Company’s Articles of Association does not feature 
a privilege on the use of votes. 

e. Information on the Board of Directors, Executives and Number of Employees

 i. Board of Directors

 Members of the Board of Directors were appointed in the Ordinary General Assembly held on August 14, 2015 in accordance 
 with the Articles of Association, pursuant to the Turkish Commercial Code and relevant regulations; for a period of one year 
 or, in any case, until the appointment of their successors.

Members of the Board of Directors as of 31.12.2015:
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COMPANY’S TITLE

Kıraça Holding A.Ş.

 Group A preferred

 Group B

Other

 Group A preferred

 Group B

Total

SHARE AMOUNT (TRY) 

291,905,176

32,725,736

259,179,440

168,094,824

794,663

167,300,161

460,000,000

SHARE AMOUNT (TRY) 

291,905,176

32,725,736

259,179,440

168,094,824

794,663

167,300,161

460,000,000

SHARE RATIO (%)

63.46

7.11

56.34

36.54

0.17

36.37

100.00

SHARE RATIO (%)

63.46

7.11

56.34

36.54

0.17

36.37

100.00

31.12.2015 31.12.2014

İnan Kıraç

Klod Nahum

Jan Nahum

Nadir Özşahin 

Mehmet Altan Sungar

İpek Kıraç

Oğuz Nuri Babüroğlu

Giancarlo Boschetti 

Antonio Bene

Chairman

Vice Chairman

Executive Board Member

Independent Board Member

Independent Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

14.08.2015

14.08.2015

14.08.2015

14.08.2015

14.08.2015

14.08.2015

14.08.2015

14.08.2015

14.08.2015

Board of Directors Position Commencement Date
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The Board of Directors convened 20 times in 2015 and passed a total of 42 resolutions in these meetings. Board members participated 
in a majority of the Board meetings.

Since establishment of a Board of Auditors is discretionary according to the new Turkish Commercial Code, no members of the 
Board of Auditors were elected at the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting held on August 14, 2015 and, as proposed by the Audit 
Committee, it was approved that Başaran Nas Bağımsız Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş., which was elected as the 
Independent External Audit Firm with the decision of the Board of Directors dated 31.03.2015 and numbered 2015/14, would serve as 
the independent external audit firm for one year.

Detailed information on tasks performed by Independent Members of the Board of Directors and Independence Declarations of 
Independent Members of the Board of Directors is provided in Annex 1 and Annex 2. 

 ii. Evaluation of the Committees of the Board of Directors

 The duties and working principles of the Committees of the Board of Directors were disclosed to the public when posted on 
 the Public Disclosure Platform and in the investor relations section of the corporate website: www.karsan.com.tr.

Committees Board of Directors as of 31.12.2015:

((*) Head of the Investor Relations Department was assigned to the Corporate Governance Committee under Article 11 of the Communiqué No. SPK II-17.1.

In this financial period, the Audit Committee worked in accordance with the CMB legislation and its Duties and Working Principles 
in relation to selection of an independent audit firm, disclosure of financial statements to the public, and issued 5 reports. In this 
financial period, the Corporate Governance Committee worked in accordance with the CMB legislation and its Duties and Working 
Principles in relation to preparation of Corporate Governance Compliance Report, supervision of activities of Investor Relations 
Department, and nomination of candidates to become Independent Board Members as a part of its function as the Nomination 
Committee; and carrying out remuneration committee activities as a part of its function as the Remuneration Committee, and 
issued 5 reports. During this period, the Committee on Early Detection of Risks worked in accordance with the CMB legislation and its 
Duties and Working Principles, and issued 6 reports.

iii. Executives
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Audit 
Committee

Corporate 
Governance 
Committee

Committee on 
Early Detection 
of Risks

Nadir ÖZŞAHİN

Mehmet Altan SUNGAR

Mehmet Altan SUNGAR

Oğuz Nuri BABÜROĞLU

Deniz ÖZER (*)

Nadir ÖZŞAHİN

Klod NAHUM

Oğuz Nuri BABÜROĞLU

Chairman

Member

Chairman

Member

Member

Chairman

Member

Member

Independent member 

Independent member

Independent member

Non-executive member

Executive member

Independent member

Executive member

Non-executive member

3 aylık dönemlerde
yılda en az 4 defa

2 aylık dönemlerde
yılda en az 6 defa

Yılda en az 2 defa

Committee Committee Members Position Nature Convention Frequency

Ahmet Murat Selek (*)

İsmail Hakkı Güralp (**)

Ömer Yıldırım (**)

CEO

Deputy General Manager of 

Financial Affairs

Deputy General Manager of 

Industrial Affairs

Mechanical Engineer (M.Sc)

Business Administrator

Mechanical Engineer

2008

2013

2010

Executives Position Commencement Date Profession

(*) Ahmet Murat Selek is also an Executive Director of the Board of Directors of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayi Mamülleri Pazarlama A.Ş.
(**) They do not hold other positions outside the Company.

iv. Movements of White and Blue Collar Employees

(*) Karsan Italy S.r.l.’s official title was changed as Karsan Europe S.r.l. as of October 6, 2015

As of 31.12.2015, the Group had a total number of 1,748 employees. Of those 1,748 employees, 273 employees were white collar and 
1,475 were blue collar. The number of employees in the Group increased by 26% in comparison to the previous year.

f. Information on Transactions of the Board of Directors’ with the Company on their own behalf or on behalf of others 
within the Context of the General Assembly’s Authorization, and Board of Directors’ Activities within The Context of 
Prohibition of Competition 

Although the Company’s Articles of Association do not have provisions on not making transactions with the Company and not 
breaching the non-competition rule; it was decided at the 2014 Ordinary General Assembly Meeting held on August 14, 2015 that, 
pursuant to Articles 395 and 396 of the Turkish Commercial Code, members of the board of directors shall be allowed to perform 
transactions with the Company on their own behalf and on the behalf of others; to perform commercial transactions within the field 
of activity of the Company on their own behalf or on the behalf of others, and to become a partner with an unlimited liability in any 
company engaged in the same kind of trade as the Company. Also, during this ordinary general assembly meeting, it was disclosed 
that in 2014, shareholders controlling the management, members of the Board of Directors, executives who had administrative 
responsibilities and their spouses and second degree relatives/kin did not perform any material transaction that might cause a 
conflict of interest with the Company or its affiliates and/or perform any commercial transaction within the field of activity of the

Karsan Otomotiv

Karsan Pazarlama

Kırpart

Karsan Europe (*)

Total

White Collar

170

33

66

4

273

White Collar

165

30

54

1

250

Blue Collar

1.029

28

418

0

1.475

Blue Collar

715

30

390

0

1.135

Total

1.199

61

484

4

1.748

Total

880

60

444

1

1.385

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
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Company or its affiliates on their behalf or on behalf of others, or become a partner with unlimited liability in any company engaged 
in the same kind of trade with the Company.

In 2015, shareholders controlling the management, members of the Board of Directors, executives who had administrative 
responsibilities and their spouses and second degree relatives/kin did not perform any transactions that might cause a conflict of 
interest with the Company or its affiliates and/or perform any commercial transaction within the field of activity of the Company or 
its affiliates on their own behalf or on the behalf of others, or become a partner with unlimited liability in any company engaged in 
the same kind of trade as the Company.
 
II. FINANCIAL RIGHTS OF THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The total amount of rights, benefits and fees provided to the members of the Board of Directors and senior executives in 2015 was TRY 
6,784,211 and this amount is reported in footnotes to the financial statements, and these footnotes are included in the annual report 
and on the corporate website. At the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting, held on August 14, 2015, it was decided that as of the first 
day of the month following the General Assembly Meeting, Independent Members of the Board of Directors would be paid TRY 6,000 
(gross) per month and other members of the Board of Directors would be paid TRY 4,000 (gross) per month.

III. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Our Company’s R&D efforts relating to the Concept V-1 project, bus tenders, and the Karsan branded minibus-midibus, and additional 
product development projects are still ongoing.

IV. COMPANY’S ACTIVITIES AND IMPORTANT DEVELOPMENTS WITH REGARDS TO COMPANY’S ACTIVITIES

a. Investments made during the relevant Financial Period and Incentives used for such Investments

The Group invested a total of TRY 126,015,915 in 2015.

Karsan Otomotiv;
Karsan Otomotiv continues its activities by means of producing Karsan minibuses and Hyundai light trucks and through contract-
based production agreements, and it also continues to work and invest to become an original equipment manufacturer by creating 
its own brands and predominantly producing under its own brands within the context of its vision of offering limitless transportation 
solutions.

The Incentive certificate no. A-107742 of November 27, 2012 obtained for product diversification/modernization investment was 
revised on August 14, 2013 with no. 55221, on January 28, 2014 with no. 06888, on July 3, 2014 with no. 45008, and finally on February 
18, 2015 with no. 22555. The amount of the revised investment incentive certificate is TRY 63,617,253 (Local) and USD 37,493,947 
(Imports). In response to our application, in addition to the incentive certificate, an exemption from customs duty and resource 
utilization support fund was obtained until March 9, 2016 for USD 238,456,119 in relation to the global list belonging to import CKD 
equipment and import of CKD components and parts to be used in H350 model light commercial vehicles to be manufactured on a 
contract basis for our business partner Hyundai Motor Company (HMC), provided that the incentive certificate dated January 28, 2014 
was used within the investment period.

The factors of the support relating to Region 1 that has been provided for the investment considered within the scope of “Regional 
Incentive Practices” are below:

* VAT exemption
* Exemption from Customs Duty
* Corporate Tax Rebate applied for Regional Incentive 

Kırpart;
Kırpart manufactures thermoregulators, water-oil pumps and casting parts, and also invests in fixed assets in order to manufacture 
new product groups and to increase the manufacturing capacity of existing products.

The Investment Certificate no. 106988 of September 27, 2012 obtained for modernization/extension investments was revised with 
certificate no. B106988 of July 23, 2013 and with Certificate no. C106988 of July 24, 2015. The amount of the revised investment 
incentive certificate is TRY 20,990,065.

The factors of the support that has been provided for the investment considered within the scope of “Investments with Priority” are 
below:

* Interest Support
* Exemption from Customs Duty
* VAT exemption
* Corporate Tax Rebate
* Insurance Premium Employer Support

b. Information on the Company’s Internal Control System and Internal Auditing Activities, and the Opinion of the Board 
of Directors on this Issue

The Corporate Risk Management Department that was established in 2014 was reorganized as the Corporate Risk Management and 
Internal Auditing Department as of October 1, 2015. Risks that are identified as a result of activities carried out by the Corporate Risk 
Management and Internal Auditing Department in accordance with a plan approved by the Committee on Early Detection of Risks, are 
evaluated taking the corporate risk taking profile into account, and organization of an effective internal control system structuring is 
aimed with action plans that are created as a result of risk oriented Internal Auditing activities.

ANNUAL REPORT
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c. Company’s Direct or Indirect Affiliates and Information with Respect to Their Shareholding Rates

(*) Kırpart Shanghai is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kırpart, therefore it is an indirect affiliate of Karsan with an 83% interest.
(**)Karsan founded a company in New York, US, with the trade name Karsan USA LLC that is wholly owned by the Company in order to participate in the tenders held by 
local authorities for its taxi model project, and this company did not require any capital transfer at the time of its foundation. There have been no capital transfers to 
the company so far and it has had no effect on the financial position of the Group.
(***) Karsan Italy S.r.l.’s official title was changed as Karsan Europe S.r.l. as of October 6, 2015.

Our Company does not have any reciprocal shareholding relationship exceeding %5 level with any company.

d. Information on Company Shares acquired by the Company
The Company has not acquired its own shares within the period. 

e. Information on Special Audits and Public Audits during the Financial Period
No special audit has been requested in the 2015 financial year under Article 438 of the Turkish Commercial Code.

f. Information on Legal Actions taken against the Company which may affect the Company’s Financial Position and 
Operations, and Probable Outcome of such Legal Actions
No material legal actions were taken against the Company in 2015.

g. Disclosure of Administrative and Legal Sanctions imposed on the Company, Directors, and Managers due to violations 
of applicable Legislation
There have been no legal or administrative sanctions imposed on the Company or its directors and managers due to a violation of 
any applicable legislation.

h. Information and Comments on whether Targets set in Previous Periods were reached, Decisions of the General 
Assembly Meeting were implemented and, if not, justifications for not achieving such targets or implementing such decisions
An annual budget is drafted in accordance with the targets set by the Board of Directors of the Company, and the conformity of 
operating results to the budget is monitored. Our Company implemented decisions of the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting held 
in August 2015 relating to 2014 operations.

i. If an Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting was held during the year, information on such a meeting, including the 
date of the meeting, decisions taken therein, and any associated transactions
No Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting was held during the period.

j. Information on donations and grants provided by the Company during the Year
During the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting of our Company held on August 14, 2015, the cap of donations to be made in 2015 
was determined as five in ten-thousandths of solo net sales revenues at the end of 2015. In 2015, solo net sales revenues were 
TRY 830,899,834 and five in ten thousandths of net sales revenues was TRY 415,450. In 2015, in total TRY 293,047 was given by our 
Company as donations and grants to various foundations and associations for charitable purposes, and this amount is below the cap 
set for 2015. The total amount of donations given by the Group in the same period of time was TRY 329,897. 

k. Significant Changes in the Environment where the Company operates, and the Policies Applied by the Company 
against these Changes
No significant change occurred in the relevant period in the geographical environment where the company operates. 

l. If the Company is a part of a Group of Companies, Legal Transactions performed with the Controlling Company or 
its Subsidiaries or in the interest of the Controlling Company or its Subsidiaries under guidance of the Controlling 
Company and all other measures taken or avoided in the past financial year in the interest of the Controlling Company 
or its Subsidiaries
There have been no legal transactions performed with the controlling company or its subsidiaries or in the interest of the controlling 
company or its subsidiaries under the guidance of the controlling company and there are no measures taken or avoided in the past 
financial year in the interest of the controlling company or its subsidiaries.

m. Should the Company be a part of a Group of Companies: if any legal transaction mentioned in item (l) is performed 
or any measure is taken or avoided, whether an appropriate counter performance was required under conditions and 
terms known to them for each legal transaction and whether taking or avoiding such measures caused the Company 
to incur any damages and if the Company incurred any damages, whether it was compensated 
Since there are no legal transactions set forth in item (l), no transaction was made under this Article.

n. Information on legislative amendments that may have a material effect on the operations of the Company
There have been no legislative amendments that may have a material effect on the operations of the Company.

o. Corporate Governance Principles Compliance Report
The “Corporate Governance Principles Compliance Report” for the term 01/01/2015-31/12/2015 was prepared in accordance with the 
format provided by Capital Markets Board within the scope of the Corporate Governance Communiqué with the decision of the Capital 
Markets Board No 2/35 dated 27.01.2014 and CMB II-17.1 and it can be found in the subsequent parts of this report. 

p. Amendments to the Articles of Association in the Relevant Period and Justification of such Amendments
No amendments were made to the Articles of Association of the Company in the relevant period.
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Karsan Otomotiv Sanayi
Mamulleri Pazarlama A.Ş.

Kırpart Otomotiv Parçaları 
San. ve Tic. A.Ş.

Kırpart Shangai (*)

Karsan USA LLC (**)

Karsan Italy SRL (***)

Distributor

Production, Sales, 
Marketing and 
Distribution

Sales, Marketing

Sales, Marketing

Sales, Marketing

25%

83%

100%

100%

100%

25%

83%

83%

100%

100%

25%

83%

100%

100%

100%

25%

83%

100%

100%

100%

Company Name Field of Activity Direct and 
Indirect 

Shareholding 
Rate

Direct and 
Indirect 

Shareholding 
Rate

Effective 
Shareholding 

Rate

Effective 
Shareholding 

Rate

Company’s Shareholding Rate

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
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q. Information on Manufacturing Units of the Company
The Company is engaged in manufacturing in two plants in Bursa. The plant at the Hasanağa Organized Industrial Zone has a 200 
thousand sqm area in total with a 85 thousand sqm covered area, and minibuses, trucks, buses, and light commercial vehicles are 
manufactured in this plant. BTSO Plant, where tractor cabins, bus carcass, cataphoresis coating, and spare parts are manufactured, 
has a 30 thousand sqm total area and 24 thousand sqm of this area is covered. Units of the Company are listed below.

Units at the Hasanağa Organized Industrial Zone and Bursa Organized Industrial Zone
• Welding Unit
• Paint Shop
• Assembly Unit
• Quality Control
• Quality Assurance
• Production Planning and Logistics

Bus Plant
• Welding Unit
• Paint Shop
• Assembly Unit

Support Units For All Enterprises
• Engineering and Technology
• Human Resources
• Finance
• Corporate Risk Management and Internal Auditing
• Investor Relations
• Accounting
• Budget Planning and Control
• Information Systems
• Procurement
• Business Planning, Development and Projects
• Industrial Sales
• Foreign Trade

r. Products
The Company’s products in 2015 included Karsan Jest, Karsan Atak, Karsan Star, Hyundai H350, BredaMenarinibus and Hyundai Truck 
HD Series.

s. Efficiency

The existing capacity of our Company is 18,200 vehicles/year. By producing 7,239 unit vehicles in 2015, the Company had a 
capacity utilization rate of 39.8%.

t. Developments in Production and Sales
Production volume in comparison to the previous period, is given below on a product type basis.

(*) Since mass production has not started as of 2014 year-end, vehicles in the table were prototypes in the relevant period.

Our Company’s sales quantities and revenues by product type, in comparison to the previous period, are indicated below.

(*) The negative value of Hyundai Truck is due to vehicles returned in the year.
(**) Since mass production has not started as of 2014 year-end, vehicles in the table were prototypes in the relevant period.
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Capacity Utilization Rate 39.8% 9.4%

2015 2014

Karsan

 Jest

 Atak

 Star

BredaMenarinibus

Hyundai H350 (*)

Total

Karsan

 Jest

 Atak

 Star

Hyundai Truck HD Serisi (*)

BredaMenarinibus

Hyundai H350 (**)

Total

2,209

1,607

598

4

384

4,646

7,239

2,210

1,610

596

4

18

393

5,382

8,003

1,635

1,536

81

18

43

34

1,712

1,648

1,590

55

3

-3

45

14

1,704

35

5

638

(78)

793

13,565

323

34

1

984

33

(700)

773

38,343

370

Product Type

Product Type

2015 (Units)

2015 (Units)

2014 (Units)

2014 (Units)

Change Rate (%)

Change Rate (%)
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made regularly by the competent authorities. The waste management system ensures that the wastes requiring recycling, recovery 
and disposal resulting from production and other activities are collected separately, and some of them are contributed to the 
national economy, and those requiring disposal are treated in accordance with the regulations without causing environmental 
pollution. Our waste management system with zero landfill waste is continuously improving by setting new objectives and targets, 
consistent with Karsan Otomotiv A.Ş. Environmental Policy, to reduce the use of energy and its new environmental impacts. Karsan 
aspires to enhance the environmental consciousness of the neighboring community around its head office, the supplier industries 
and all employees, and organizes trainings and meetings for raising awareness, with an emphasis on continuous training. In line 
with its Environmental Policy, Karsan is committed to protecting and sustaining the environment by complying with all environmental 
laws and regulations, keeping environmental impact under control, reducing adverse effects, continuously improving environmental 
performance, increasing environmental awareness and, by reaching “Operational Excellence” in all production operations, leaving a 
clean environment behind for future generations.

No action has been filed against Karsan due to environmental damages. Karsan Otomotiv successfully passed the integrated 
environmental audits conducted by the Provincial Directorate of Environment and Urbanization in 2015 and received Environmental 
Permits for both of its plants and established its Environmental Management System.

w. Information on any Conflict of Interest with the Institutions providing Investment Consultancy and Rating services to 
the Company, and on Measures taken by the Company to avoid such Conflicts
In 2013, a credit rating service was attained from Türk Rating İstanbul Uluslararası Derecelendirme Hizmetleri A.Ş. (Turkrating), and our 
credit note was announced with a Material Event Disclosure made on the PDP on January 13, 2014. Since the one-year rating contract 
signed between our Company and Turkrating expired, the credit rating report and notes published by Turkrating became invalid as of 
January 13, 2015, together with their annexes and conclusions, and a Material Event Disclosure was made on the same day on PDP. 
There is no conflict of interest between Turkrating and our Company.

V. FINANCIAL POSITION

a. Summary of the Financial Statements
Financial Statements were consolidated and audited independently under CMB Series II.14.1.
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(*) In January-December 2015, the Other section consisted of sales of spare parts and materials, and industrial services including cataphoresis coating, part stamping, 

cabin painting and production for automotive basic and supplier industries, and sales of ancient products. Detailed information is provided in Footnote 4. 

u. Collective Bargaining Agreements 
No labor dispute or movement has occurred in Karsan Otomotiv during the financial period. Since the collective bargaining agreement 
that existed between the Turkish Metal Workers Union and the MESS for the period between September 1, 2012- August 31, 2014 
expired, a new collective bargaining agreement was signed on December 15, 2014 for the period September 1, 2013 – August 31, 2017.

Pursuant to the CMB Communiqué on Principles of Financial Reporting (II.14.1) the amount set aside for indemnity pay at the end of 
the period for the Group is TRY 19,700,845.

v. Information on Social Benefits and Occupational Training for Employees, and on Corporate Social Responsibility 
Activities regarding Company Operations with Social and Environmental Consequences
In addition to wages and bonuses, our Company provides its employees with cash benefits such as allowances for birth, death, 
marriage, child, military service, holiday pay and annual paid leave, and benefits in kind such as food, transportation, clothing and 
cleaning allowances.

Internal and external occupational trainings are planned in accordance with the needs of our employees. 31% of training provided 
in 2015 consisted of occupational training. These include training on production process, process verification, use of measurement 
and production equipment, assessment of financial and accounting data, and business software.

In January 2004, Karsan Otomotiv San. ve Tic. A.S. obtained an ISO 14001 Environmental Management System Certificate for the first 
time, and its ISO 14001 certificate was extended until 2017 with zero defects identified in the inspection conducted in 2015, which 
ensured sustainability of the certificate. Karsan established an Environmental Management System in order to control and minimize 
the environmental effects, and to continuously improve environmental performance through compliance with all environmental 
laws and regulations in order to protect the environment and ensure its permanence. With its Environmental Management System 
efforts, KARSAN aims to reduce the use of energy and natural resources, and to minimize the amount of waste by supporting recovery 
operations. After physical and chemical treatment, the waste water is sent to the BOSB and HOSAB Centralized Sewage Treatment 
Plant, to be reduced and kept at a level below the receiver’s discharge standards, and the output water analysis and controls are
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d. Measures Planned to be taken to improve the Financial Structure of the Company
Various alternatives involving several money and capital market instruments are evaluated for short and long term funding needs 
of the Company.

e. Information on Dividend Policy and if no Dividends will be distributed, the reason underlying such decision and 
suggestions as to how the undistributed profit will be used
The Company’s Dividend Policy was submitted for approval at 2013 Ordinary General Assembly Meeting of Shareholders of June 27, 
2014 with agenda item no. 8 and disclosed to the public when posted on the Company website. Dividend Policy is explained below. 

“Dividend Policy
There are no privileges relating to participation in the Company’s profit and distribution of dividends. Our Company distributes profit 
in accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code, Capital Markets Legislation, Tax Legislation and other applicable legislation as well 
as the provisions of the Articles of Association governing profit distribution. When deciding on distributing the dividends, applicable 
regulations, financial position, long-term strategy, investment and financing policies, profitability and cash flow of our Company are 
taken into account, and our shareholders are distributed maximum amount of profit in cash and/or in the form of bonus shares 
to the extent that the net distributable period profit calculated according to Capital Markets Regulations, is covered in our statutory 
records. It is aimed to perform dividend distribution in maximum 3 months after the relevant General Assembly Meeting, at the 
latest the end of the accounting period in which the distribution decision is made, and the dividend distribution date is determined 
at the General Assembly Meeting. Dividends may be paid in equal or different installments in compliance with applicable legislation, 
provided that it is decided at the same General Assembly Meeting, in which dividend distribution is decided. Dividends shall be 
distributed pro rata to all of the shares existing as of the distribution date, notwithstanding date of issue and acquisition of such 
shares. The Board of Directors aims to take all measures in respect of place, time and method to ensure the transfer of annual profit 
to shareholders within the shortest time possible, in accordance with the legislation. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the 
Company, the Board of Directors may distribute advance dividends, provided that it is authorized at the General Assembly Meeting, 
and Capital Market Regulations are complied with.”

The consolidated loss amounting to TRY 70,148,979 incurred as a result of company activities in 2015 has been transferred to the 
following year, and there are no distributable profits.
 
f. Financial Sources of the Company
The Company’s financial sources consist of shareholders’ equity, loans used by the Company, bonds issued to qualified investors, 
and time deposit revenues.

g. Nature and Amount of Issued Capital Market Instruments
Our Company obtained authorization from the Capital Markets Board to issue bonds with a nominal value of TRY 100 million on May 6, 
2014 and with a nominal value of TRY 200 million on October 2, 2014 in order to offer these bonds to qualified investors, and in 2014, 
it sold all of the bonds with a nominal value of TRY 100 million and out of bonds with a nominal value of TRY 200 million, it issued 
bonds with a value of TRY 180 million.

Within the limits of the issue ceiling of TRY 200,000,000 specified in the issue certificate, which was approved by the Capital Markets 
Board on October 2, 2014 with no. 29/966, the second group of bonds with a nominal value of TRY 20,000,000 and a term of 1092 
days, was issued on March 27, 2015 to qualified investors and with this sale transaction, the sale of bonds was completed under the 
approved issue ceiling.
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Within the scope of the agreement signed on November 27, 2012 with Hyundai Motor Company (HMC), one of the business partners of 
our Company mass production started in April 2015.

b. Key Financial Indicators and Ratio Analysis
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c. Findings and Evaluation of the Management on whether the Company Capital is unsecured due to a loss or the 
Company has excess liabilities over assets
According to the calculation made taking into account the ratios set forth in Article 376 of the Turkish Commercial Code, the capital 
is not unsecured.
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delivered to the municipality increased to 240 units, and the total turnover obtained from this tender reached Euro 38.2 million. Tax, 
duty and fee exemption certificate valid until December 4, 2020 was revised based on the contract value of Euro 38.2 million.

A disclosure was made on the Public Disclosure Platform on June 18, 2015 to announce that Karsan won the “120 Natural Gas Solo 
Type Buses and 21 Natural Gas Articulated Bus” tender held by Konya Metropolitan Municipality; and the contract was signed in June. 
A tax, duty, and fee exemption certificate valid for 6 months was obtained for the tender for Euro 26.02 million, which is the contract 
value. The validity term of this certificate was extended until January 2, 2021 as explained in the Material Event Disclosure made by 
our Company on August 3, 2015.

In addition, Karsan continues to develop Concept V1 model within the scope of its vision to create its own brand. The new Concept 
V1, planned to be produced in Karsan’s plants in Bursa, is projected to offer options such as a glass ceiling, 5-passenger capacity, 
wheelchair access, right/left steering wheel, and alternative fuel options. It has the capacity to meet the needs of all metropolises in 
the world through with its passenger or commercial versions, thanks to its modular system construction. The first mobile prototype 
of Concept V1 Taxi was exhibited in the Geneva Motor Show in March 2012, and the first electrical right-hand drive Concept V1 taxi 
model was exhibited in the “Urban Mobility 3.0” in London, in June 2012. Concept V1 was exhibited in two separate events in London 
in June 2013 and received the “2013 Global Product Differentiation Excellence Award” with its taxi and passenger car platform aiming 
to facilitate access in transportation. Moreover, it participated in the “Zero Emissions London Taxi Launch Event” organized by London 
Municipality on January 16, 2014.

Karsan closely follows changes in cities and mass transportation systems in order to develop products and services that meet 
current needs, and in May 2013, it launched “JEST” the smallest member of a brand new product family still being developed to be 
launched to the market under Karsan brand, and JEST sales in 2015 were higher compared to the previous year. JEST, has wheelchair-
access with a low floor and ramp, provides savings from fuel and maintenance costs with its Euro 5 engine, and also comes with 
an option of wireless internet (wi-fi).

Karsan produces, markets and sells various products, and provides after-sale services for them, and among from these products, 
the total market share of Karsan Jest in the minibus class in the domestic market reached 6.2% in 2015.

Furthermore, our 8 m long Karsan ATAK promoted in 2014, reached 456 units of domestic sales in 2015, taking a 32.1% in its segment.

In addition to vehicle production, Karsan also offers industrial services including cataphoresis, painting, truck haulage, bus chassis 
and tractor cabin production.

In 2015, Karsan exported 41 units of Jest, 3 units of HD 75, 74 units of Atak, 2949 units of Hyundai H350 and various spare parts, and 
generated USD 74,772,871.31 export revenues in total.

VI. RISKS AND ASSESSMENT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

a. Information on Risk Management Policy to be adopted against Risks, if any
Karsan carries out its activities in a transparent, accountable, fair and responsible manner. The Board of Directors develops internal 
control systems that also include risk management and information systems and processes which help to minimize impact of risks 
that may affect stakeholders of the Company, particularly the shareholders, and opinions of the relevant committees of the Board of
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Disclosures on bond issue coupon payments on bonds are posted on the Public Disclosure Platform and corporate website (www.
karsan.com.tr) in line with the CMB legislation.

h. Information on the Company’s Sector and the Company’s Position in the Sector 
It is possible to summarize the developments in the sector and in Karsan Otomotiv in 2015 as follows, in accordance with the data 
from the Automotive Manufacturers’ Association:

Total vehicle production increased to 1,358,796 units in January-December 2015 representing a 16% increase compared to the same 
period of 2014, and the automobile production increased by 8% and reached 791,027 units.

• There was 33% increase in minibuses, and 31% increase in trucks compared to the previous year of Turkey’s light commercial 
vehicles production, which our Company is also a part of.
• In Turkey, the production of buses, light trucks, heavy trucks, and minibuses increased by 36%,42%, %6 and %34 respectively, 
compared to the previous year.

In the Turkish market, in the light commercial vehicles group, there was a 34.4% increase in 2015 in total light commercial vehicle 
sales, and 30.6% increase in imported light commercial vehicle sales. On the other hand, local light commercial vehicle sales 
increased by 37.6%. The market share of imports in the light commercial vehicle market realized as 44.2% in 2015.

In line with its vision of “limitless transportation solutions”, Karsan presents turn-key delivery commercial vehicle production solutions 
including design, engineering and production to the world’s selected brands with over 50-years’ experience in the automotive industry 
and a flexible production capacity, and produces commercial vehicles under its own brand. Karsan is the leader of contract-based 
production model in the Turkish Automotive Industry, and in addition to production of Hyundai Truck light trucks, BredaMenarinibus 
branded buses, and Karsan branded minibuses and buses, it is engaged in domestic sales activities.

On November 27, 2012, our Company signed an agreement with Hyundai Motor Company (HMC) for production of a total of 200 
thousand units of H350 model vehicles in seven years, including panel vans, light trucks, and minibuses recently developed by HMC 
with a maximum loaded weight of 3-6 tons, and necessary industrial investments under this agreement have been completed. 
Upon completion of these investments, the trial production stage has also been completed and the start of mass production was 
announced on April 3, 2015 on the Public Disclosure Platform. Since the starting date of the mass production was postponed - from 
the date specified in the main agreement, which was the beginning of 2015 - to April 2015, negotiations were made between the 
parties, and an additional protocol was signed in October 2015, which extended the term of the contract from 7 to 8 years, without 
changing the total production quantity, which is minimum 200 thousand vehicles.

In the light commercial vehicle series, which is a part of the same product group, Karsan Pazarlama, where our Company is a 
shareholder, and HMC, our business partner signed an exclusive domestic distributorship agreement on May 20, 2014. With this 
distributorship agreement, Karsan Pazarlama became the exclusive provider of marketing, sales, and aftersales services in Turkey for 
H350 vehicles to be produced by our Company for HMC.

A disclosure was made on the Public Disclosure Platform on April 7, 2015 to announce that Karsan won the tender for “200 CNG 
Solo Buses” held by Kocaeli Metropolitan Municipality, and the contract was signed in April. Under the order escalation clause of this 
contract, Kocaeli Municipality increased its order by 20% (i.e. by 40 vehicles). With this additional demand, the number of vehicles
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VIII. OTHER ISSUES - INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

Our Company announced on the Public Disclosure Platform that it has been prequalified in the U.S. Mail Service’s New Generation 
Distribution Vehicle Procurement Process, and become entitled to be included in the list of suppliers, who would be sent a request for 
proposal for prototype development, and the final decision on participating in the tender would be given according to the information 
to be obtained after the request for proposal of the contracting authority and the tender specifications were received. The contracting 
entity sent its request for proposal for development of a prototype, and the final specifications, and we were asked to respond until 
the first quarter of 2016. Our company joined forces with Heksagon Mühendislik ve Tasarım A.Ş. and Karsan USA LLC and submitted a 
proposal in February 2016 in response to the “request for proposal for prototype development”. Should the proposal be accepted, there 
will be a request for proposal for production. These developments were announced to the public with a material event disclosure on 
February 5, 2016, and further developments will be shared with the public and our investors.

İstanbul Electric Tramway and Tunnel Enterprises (İETT) General Directorate held a tender for the procurement of “410 12-m long, solo 
type buses operating with Euro 6 diesel” on March 3, 2016. Our Company made the best bid for the tender; however, the contracting 
entity has not served a written notice on the outcome of the tender yet. A material event disclosure was made on the PDP on the same 
date. Developments will be shared with the public and our investors.

It is decided to acquire an interest in MaaS Finland Oy, a company engaged in transportation solutions and domiciled in Helsinki/
Finland, by participating with Euro 200,005 in cash in the new share offering of the Company for Euro 315,000. Developments will be 
shared with the public and our investors.

IX. CONCLUSION

The financial statements, explanatory notes and ratios regarding the results of our activities in 2015 are also presented for your 
review in other sections of our report. 

Esteemed Shareholders, 

We hereby submit the Financial Statements to your votes with good wishes for our company and country in the forthcoming years 
and we assure you of our highest consideration. 

Respectfully, 

July 14, 2016

İnan Kıraç
Chairman of the Board
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Directors are taken into account during development of such systems. Board of Directors of Karsan Otomotiv adopts a prudent and 
cautious risk management approach and manages and represents the Company with its strategic decisions, giving priority to the 
Company’s long-term interests and maintaining a balance among risks, growth and earnings.

b. Information on Proceedings and Reports of the Committee on Early Detection and Management of Risks, if such 
committee has been created
Karsan Otomotiv Risk Management and Reporting is carried out in coordination with various departments under the leadership of the 
Corporate Risk Management and Internal Auditing Department operating under the Assistant General Director’s Office for Financial 
and Administrative Affairs. Risks are questioned and assessed in detail through periodical reports and meetings. The Committee on 
Early Detection of Risks is composed of members selected among from the members of board of directors, and this Committee 
issued 6 reports to us in 2015. The Committee on Early Detection of Risks makes recommendations and proposals related to 
early detection, assessment of all kinds of strategic, financial, operational, and other risks that may influence the Company, and 
calculation of the impact and probability of such risks, management and reporting of risks in accordance with the corporate risk 
taking profile, taking necessary measures, considering these risks in decision mechanisms, and development and integration of 
efficient internal control systems.

VII. INFORMATION THAT HAS TO BE PROVIDED TO SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE LEGISLATION ON RELATED PARTY 
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES OF SUCH TRANSACTIONS, AND CONCLUSION OF THE 2015 AFFILIATES REPORT

In accordance with Article 199 of the Turkish Commercial Code No 6102, which came into force on July 1, 2012, the Board of Directors 
of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. is required to prepare a report within the first three months of the financial year on relations 
with the controlling shareholder and companies affiliated to the controlling shareholder, and include the conclusion of such a report 
in its annual report. Information on Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş.’s transactions with the related parties are included in 
footnote 5 to the financial statements.

The Report prepared by the Board of Directors of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. dated March 10,  2016 provides that “It is 
concluded that in all transactions made in 2015 between Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. and its controlling shareholder and 
the controlling shareholder’s affiliates, an appropriate counter performance was required according to conditions and circumstances 
known to us at the time such transaction was made and there was no measure taken or avoided which would cause the company 
to incur any damage, and there was no transaction or measure that needed to be compensated.”

Pursuant to the Article 10 (Common and Continuous Transactions) of the CMB Corporate Governance Directive (II-17.1),

It was foreseen that
• the rate of purchases planned to be made from Heksagon Mühendislik ve Tasarım A.Ş. in 2015 to the cost of sales in 2014 financial 
statements, and
• the rate of sales transactions planned to be made with Karsan Otomotiv Sanayi Mamulleri Pazarlama A.Ş. in 2015 to the amount of 
revenues in 2014 financial statements

would exceed 10%, therefore, the Board of Directors prepared a report and the conclusion section of this report was disclosed on the 
Public Disclosure Platform on June 26, 2015. In the event it is foreseen that the transactions to be made in 2016 will reach the ratios 
specified in this Communiqué, a report will be prepared and disclosed on the PDP in compliance with the legislation.
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SECTION II - SHAREHOLDERS

2.1. Investor Relations Department
Investor Relations Department directly reports to Mr. İsmail Hakkı Güralp, the Deputy General Manager of Financial Affairs. The report 
prepared on activities that have been carried out was submitted to the Board of Directors on March 10, 2016.  

(*) She has become entitled to obtain a license, and the license approval process is pending.

Investor Relations Department aims providing accurate, timely and consistent information to existing and potential investors on 
the Company, decreasing the Company’s cost of capital by complying with Corporate Governance Principles, and ensuring two-way 
communication between Board of Directors and the capital markets participants. The Department works in coordination with relevant 
Company units to immediately respond to questions and inquiries of shareholders, excluding confidential information and trade 
secrets. In 2015, 46 questions were received in total, 4 by e-mail and 42 by telephone, which were replied by writing and verbally 
in accordance with the principle of ‘equality in information’. Furthermore, 13 meetings were held with Corporate Investors, and 19 
meetings with analysts.

The Company Disclosure Policy requires treating all capital market participants equally in terms of exercise of their right to be 
informed and to review; and making announcements simultaneously and with the same content. In case of occurrence of any 
event, which may affect the exercise of shareholders’ rights, the Company immediately makes an announcement to the public on 
the Public Disclosure Platform; and any information that is provided is based on the content already disclosed to the public. Such 
information and disclosures are made available to investors up-to-date on the corporate website.

Investor Relations Department Contact information:
Telephone No  : +90 224 484 21 80
Fax No   : +90 224 484 21 69
Email   : yatirimciiliskileri@karsan.com.tr

2.2. Exercise of the Shareholders’ Rights to be Informed
Taking into account that each shareholder is entitled to investigate and receive information; when any shareholder requested 
information other than the information we have presented and disclosed during the year, the Investor Relations Department assessed 
whether the requested information constituted trade secrets or not and whether its disclosure would comply with the CMB legislation, 
and responded in writing and verbally. Additionally, our shareholders who attended the last General Assembly Meeting were informed 
about financial and administrative issues.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES COMPLIANCE REPORT

1. Corporate Governance Principles Compliance Statement

Within the context of Capital Markets Board’s (CMB) Decision numbered 2/35 dated January 27, 2014 and CMB’s Corporate Governance 
Communiqué II-17.1, the base format for companies obliged to prepare Corporate Governance Principles Compliance Report has 
been re-determined, and our Company has prepared Corporate Governance Principles Compliance Report for 2015 in accordance 
with the said format.

In this context, our Company has complied with mandatory principles of CMB Corporate Governance Principles and put its maximum 
efforts to comply with non-compulsory principles, and compliance efforts are on-going. Below are the major Corporate Governance 
Principles that are not mandatory under the relevant regulation, and with which full compliance has not been achieved yet. The 
principles that have not been implemented yet have not created any conflict of interests between the stakeholders.

- As regards principle no. 1.3.10, a cap was determined for donations and contributions at the General Assembly Meeting, and the 
shareholders were informed on donations and contributions of the previous year with a separate item on the agenda. However, no 
separate policy has been drafted related to donations and contributions, and it is planned to draft such a policy in the coming period 
in accordance with the needs of our Company, and to submit such policy at the General Assembly Meeting.
- As regards principle no. 1.5.2., minority rights have not been defined in Articles of Association to those holding less than one in 
twentieth of the capital, and the rights that are granted comply with the general practice stipulated in the Turkish Commercial Code.
- As regards principle no. 4.2.8., the Company is insured against any damage that could be incurred as a result of fault of the 
members of board of directors when performing their duties, and the insurance amount is less than 25% of the capital of the 
Company.
- As regards principle no. 4.3.9., there is only one female member among 9 members of the board of directors of our Company, and 
our Company has not yet determined a target rate, provided that it is not less than 25% and a target time for membership of women 
in the board of directors and formed a policy for this target.
- As regards principle no. 4.4.5, Articles of Association of the Company describes how meetings of the Board of Directors are held, and 
there is no other internal regulations issued solely for this purpose.
- As regards principle no. 4.4.7, members of Board of Directors are not restricted from assuming other duties outside the Company 
since their experience in the industry contributes significantly to our Company.
- As regards principle no. 4.5.5., some of the members of board of directors are assigned to more than one committee based on 
their expertise and experience.
- As regards principle no. 4.6.5., remunerations provided to Members of the board of directors and executives with administrative 
responsibilities are disclosed to the public in annual reports. Payments that are made are disclosed to the public collectively in 
parallel to the general practice.

Deniz Özer

Burcu Günhar

Investor Relations 
Administrator

Investor Relations 
Responsible

Capital Markets Activities License, Level 3 (License No. 
204658) Corporate Governance Rating License (License 
No. 700469); Derivatives License (License No: 305184)

Capital Markets Activities License, Level 3 (License No: 
208752); Corporate Governance Rating License (License 
No: 701698); Derivative Instruments License (*)

Investor Relations Department Title License
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Proposals made by the shareholders during the negotiation of the agenda items were also discussed, and the agenda items were 
negotiated and decided as a result of the voting in accordance with these proposals. At the end of the general assembly, the 
questions asked by the shareholders were discussed pursuant to the CMB legislation and the shareholders were responded to as 
appropriate. Therefore, there are no questions, which could not be answered at the General Assembly Meeting and therefore directed 
to the Investor Relations Department. The questions asked at the General Assembly Meetings and answers given to these questions 
are posted on the corporate website.

No shareholder proposed any agenda item in writing while the agenda for the general assembly meetings held during the period 
was being drafted.

The minutes of the meeting were published on the same day on the PDP in the form of a material event disclosure, on the Electronic 
General Assembly System of the CRA and were also made available at the Company headquarters to be reviewed by shareholders.
The latest version of the Company’s Articles of Association, Agenda of the General Assembly Meeting and the Lists of Attendants for 
the last 5 years are available on the investor relations section of our website.

In the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting for 2014 operations, which was held on August 14, 2015, shareholders were informed about 
the following issues.

• The total sum donated and granted within the period, and its users (with a separate agenda item);
• The fact that there are no guarantees, pledges or mortgages created by the Company in favor of third parties
• The fact that shareholders controlling the management, members of the Board of Directors, executives with administrative 
responsibilities and their spouses and second degree relatives/kin did not perform any transaction in 2014 that might cause a 
conflict of interest with the Company or its affiliates and/or perform any commercial transaction within the field of activity of the 
Company or its affiliates on their behalf or on behalf of others, or become a partner with unlimited liability in any company engaged 
in the same kind of trade with the Company (pursuant to Article 1.3.6 of the CMB Corporate Governance Principles).
• Stakeholders Policy
  
2.4. Voting Rights and Minority Rights
The Company’s Articles of Association do not feature a privilege relating to the exercise of voting rights. There is no cross-shareholding 
relationship between the companies.

In the General Assembly Meeting, voting rights are exercised in accordance with the rules on representation and voting (Articles 20 
and 21 of the Articles of Association). Proxy voting is carried out in accordance with the regulations of the Capital Markets Board.
Additionally, within the context of secondary legislation enacted under Article 1527 of the Turkish Commercial Code No. 6102; the general 
assembly meetings are also carried out on Electronic General Assembly Meeting System (EGKS) provided by CRA simultaneously with 
the actual meeting.

Company Articles of Association provides that the exercise of minority rights requires representation of five percent of the capital. 
In our Company’s Articles of Association, Group A preferred Shareholders have privilege of nominating 5 members to the Board 
of Directors consisting of 7 members and 6 members to the Board of Directors consisting of 9 members. One of the members 
nominated by Group A Shareholders is determined according to rules on independence that are defined in principles of Corporate 
Governance Principles published by the Capital Markets Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES COMPLIANCE REPORT

Any development, which may affect exercise of shareholder rights, is announced with material event disclosures, right exercise 
statements and quarterly reports disclosed on the Public Disclosure Platform. All disclosures that have to be made to shareholders 
according to the applicable CMB legislation were also made available to the investors on the corporate website www.karsan.com.tr.

Although there are no special provisions in the Articles of Association of the Company regarding the right to demand a special audit, 
in accordance with Article 438 et seq. of the Turkish Commercial Code, this right is available to shareholders, notwithstanding whether 
it exists within the Articles of Association or not. Our Company is managed in accordance with the rules of transparency, and all 
potential requests from shareholders are evaluated with utmost care. The shareholders did not demand appointment of a special 
auditor throughout the year.

Company operations are periodically audited by the Independent External Auditor (Başaran Nas Bağımsız Denetim ve Serbest 
Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş.) elected by the General Assembly Meeting for 1 year upon the proposal of the Audit Committee and the 
decision of the Board of Directors in accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code and the CMB legislation.

2.3. General Assembly Meetings
During the period, the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting for 2014 operations was held on August 14, 2015 at the Company 
headquarters. The meeting quorum was reached at the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting with representation of 68% of the shares.

Announcement of the meeting;
• Following our Board of Directors’ meeting where the date of the General Assembly Meeting was decided, a material event disclosure 
was made on the Public Disclosure Platform (PDP) to notify of the date, venue, time and agenda of the meeting in due period; at 
least 3 weeks before the General Assembly Meeting. Announcements inviting shareholders to the meeting (agenda, copy of proxy 
statement) were published on the Public Disclosure Platform, Turkish Trade Registry Gazette, a national newspaper (Milliyet) and a 
local newspaper (Bursa Olay) as well as on the corporate web site: www.karsan.com.tr.

• Announcement of the general assembly meeting, and other announcements and disclosures required by the Company under the 
applicable legislation were posted on the corporate website in addition to the General Assembly Meeting Information Memorandum 
prepared according to mandatory Article 1.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Principles, and the Material Event Disclosures made on 
the Public Disclosure Platform. The General Assembly Meeting Information Memorandum was published on the Electronic General 
Assembly System of the CRA in addition to the corporate website.

• The general assembly meeting was held at the Company headquarters, in a room with a seating capacity of 200 people. In order to 
provide the necessary information, Executive Member, and one of the Independent Members of the Board of Directors of the Company, 
CEO, Assistant General Manager responsible for Financial Affairs, individuals responsible for preparation of financial statements, 
and Company auditor attended the General Assembly Meeting. The General Assembly Meeting was held publicly, and a group of 
employees also attended the meeting.

The Balance Sheet, Income Statement and Annual Report of the Board of Directors, accompanied by the Corporate Governance 
Principles Compliance Report, Auditor’s Report, Independent Audit Firm’s Report, , agenda items, and information memorandum 
including explanations required for compliance with the Corporate Governance Principles and the Capital Markets Legislation were 
made available to shareholders at the Company headquarters three weeks before the date of the General Assembly Meeting, and 
availability of these documents was also mentioned in the announcements made relating to the General Assembly Meeting.
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Important highlights from our website can be outlined as follows:

• General and detailed information regarding the field of activity
• Vision, mission and main strategies
• Evaluation by the senior executives
• Within the context of Corporate Governance Principles,
 • Trade registry information,
 • Shareholding structure,
 • Members of the Board of Directors
 • Committees of the Board of Directors and their working principles
 • Information related to preferred shares,
 • Articles of Association,
 • Corporate Governance Principles Compliance Report
 • Credit rating
 • Reports on the General Assembly Meeting (Agenda of the general assembly meetings, information memorandums,
   minutes of meetings and lists of attendants, questions asked at the general assembly meeting and answers to that 
   questions, general assembly internal directive),
 • Proxy voting form,
 • Bonds issue
 • Prospectus and IPO circulars
 • Purchase and sale transactions of the members of the Board of Directors
 • Policies and Rules on Corporate Governance (Disclosure Policy, Stakeholders Policy, Remuneration Policy, Dividend   
   Policy, Ethical Rules)
• Reports
 • Current and past Annual Reports,
 • Current and past periodic financial statements and Independent Auditor’s Reports,
• Current and past Material Event Disclosures,
• Frequently asked questions,
• Links related to stock and stock performance
• Contact information for investor relations
• Press releases

Our website contains the necessary information required under Article 2.1 of the Corporate Governance Principles as the investor 
relations section of this website contains Articles of Association, Annual Reports, Corporate Governance Principles Compliance Report, 
Independent Audit Report, Minutes of General Assembly Meetings, and Information Memorandums for General Assembly Meetings 
open for the evaluation of stakeholders.

3.2. Annual Reports
Annual reports are prepared in accordance with international standards, Capital Markets legislation and the legislation in force, 
and include information specified in the CMB Corporate Governance Principles. Annual Reports approved by the Board of Directors 
are disclosed to the public in Turkish and English languages when posted on the corporate website. Printed copies can also be 
obtained from the Investor Relations Department. Our Company ensures that the Board of Directors’ Interim Reports are prepared in 
accordance with the CMB Corporate Governance Principles. The annual reports of our Company prepared since 2004 are available 
on the corporate website.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES COMPLIANCE REPORT

Due care is shown for the exercise of minority rights in our Company. No criticism or complaint has been received by our Company 
in this respect in 2015.

2.5. Dividend Rights
There are no privileges regarding participation in the Company’s profit and distribution of dividends.

The Company’s Dividend Policy was submitted for approval at the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting of 2013 held on June 27, 2014 
as agenda item no. 8 and was disclosed to the public when posted on the corporate website. 

“Dividend Policy
There are no privileges relating to participation in the Company’s profit and distribution of dividends. Our Company distributes dividends 
in accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code, Capital Markets Legislation, Tax Legislation and other applicable legislation as well 
as the provisions of the Articles of Association governing dividend distribution. When deciding on distributing the dividends, applicable 
regulations, financial position, long-term strategy, investment and financing policies, profitability and cash flow of our Company 
are taken into account, and our shareholders are distributed maximum amount of dividend in cash and/or in the form of bonus 
shares to the extent that the net distributable period profit calculated according to Capital Markets Regulations, is covered in our 
statutory records. It is aimed to perform dividend distribution in maximum 3 months after the relevant General Assembly Meeting, 
at the latest the end of the accounting period in which the distribution decision is made, and the dividend distribution date shall be 
determined at the General Assembly Meeting. Dividends may be paid in equal or different installments in compliance with applicable 
legislation, provided that it is decided at the same General Assembly Meeting in which dividend distribution is decided. Dividends 
shall be distributed pro rata to all of the shares existing as of the distribution date, notwithstanding date of issue and acquisition of 
such shares. The Board of Directors aims to take all measures in respect of place, time and method to ensure the transfer of annual 
profit to shareholders within the shortest time possible, in accordance with the legislation. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of 
the Company, the Board of Directors may distribute advance dividends, provided that it is authorized at the General Assembly Meeting, 
and Capital Markets Regulations are complied with.”

A consolidated loss of TRY 70,148,979 realized as a result of 2015 operations of our Company, and this loss was deferred to the 
following year. Therefore, there is no dividend to be distributed. 

2.6. Transfer of Shares
On the grounds that the shares of our Company are bearer shares, there are no provisions within the Articles of Association that 
restrict share transfer.  

SECTION III - DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

3.1. Corporate Website and its Contents
Our Company has a dynamic and up-to-date web site accessible at www.karsan.com.tr. The majority of the content of the website 
has an English version, and it is aimed to complete translation of the entire website into English in the future. The website contains 
various information about our Company that may be requested, and there is also an “Investor Relations” section which is updated 
from time to time according to current events and covers the following issues as prescribed by the CMB.
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4.3. Human Resources Policy
In every step of production and management, our Company adopts a “People-Oriented Approach” and is committed to growing 
together with its employees, customers and shareholders and undertakes that;

• It will meet the workforce needs in accordance with the existing and future human resources planning
• It will create a transparent and reliable communication environment which supports teamwork and enhances corporate awareness
• It will invest in human resources, adopting practices aiming continuous development in line with Company strategies and objectives  
  and monitor this development
• It will ensure adoption of a fair performance system where employees are recognized and rewarded
• It will continuously improve satisfaction levels in line with expectations of the employees and the Company, and measure 
  satisfaction perceptions of employees and performance indicators
• It will assess all processes related to employees in an integrated manner, structure, report, and continuously develop process 
  management
• It will launch and monitor innovative practices and systems with a solution- and result-oriented approach
.
Accordingly, below are the basic competencies expected from our associates;

• Communication skills
• Stress management and Inner Motivation
• Being Result-Oriented
• Teamwork and Cooperation
• Time Management and Prioritization
• Taking Initiatives
• Corporate Awareness
• Cost and Efficiency Consciousness
• Analytical Thinking
• Process Knowledge
• Negotiation Skills

The representative appointed for employee relations is the Human Resources Manager Ms. Yasemin Şahin..

JOB DESCRIPTION:
• Contributing to the development of the Company’s human resources policy in order to increase dynamism, communication, 
performance and promote continuity in Karsan, ensuring that this policy is adopted by Company employees and implemented 
effectively; providing expertise and acting as a pioneer in the implementation of these policies and continuously improving them, as 
he/she is directly responsible for the management of the Company’s human resources.
• Working on various human resources topics, including staffing analysis, job analysis, remuneration, performance evaluation, 
career development, recognition and rewarding, measurement and evaluation of employee satisfaction, creating funds for needed 
employees and promoting the corporate culture.
• With respect to Personnel and Administrative Affairs; carrying out recruitment, personnel affairs, accrual & assessment procedures 
and remuneration and fringe benefits, coordinating security, cleaning, building maintenance, communications (cargo, mail), 
switchboard, social activities, sports, and protocol events for improving employee satisfaction.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES COMPLIANCE REPORT

SECTION IV - STAKEHOLDERS

4.1. Informing the Stakeholders
Our Company is committed to abiding by the principles of equality, accuracy, impartiality, and accurate timing in relation to informing 
its shareholders and stakeholders. Accordingly, announcements and disclosures are made timely, accurately, completely, and in a 
comprehensible and accessible manner to ensure that the rights and interests of our Company are protected.

Our stakeholders are informed with material event disclosures, minutes of the general assembly meetings, interim and annual 
reports of Board of Directors, financial reports that are posted on the Public Disclosure Platform and the corporate website. An open 
communication approach is adopted, and accordingly, employees are informed on the objectives and activities of the Company in 
the assessment and information meetings.

Karsan Assistant General Manager of Finance and Investor Relations Department are responsible for informing the stakeholders in 
compliance with the Disclosure Policy of our Company, and our Disclosure Policy is posted on the corporate website: www.karsan.
com.tr. The Board of Directors is authorized and responsible for following up and developing the Disclosure Policy.

Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. Ethical Rules was submitted to the shareholders in the 2011 Ordinary General Assembly Meeting 
held in June 2012 under Agenda Item No. 17, and it is also available on the corporate website. Duties and Working Principles of the Corporate 
Governance Committee were determined with the decision of the Board of Directors following the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting of 
Shareholders and posted on the corporate website and the Public Disclosure Platform, and accordingly it is the responsibility of the 
committee to create the necessary mechanisms to inform the stakeholders of any transaction of the Company which is in violation of 
the applicable legislation and against ethical rules. It is among the duties and responsibilities of all executives and in particular the 
Human Resources Department, to ensure that each employee adopts and is committed to the Ethical Rules. All Karsan employees 
including members of the Board of Directors, Board of Auditors and executives are obliged to comply with the Ethical Rules.

Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. Stakeholders Policy was submitted to the shareholders in the 2014 Ordinary General Assembly 
Meeting held in August 2015 under Agenda Item No. 16, and this policy is also available on the corporate website.

4.2. Participation of the Stakeholders in the Management
Articles of Association of our Company do not contain a provision, which allows participation of the stakeholders in the management 
of the Company. However, there are independent members of the Board of Directors to ensure that rights of the minority shareholders 
and other stakeholders are observed equally in the decision-making process.

An Employee Satisfaction Survey is conducted to learn about the expectations of the employees from the company and the 
management, and suggestions made by employees for improvement of the business and working conditions are evaluated. Also, 
employees are encouraged to suggest new improvements during the internal communication and information meetings.

In the weekly coordination meetings, the opinions of all medium and senior level managers are considered in decision-making. 
The lean management system adopted Company-wide allows employees to make and implement proposals, and the proposals of 
employees are collected for potential improvements. Various meetings are held with the customers, suppliers, unions and potential 
and current investors.

Our shareholders’ right to participate in the management is protected in compliance with the applicable legislation and articles of association.
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SECTION V - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

5.1. Composition and Proceedings of the Board of Directors

Résumés of the Members of the Board of Directors and the CEO, together with positions assumed by Directors outside the Company 
(inside/outside the group) are given in Annex 1. Additionally, our Independent Members’ declarations of independence are included 
in Annex 2.
 
The Corporate Governance Committee performs functions of the Nomination Committee in compliance with the Corporate Governance 
Communiqué. Nadir ÖZŞAHİN and Mehmet Altan SUNGAR were nominated as the Independent Board Members by the Corporate 
Governance Committee, and the report indicating whether candidates meet independence criteria was submitted to the Board of 
Directors on July 21, 2015. In line with the Board of Directors resolution no. 2015/32 of July 21, 2015, together with the announcement 
of the general assembly meeting on the Public Disclosure Platform, Nadir ÖZŞAHİN and Mehmet Altan SUNGAR were nominated to the 
Board of Directors as Independent Members to the approval of the General Assembly Meeting, and résumés of the candidates were 
included in the General Assembly Meeting Information Memorandum.

In the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting of the Company held on August 14, 2015, Nadir Özşahin and Mehmet Altan SUNGAR were 
elected as the independent Board Members.

Our Company is working on determining a target rate provided that it is not less than 25% and a target time for membership of 
women in the board of directors and forming a policy for this target, as specified in the CMB Corporate Governance Principles. 
    
5.2. Operating Principles of the Board of Directors
The agenda of the meeting is drafted following a consultation among the Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Executive member of the 
Board of Directors and the Company’s General Manager. Suggestions by members are taken into account. Agenda items and topics 
regarding the resolutions of the Board of Directors are drafted periodically or whenever necessary.

The Board of Directors convened 20 times in 2015 and passed a total of 42 resolutions in these meetings. Board members participated 
in a majority of the Board meetings. Invitation to and convention of Board of Directors occur whenever it is necessary for the Company 
business.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES COMPLIANCE REPORT

• With respect to industrial relations; taking appropriate actions to ensure a work environment complying with occupational health 
  and safety legislation; and performing procedures related to personnel movements as well as relations with the union;
• With respect to training; determining, planning, evaluating employee training policies related to human resources; contributing to 
  the development and performance of a training master plan; taking part in the establishment of relations with training organizations; 
  developing in-house training and communication activities.

Our Company has not received any complaints about discrimination. As part of our process-based organization, department 
managers carry out and inform the employees about the distribution of tasks. There is a performance evaluation and a subsequent 
rewarding scheme, and any changes to this scheme are communicated to employees.

4.4.  Ethical Rules and Social Responsibility
Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. Ethical Rules was submitted to the shareholders in the 2011 Ordinary General Assembly 
Meeting held in June 2012 under Agenda Item No. 17, and it is also available on the corporate website.

In January 2004, Karsan Otomotiv San. ve Tic. A.S. obtained an ISO 14001 Environmental Management System Certificate for the first 
time, and its ISO 14001 certificate was extended until 2017 with zero defects identified in the inspection conducted in 2015, which 
ensured sustainability of the certificate. Karsan established an Environmental Management System in order to control and minimize 
the environmental effects, and to continuously improve environmental performance through compliance with all environmental 
laws and regulations in order to protect the environment and ensure its permanence. With its Environmental Management System 
efforts, KARSAN aims to reduce the use of energy and natural resources, and to minimize the amount of waste by supporting recovery 
operations. After physical and chemical treatment, the wastewater is sent to the HOSAB Centralized Sewage Treatment Plant, to 
be reduced and kept at a level below the receiver’s discharge standards, and the output water analysis and controls are made 
regularly by the competent authorities. The waste management system ensures that the wastes requiring recycling, recovery and 
disposal resulting from production and other activities are collected separately, and some of them are contributed to the national 
economy, and those requiring disposal are treated in accordance with the regulations without causing environmental pollution. Our 
waste management system, with zero landfill waste, is continuously improved by setting new objectives and targets, consistent 
with Karsan Otomotiv A.Ş. Environmental Policy, to reduce the use of energy and its new environmental impacts. Karsan aspires to 
enhance the environmental consciousness of the neighboring community around its head office, the supplier industries and all 
employees, and organizes trainings and meetings for raising awareness, with an emphasis on continuous training. In line with its 
Environmental Policy, Karsan is committed to protecting and sustaining the environment by complying with all environmental laws 
and regulations, keeping environmental impact under control, reducing adverse effects, continuously improving environmental 
performance, increasing environmental awareness and, by reaching “Operational Excellence” in all production operations, leaving a 
clean environment behind for future generations.

No action has been filed against Karsan due to environmental damages. Karsan Otomotiv successfully passed the integrated 
environmental audits conducted by the Provincial Directorate of Environment and Urbanization in 2015 and received Environmental 
Permits for both of its plants and established its Environmental Management System.

İnan KIRAÇ

Klod NAHUM

Jan NAHUM

Nadir ÖZŞAHİN 

Mehmet Altan SUNGAR

İpek KIRAÇ

Oğuz Nuri BABÜROĞLU

Giancarlo BOSCHETTI

Antonio BENE

Chairman - Non-Executive

Vice-Chairman - Executive

Board Member - Executive Director-Executive

Board Member - Independent

Board Member - Independent

Board Member - Non-Executive

Board Member - Non-Executive

Board Member - Non-Executive

Board Member - Executive

Board of Directors Position - Executive/Non-Executive/Independent Member
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5.3. Number, Composition and Independence of the Committees Formed in the Board of Directors

Duties and Working Principles of the Committees of the Board of Directors were disclosed to the public when posted on the Public 
Disclosure Platform and in the investor relations section on the corporate website at www.karsan.com.tr.

In this financial period, the Audit Committee worked in accordance with the CMB legislation and its Duties and Working Principles 
in relation to selection of an independent audit firm, disclosure of financial statements to the public, and issued 5 reports. In this 
financial period, the Corporate Governance Committee worked in accordance with the CMB legislation and its Duties and Working 
Principles in relation to preparation of Corporate Governance Compliance Report, supervision of activities of Investor Relations 
Department, and nomination of candidates to become Independent Board Members as a part of its function as the Nomination 
Committee; and carrying out remuneration committee activities as a part of its function as the Remuneration Committee, and 
issued 5 reports. During this period, the Committee on Early Detection of Risks worked in accordance with the CMB legislation and its 
Duties and Working Principles, and issued 6 reports.

Since our Company is in the Third Group within the context of the Corporate Governance Communiqué, it is sufficient to have 2 
Independent Members in the Board of Directors. Therefore, our Company has 2 Independent Members in the Board of Directors. Since 
the head of each committee must be an independent board member, Mr. Nadir Özşahin is the head the Audit Committee and, the 
Committee on Early Detection of Risks, whereas Mehmet Altan Sungar is the head of the Corporate Governance Committee.

(*) Head of the Investor Relations Department was assigned to the Corporate Governance Committee under Article 11 of the Communiqué No. SPK II-17.1.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES COMPLIANCE REPORT

Meetings of the Board of Directors are carried out according to Article 10 of Articles of Association of the Company.

The meetings are held at the Company headquarters. However, with the decision of the Board of Directors, the meeting may also be 
held at a different venue. Any person, entitled to participate in a meeting of the board of directors may participate in these meetings 
using electronic media under Article 1527 of the Turkish Commercial Code. In accordance with the Communiqué on Meetings Held 
via Electronic Media in Trade Companies excluding General Assembly Meeting of Shareholders, the Company may establish an 
Electronic Meeting System which would allow right holders to participate and vote via electronic media, or purchase such services. 
In the meetings, right holders shall be able to exercise their rights granted in the applicable legislation using the system, which is 
established, or services that are purchased as described in this provision, in accordance with the Communiqué. At the meetings, each 
member shall have one vote. This voting right shall be exercised in person. It shall be possible to participate in the meeting of the 
board of directors using any technology allowing remote access. Unless any member requests an actual meeting, the board may 
decide on a proposal made by a member when other members agree in writing. The quorum for meetings of the Board of Directors 
shall be minimum 4 (four) members if the Board is composed of 7 (seven) members, and minimum 5 (five) members if the Board 
is composed of 9 (nine) members, and decisions shall be made with the majority of participants in the meeting. In case of equality 
of the votes, the relevant topic shall be postponed to the next meeting. If the votes are again equal, the proposal is deemed to be 
rejected. In the board of directors, votes shall be used as ‘accept’ or ‘reject’.”

Telephone and/or e-mail are used to invite the members to a meeting. The Executive Board Member is responsible for drafting the 
agenda of meetings of Board of Directors, informing the Members, and ensuring communication.

So far no necessity for a separate secretariat has arisen.

During the period, no counter votes have been exercised because of difference of opinion.

Any question directed by any member during the meeting is recorded in the resolution depending on the diversity of the topics, and 
is not recorded in a Q&A form since the format of resolutions of the Board of Directors’ does not allow to do so. The members of 
the Board of Directors are not granted weighted voting right and/or right to veto; everyone has equal vote. Any damage that could be 
incurred as a result of fault of the members of board of directors when performing their duties is covered by an “Executive Liability 
Insurance”, and the total amount of the insurance is USD 40 million. There is also an additional coverage of USD 1,000,000 for each 
of the non-executive Board Members.

Nadir ÖZŞAHİN

Mehmet Altan SUNGAR

Mehmet Altan SUNGAR 

Oğuz Nuri BABÜROĞLU

Deniz ÖZER (*)

Nadir ÖZŞAHİN 

Klod NAHUM

Oğuz Nuri BABÜROĞLU

Chairman of Committee – Independent Board Member

Member of Committee – Independent Board Member

Chairman of Committee – Independent Board Member

Member of Committee – Non-Executive

Member of Committee – Executive

Chairman of Committee – Independent Board Member

Member of Committee – Executive

Member of Committee – Non-Executive

Members of the Audit Committee

Members of the Corporate 
Governance Committee

Members of the Committee on 
Early Detection of Risks 

Position in Committee – Powers 
(Executive/Non-Executive/Independent Member)

Position in Committee – Powers 
(Executive/Non-Executive/Independent Member)

Position in Committee – Powers 
(Executive/Non-Executive/Independent Member)
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ANNEX 1 – Résumés of the Members of the Board of Directors and the CEO

İnan Kıraç – Chairman
İnan Kıraç began his career as a Sales Officer in 1961 at Ormak A.Ş., a division of Koç Group. In 1966, he was promoted as General 
Manager of Otoyol, the manufacturing company of Fiat trucks and midibuses. He later became the General Manager of Tofaş Oto 
Ticaret, the sales and distribution company of Fiat cars produced in Turkey. Kıraç was then promoted to Vice Presidency and later on, 
Presidency of the Koç Holding Automotive Group. He served as the CEO of Koç Holding until his retirement in 1998. İnan Kıraç was privy 
to every development in the Turkish automotive industry and left his signature on many great automotive factories.

Klod Nahum – Vice Chairman
Klod Nahum joined the Koç Group after he graduated from the London University of Kings College with a Masters degree in automotive 
engineering. He began his career as a Technical Maintenance Officer in 1969 at Tofaş Oto A.Ş., a subsidiary of Koç Group. In 1980, he 
moved to Switzerland as the President of the Kofisa Trading Co., where he began forming Koç Group’s other foreign trading companies. 
He was appointed to the Vice Presidency of the International Trade Group in 1991 and was promoted to Presidency in 1997. Klod 
Nahum was appointed to the Presidency of Koç Foreign Trade Group in 1997, and during his term of office he increased total turnover 
of the Koç Foreign Trade Group to USD 1.6 billion, which was only USD 10 million in 1980. He is the founding partner of Kıraça Group 
of Companies.

Jan Nahum – Executive Director
Jan Nahum graduated from the Royal College of Art with a degree in Automotive Designing after his engineering education in Robert 
College and joined the Koç Group in 1973 as a project engineer in Otosan. He worked in different positions in automotive companies 
of the Koç Group until 2002. He served as the General Manager of Otokar Otomotiv ve Savunma Sanayi A.Ş. between 1984 - 1994, the 
General Manager of Tofaş between 1994 – 1997, and the Head of the International Business Development Department in FIAT S.P.A., 
and finally he worked as the General Manager of Petrol Ofisi between 2005 and 2007, and he is now the Founding Partner of Hexagon 
Danışmanlık A.Ş. 

Giancarlo Boschetti – Board Member
After studying mechanical engineering and economics, Giancarlo Boschetti started to work for the Fiat Group in 1964. After serving 
in different positions in the Fiat Group for almost 40 years, he became the Global CEO of Iveco S.p.A. between 1991 and 2001, and 
the Global CEO of Fiat Auto S.p.A. between 2002 and 2003. Giancarlo Boschetti continues to serve as a board member in many 
international companies.

Antonio Bene – Board Member
Antonio Bene trained as a mechanical engineer started working in Alfa Romeo S.p.A. in 1972. He served as Mirafiori Plant Director, 
Platform Director, and Industrial Director at Fiat Auto S.p.A. Later, he served as the Industrial General Manager in Ferrari S.P.A., Plant 
Manager in Tofaş Türk Otomobil Fabrikası A.Ş. between 1998-2002 and as Tofaş CEO between 2002 - 2004, and Senior Vice President 
and Global Manufacturing Director in Fiat Auto S.p.A. between 2002-2005.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES COMPLIANCE REPORT

5.4. Risk Management and Internal Control Mechanism
The Corporate Risk Management Department, established in 2014, was restructured as the Corporate Risk Management and 
Internal Auditing Department as of October 1, 2015. Risks that are identified as a result of activities carried out by the Corporate Risk 
Management and Internal Auditing Department in accordance with a plan approved by the Committee on Early Detection of Risks, are 
evaluated taking the corporate risk taking profile into account, and organization of an effective internal control system structuring is 
aimed with action plans that are created as a result of risk oriented internal auditing activities.

Furthermore, auditing activities are carried out in the group by the parent company Kıraça Holding A.Ş, in coordination with the 
competent Department of Karsan.

5.5. Strategic Objectives of the Company

MISSION: Identifying transportation needs, and designing, producing and offering necessary systems, products, and services to 
meet these needs. 

VISION: Limitless Transportation Solutions

The General Manager announces the corporate mission and vision to the public via various media channels and the corporate 
website.

Strategic objectives identified by the General Manager in consultation with the management team in line with the vision and the 
mission, are announced to the employees. Every year, the chairman of the board of directors gives an overview of the operations and 
performance of the Company in the previous year in the annual report.  

5.6. Financial Rights
The Remuneration Policy for Members of the Board of Directors and Executives with Administrative Responsibilities was submitted 
to the attention of the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting dated June 27, 2014 as a separate agenda item and shareholders were 
given an opportunity to comment on the policy, and the remuneration policy was also published on the corporate website. The total 
amount of rights, benefits and fees provided to the members of the Board of Directors and Executives in 2015 was TRY 6,784,211 and 
this amount is given in footnotes to financial statements, and these footnotes are included in the annual report and on the corporate 
website. At the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting, held on August 14, 2015, it was decided that as of the first day of the month 
following the General Assembly Meeting, Independent Members of the Board of Directors would be paid TRY 6,000 (gross) per month 
and other members of the Board of Directors would be paid TRY 4,000 (gross) per month.

The Company did not lend any funds or grant any loans to any Board Member or Executives or allow the use of credit through third 
parties in the form of an individual loan or issue any guarantees such as a surety.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES COMPLIANCE REPORT

İpek Kıraç - Board Member
İpek Kıraç graduated from Koç High School in 2002 and received her undergraduate degree from Brown University’s Biology Department 
in 2007, and is continuing her graduate studies at the same university in the field of Public Health. İpek Kıraç is a Founding Member of 
the Suna and İnan Kıraç Foundation, and also a member of the Management Committee of Koç High School, Board Member in Temel 
Ticaret ve Yatırım A.Ş., Member of Board of Trustees at TEGEV, Board Member in Amerikan Hastanesi Sağlık Hizmetleri Ticaret A.Ş. and 
Board Member in Zer Merkezi Hizmetler A.Ş. As of March 2012 İpek Kıraç was appointed to CEO for Sirena Marine Denizcilik ve Ticaret A.Ş.

Nadir Özşahin  – Independent Board Member
Nadir Özşahin graduated from İstanbul University Faculty of Economics in 1965. He started working as an accountant at the Ministry 
of Finance in 1965 and worked in this position until 1974. In 1974, he switched to the private sector and served as the Coordinator, Vice 
President and President of Audit and Financial Group in Koç Holding A.Ş. He retired in 2003. Nadir Özşahin worked as certified financial 
advisor in 2004-2005 and a Board Member of Döktaş Döküm A.Ş. between 2005 and 2008. Özşahin acted as a member of the Board 
of Trustees of Alumni Foundation of İstanbul University Faculty of Economics from 2000 to February 2013, and served at the Board of 
Directors of Ram Dış Ticaret A.Ş. between 2008 and February 2012.

Mehmet Altan Sungar - Independent Board Member 
Mehmet Altan Sungar started to work as an intern at Royal Lastikler Tevzi A.Ş., a Koç Holding company, while he was still a student 
in Faculty of Economics and Commercial Sciences. In addition to his postgraduate degree in the accounting department, he also 
worked as an Assistant Regional Director in the marketing department in the same company, and took part in the establishment 
of the dealer network while he was serving as a Regional Director in various regions across Turkey. Taking part in the foundation of 
Otoyol Pazarlama in 1975, he worked as a Marketing Manager, Assistant General Manager and Deputy General Manager in the same 
company. He also served as a General Manager and Board Member in Istanbul Oto A.S., a Tofas Group company, between 1985 and 
2001. During the same period, he worked as a member of the automotive professional community of Istanbul Chamber of Commerce 
and as a court expert. He served as General Manager and Board Member in Karsat A.S. from 2001 to 2004. Mehmet Altan Sungar 
worked as a shareholder and counsel in TURAVEL (Tourism, Education and Consultancy) between 2004 and 2012.

Oğuz Nuri Babüroğlu – Board Member 
Ass. Prof. Oğuz Nuri Babüroğlu graduated from Sussex University in 1977. He received his graduate degree from Lancester University, 
and post graduate degree in Social System Sciences from the Wharton School of the University of Pennyslvania. Having worked as 
a faculty member in West Chester University (U.S.A.), Clarkson University (U.S.A.), INSEAD (Grance), Work Research Institute (Norway), 
Bilkent University (Turkey) and Norwegian University of Science and Technology’s EDWOR Program, Babüroğlu has been working in 
Sabancı University as a faculty member since 1998. Babüroğlu, who founded Arama Participatory Management Consulting in 1995, is 
also the Founding Director of Akıl Limanı Mindport Education Services. Assoc. Prof. Babüroğlu has been working as an Independent 
Board Member in ETİ Gıda Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. and Teknosa İç ve Dış Ticaret A.Ş. since 2006 and April 2012, respectively. Assoc. Prof. 
Babüroğlu, who has publications in scientific journals and books, is also the co-author of the book “Educational Futures”.

Ahmet Murat Selek – CEO
After receiving his undergraduate degree from Bogazici University’s Mechanical Engineering Department and postgraduate degree 
from Cornell University’s (USA) Mechanical Engineering Department, Ahmet Selek started to work at Enka Insaat in 1983 as a 
Purchasing Specialist. Between 1986-1987, Selek worked as Planning and Commercial Activity Manager at Cukurova Ziraat. In 1987, 
Ahmet Selek started working for Otoyol Sanayi A.S and served as Project Manager and Overseas Purchasing Manager until 1992. 
After he started working at Tofas as Marketing-Sales-After Sales Manager in 1992, Mr Selek came back to Otoyol and served as CEO 
between 2003-2007. In 2008, he became the CEO of Karsan Otomotiv.

Board of Directors Current Positions Assumed Outside the Company

İnan KIRAÇ
(Chairman)

Klod NAHUM
(Vice-Chairman)

Board Chairman of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayi Mamülleri Pazarlama A.Ş.
Board Chairman of KöK Ziraat Turizm Sanayi Ticaret A.Ş. (*)
Board Chairman of Kıraça Holding A.Ş.
Board Chairman of Karland Otomotiv Ürünleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
Board Chairman of Kök Finansal Yatırımlar A.Ş. (*)
Board Chairman of Heksagon Mühendislik ve Tasarım A.Ş.
Board Chairman of Kök Enerji Yatırımları A.Ş. (*)
Board Member of Koç Holding A.Ş. (*)
Board Chairman of the Suna and İnan Kıraç Vakfı Kültür ve Sanat İşletmesi (*) 
Board Chairman of the Galatasaray Eğitim Vakfı(*)
Board Member of Silco S.A. (*)
Board Chairman of Sirena Marine Denizcilik Sanayi ve Tic. A.Ş.
Board Member of Sirmar Denizcilik Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.
Board Member of Adabey Turizm Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (*)
Board Chairman of Vaniköy Gayrimenkul Yatırım A.Ş. (*)
Managing Director of Vaniköy Gayrimenkul Yatırım ve Danışmanlık A.Ş. (*)
Board Chairman of Kepi Turizm Danışmanlık Gayrimenkul Yatırımları ve Ticaret A.Ş.(*)
Chairman of Board of Managers of Kepi Gayrimenkul Danışmanlık ve Ticaret Ltd. (*)

Board Vice-Chairman of Heksagon Danışmanlık ve Ticaret A.Ş. (*)
Board Member of Heksagon Mühendislik ve Tasarım A.Ş.
Board Member of Heksagon Katı Atık Yönetimi Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.(*)
Board Vice-Chairman of Kök Enerji Yatırımları A.Ş. (*)
Board Vice-Chairman of Kıraça Holding A.Ş.
Board Vice-Chairman of Sirmar Denizcilik San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
Board Vice-Chairman of Sirena Marine Denizcilik Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.
Board Chairman of Silco S.A. (*)
Board Chairman of Silco Polymers S.A.(*)
Board Vice-Chairman of Karland Otomotiv Ürünleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
Board Chairman of Kıraça Dış Ticaret A.Ş., in liquidation

(*) Non-group companies.
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İpek KIRAÇ
(Board Member)

Founding Member – Board Member of Suna ve İnan Kıraç Vakfı Kültür ve Sanat İşletmesi, (*)
Executive Committee Member of Koç Özel Lisesi, (*)
Board Member of Temel Ticaret ve Yatırım A.Ş. (*)
Board Member of Kök Ziraat Turizm Sanayi Ticaret A.Ş. (*)
Board Member of Kıraça Holding A.Ş.
Member of Board of Trustees of TEGEV (*)
Board Member of Amerikan Hastanesi Sağlık Hizmetleri Tic.(*)
Board Member Zer Merkezi Hizmetler A.Ş. (*)
CEO of Sirena Marine Denizcilik San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
Board Member of Moment Eğitim Araştırma Sağlık Hiz. ve Tic. A.Ş. (*)
Board Member of Sirmar Denizcilik Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.
Board Vice-Chairman of Vaniköy Gayrmenkul Yatırım A.Ş. (*)
Managing Director of Vaniköy Gayrimenkul Yatırım ve Danışmanlık A.Ş. (*)
Board Vice-Chairman of Kepi Turizm Danışmanlık Gayrimenkul Yatırımları ve Ticaret A.Ş.
Managing Director of Kepi Gayrimenkul Danışmanlık ve Ticaret Ltd. (*)

(*) Non-group companies.(*) Non-group companies.

Jan NAHUM
(Executive Board Member)

Nadir ÖZŞAHİN
(Independent Board Member)

Mehmet Altan SUNGAR
(Independent Board Member)

Antonio BENE
(Board Member)

Giancarlo BOSCHETTI
(Board Member)

Oğuz Nuri BABÜROĞLU
(Board Member)

Board Chairman of Heksagon Danışmanlık ve Ticaret A.Ş. (*)
Board Vice-Chairman of Heksagon Mühendislik ve Tasarım A.Ş. (Real Person Representative on behalf 
of Heksagon Danışmanlık ve Ticaret A.Ş.)
Heattek Elektronik Yazılım Ar Ge Bilişim Sistemleri Danışmanlık ve Tic. A.Ş. (Real Person Representative 
on behalf of Heksagon Danışmanlık ve Ticaret A.Ş.) (*)
Artı Doksan Hızlı İmalat Teknolojileri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (Chairman and Real Person Representative 
on Behalf of Heksagon Danışmanlık ve Ticaret A.Ş.(*)
Heksagon Enerji Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (Real Person Representative on behalf of Heksagon Danışmanlık 
ve Ticaret A.Ş.) (*)
Heksagon Global Enerji Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (Real Person Representative on behalf of Heksagon Enerji 
Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.) (*)
Chairman of Heksagon Katı Atık Yönetimi Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.(*)
Heksagon Katı Atık Toplama ve Depolama Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (Real Person Representative on Behalf 
of Heksagon Katı Atık Yönetimi San. ve Tic. A.Ş.)(*)
Biosun Söke Katı Atık İşleme Enerji ve Çevre Sanayi Ticaret A.Ş.(Real Person Representative on Behalf of 
Heksagon Katı Atık Yönetimi San. ve Tic. A.Ş.)(*)
Biosun Ödemiş - Katı Atık İşleme, Enerji ve Çevre San.ve Tic. A.Ş (Real Person Representative on Behalf 
of Heksagon Katı Atık Yönetimi San. ve Tic. A.Ş.)(*)
Biosun Bilecik Katı Atık İşleme Enerji ve Çevre Sanayi Ticaret Anonim Şirketi (Real Person 
Representative on Behalf of Heksagon Katı Atık Yönetimi Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.) (*)
Biosun Kütahya Katı Atık İşleme Enerji ve Çevre Sanayi Ticaret Anonim Şirketi in Liquidation (Real 
Person Representative on Behalf of Heksagon Katı Atık Yönetimi Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.) (*)
Heksagon Yenilenebilir Enerji Yatırımları San. ve Tic. A.Ş (Real Person Representative of Heksagon Global 
Enerji Kaynakları Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi) (*)
Board Vice-Chairman of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayi Mamulleri Pazarlama A.Ş.
Board Member of Kök Enerji Yatırımları A.Ş. (*),
Board Member of Kıraça Holding A.Ş.
Board Member of Sirmar Denizcilik Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.
Board Member of Sirena Marine Denizcilik Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.

-

-

Managing Director of Karsan Europe Srl.

Board Member of Vintage Capital S.p.A (*)
Board Member of Finde S.p.A. (*)
Managing Director of Karsan Europe Srl.

Managing Director of Arama, Araştırma, Organizasyon Danışmanlığı ve Ticaret Limited 
Şirketi, holding an individual signatory power
Independent Board Member of Eti Gıda Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.
Independent Board Member of Teknosa İç ve Dış Ticaret A.Ş. 
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Annex 2 – Declarations of Independence of the Independent Members of the Board of Directors

KARSAN OTOMOTİV SANAYİİ VE TİCARET A.Ş
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY THE CANDIDATE FOR BOARD MEMBERSHIP 

- I do not have a relationship in terms of employment at an administrative level to take upon significant duty and responsibilities 
within the last five years, I do not own more than 5% of the capital or voting rights or privileged shares either jointly or solely or I have 
not established a significant commercial relation between Karsan Otomotiv Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (Company)., companies, on which 
the Company holds control of management or significant effect and shareholders who hold control of management of the Company 
or have significant effect in the Company and legal entities on which these shareholders hold control of management and myself, 
my spouse and my relatives by blood or marriage up to second degree
- I have not been a shareholder (5% and more), an employee at an administrative level to take upon significant duty and 
responsibilities or member of board of directors within the last five years in companies that the Company purchases or sells goods 
or service at a significant level within the framework of the contracts executed, especially on audit (including tax audit, statutory audit, 
internal audit), rating and consulting of the Company, at the time period when the Company purchases or sells services or goods,
- I have professional education, knowledge and experience in order to duly fulfill the duties assigned for being an independent 
board member.
- As of the day of my nomination I am not and in the event I am elected, for the term of my duty I will not be a full time employee at 
public authorities and institutions except being an academic member at university that is in compliance with the relevant legislation.
- I am deemed to be residing in Turkey according to the Income Tax Law dated 31/12/1960 and numbered 193
- I can provide positive contributions to the operations of the Company, maintain my neutrality in conflicts of interests between the 
Company and the shareholders, and I have strong ethical standards, professional reputation and experience to freely take decisions 
by considering the rights of the stakeholders.
- I will be able to allocate time for the company business sufficient to follow up operations of the Company and to duly fulfill the 
assigned duties
- I hereby acknowledge and agree that I have not been serving as a member in the Board of Directors of the Company for more 
than six years in the last decade,
- I am not an independent board member in more than three of the companies whose management is controlled by the Company 
or the controlling shareholders of the Company and in more than five companies in total which are traded on the stock exchange
- I have not been registered or announced on behalf of the legal entity selected as the member of Board of Directors,
- I shall immediately inform the Board of Directors and resign in case of occurrence of any event which conflicts with my 
independence

Nadir ÖZŞAHİN
10.07.2015

KARSAN OTOMOTİV SANAYİİ VE TİCARET A.Ş
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY THE CANDIDATE FOR BOARD MEMBERSHIP 

- I do not have a relationship in terms of employment at an administrative level to take upon significant duty and responsibilities 
within the last five years, I do not own more than 5% of the capital or voting rights or privileged shares either jointly or solely or I have 
not established a significant commercial relation between Karsan Otomotiv Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş (Company)., companies on which 
the Company holds control of management or significant effect and shareholders who hold control of management of the Company 
or have significant effect in the Company and legal entities on which these shareholders hold control of management and myself, 
my spouse and my relatives by blood or marriage up to second degree
- I have not been a shareholder (5% and more), an employee at an administrative level to take upon significant duty and 
responsibilities or member of board of directors within the last five years in companies that the Company purchases or sells goods 
or service at a significant level within the framework of the contracts executed, especially on audit (including tax audit, statutory audit, 
internal audit), rating and consulting of the Company, at the time period when the Company purchases or sells services or goods,
- I have professional education, knowledge and experience in order to duly fulfill the duties assigned for being an independent 
board member.
- As of the day of my nomination I am not and in the event I am elected, for the term of my duty I will not be a full time employee at 
public authorities and institutions except being an academic member at university that is in compliance with the relevant legislation.
- I am deemed to be residing in Turkey under the Income Tax Law dated 31/12/1960 and numbered 193
- I can provide positive contribution to the Company activities, maintain neutrality in case of conflicts between the shareholders of 
the Company, I can decide freely by taking into account the rights of shareholders and I have strong ethical standards, professional 
reputation and experience,
- I am able to dedicate my time to Company business to follow up the Company activities and fulfillment of my duties.
- I hereby acknowledge and agree that I have not been serving as a member in the Board of Directors of the Company for more 
than six years in the last decade,
- I am not an independent board member in more than three of the companies whose management is controlled by the Company 
or the controlling shareholders of the Company and in more than five companies in total which are traded on the stock exchange,
- I have not been registered or announced on behalf of the legal entity selected as the member of Board of Directors,
- I shall immediately inform the Board of Directors and resign in case of occurrence of any event which conflicts with my 
independence

Mehmet Altan SUNGAR
10.07.2015

Karsan Annual Report 2015



98 99

Opinion

4. In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Karsan 
Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. and its subsidiaries as on December 31, 2015 and their financial performance and cash flows for the 
period then ended in accordance with Turkish Accounting Standards.

Other Responsibilities Arising From Regulatory Requirements

5. In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 398 of the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) No: 6102, auditor’s report on the early 
risk identification system and committee has been submitted to the Company’s Board of Directors on March 10, 2016.

6. In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of the TCC, no significant matter has come to our attention that causes us to 
believe that the Company’s bookkeeping activities for the period 
January 1 – December 31, 2015 is not in compliance with the code and provisions of the Company’s articles of association in relation 
to financial reporting.

7. In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of the TCC, the Board of Directors submitted to us the necessary explanations 
and provided required documents within the context of audit.

Başaran Nas Bağımsız Denetim ve
Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş.
a member of 
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Beste Gücümen, SMMM
Partner

İstanbul, March 10, 2016

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş.

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. (the “Company”) 
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as on December 31, 2015 
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity 
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the period then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Group’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with Turkish Accounting Standards and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Independent Auditor’s Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our audit was conducted 
in accordance with standards on auditing issued by the Capital Markets Board of Turkey and Independent Auditing Standards that part 
of Turkish Standards on Auditing issued by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority. Those standards require 
that ethical requirements are complied with and that the audit is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance whether 
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An independent audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on independent auditor’s professional judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud. In making those 
risk assessments, the independent auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An independent audit includes also 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Group’s 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained during our audit is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF THE FINANCIAL POSITION
(BALANCE SHEETS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 and 2014)
(Amounts expressed in Turkish lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

ASSETS 
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables 
   - Trade receivables from related parties 
   - Other trade receivables
Financial receivables
   - Other financial receivables
Other receivables 
   - Other receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Assets related to current taxes
Other current assets

Assets held for saler
Total current assets
Non-current assets 
Trade receivables
   - Other trade receivables
Financial receivables
   - Other financial receivables
Financial investment
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
   - Other intangible assets
Prepaid expenses
Deferred income tax assets
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets 

TOTAL ASSETS

6

5
10

11

13
14

20

15, 32

10

11
7

15

16
14
28
20

24,464,535

14,788,148
249,208,089

7,679,153

1,758,758
135,103,682
15,409,542

423,598
90,631,749

539,467,254
19,621,544

559,088,798

243,298,695

124,450,583
2,114

450,715,111

164,876,838
2,368,384
61,769,647
63,234,101

1,110,715.473

1,669,804.271

17,778,999

10,974,960
158,317,565

-

1,079,455
90,189,394
10,390,047

876,427
22,041,212

311,648,059
29,301,831

340,949,890

118,295,313

-
265,634

425,333,668

132,184,404
15,594,647
32,064,260
70,000,000

793,737,926

1,134,687.816

Notes

Audited 
  December 31, 

2015

Audited 
  December 31, 

2014
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Short term borrowings
Short term portion of long term borrowings
Trade payables
   - Due to related parties
   - Other trade payables
Derivatives
Payables related to employee benefits
Deferred income
Current income tax liabilities
Short term provisions
   - Short term provisions for employee benefits
   - Other short term provisions
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities 
Long term liabilities  
Long term borrowings
Derivatives
Long term provisions 
   - Long term provisions for employee benefits 
   - Other long term provisions
Deferred income 
Total non-current liabilities
EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 
Paid-in capital
Paid-in capital inflation adjustment differences
Additional contribution to equity due to business combinations
Share premium
Other comprehensive income/expense not to be 
   reclassified to profit or loss 
   - Gain on revaluation and remeasurement
   - Other losses
Other comprehensive income/expense to be
   reclassified to profit or loss
   - Currency translation differences
   - Losses from risk protection
Legal reserves
Retained losses
Net loss for the period
Non-controlling Interests 
Total equity 
 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

8
8

5
10
9

19
14
28 

19
12
20

8
9

19
12
14

21
21
3

21

15
21

9
21
21

141,078,086
141,759,084

46,715,694
168,141,341

1,231,497
6,409,477
3,850,587

145,398

2,719,980
31,977,772
3,946,135

547,975,051

809,137,890
12,010,756

19,700,845
38,807,271

303,767
879,960,529

273,867,641
460,000,000
22,585,778

(12,402,788)
6,139,733

159,691,587
(7,274,967)

31,522
(2,956,359)

1,031,613
(290,382,773)

(62,595,705)
(31,998,950)
241,868,691

1,669,804.271

18,294,729
98,359,137

8,363,796
59,645,315

-
5,045,260
1,207,420

150,159

1,996,996
23,378,951
2,049,569

218,491,332

642,038,796
-

13,172,875
27,809,105

331,381
683,352,157

256,543,313
460,000,000
22,585,778

(12,402,788)
6,139,733

80,480,862
(3,336,110)

44,533
-

1,031,613
(212,619,021)
(85,381,287)

(23,698,986)
232,844,327

1,134,687.816

Notes

Audited 
  December 31, 

2015

Audited 
  December 31, 

2014
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Revenue
Cost of sales (-)
Gross profit from trading activities
Revenue from financial activities
Cost of financial activities (-)
Gross profit from financial activities
Gross income
Marketing expenses (-)
General administrative expenses (-)
Research and development expenses (-)
Other operating income
Other operating expenses (-)
Operating profit/(loss)
Income from investing activities
Expenses from investing activities (-)
Operating profit before financial income/expense
Financial expenses (net) (-)
Loss before tax from continuing operations
Tax income from continued operations
   - Taxes on income
   - Deferred tax income
Loss for the period
Distribution of loss for the Period
Non-controlling interests
Shares of parent company 
Loss per share 
- Loss per share continued operations
Other comprehensive income and expense:
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation increase on property, plant and equipment
Other comprehensive income items not to be 
reclassified to profit or loss
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss 
Currency translation differences
Hedging instruments for cash flow risks
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Total comprehensive income/(loss)
Attributable to
- Non-controlling interests
- Parent

22
22
22
22

15, 22
22

23
23
23
25
25

27
27

26

28
28

29

29

15
21

1,026,071.041
(903,026,988)
123,044,053
143,403,382

(124,924,195)
18,479,187

141,523,240
(87,051,221)
(39,891,342)
(2,572,269)

152,313,281
(120,802,796)
43,518,893

6,495,511
(15,885,809)
34,128,595

(141,522,462)
(107,393,867)

(689,217)
37,934,105

(70,148,979)
(70,148,979)

(7,553,274)
(62,595,705)

(0.0014)

85,110,057
(3,979,533)

(22,070)
(2,956,359)

78,152,095
8,003,116
8,003,116
(7,603,009)
15,606,125

358,284,009
(323,911,959)
34,372,050

-
-
-

34,372,050
(51,112,988)
(35,863,427)

(2,150,105)
81,500,144

(83,577,525)
(56,831,851)

3,343,134
(11,192,458)

(64.681.175)
(46,134,065)

(110,815,240)

(628,298)
11,424,920

(100,018,618)
(100,018,618)

(14,637,331)
(85,381,287)

(0.0019)

300,955
(1,599,233)

53,488

(1,244,790)
(101,263,408)
(101,263,408)

(14,616,295)
(86,647,113)

Notes Audited January 1 -
 December 31, 

2015

Audited January 1 -
 December 31, 

2014

January 1, 2014
(Opening balance)

Transfer

Total comprehensive expense

Dividend paid

December 31, 2014 
(Closing balance)

January 1, 2015
(Opening balance)

Transfer

Total comprehensive expense

Dividend paid

December 31, 2015 
(Closing balance)

460,000,000

-

-

-

460,000,000

22,585,778

-

-

-

22,585,778

(12,402,788)

-

-

-

(12,402,788)

-

-

44,533

-

44,533

6,139,733

-

-

-

6,139,733

85,478,836

(5,248,543)

250,569

-

80,480,862

(1,775,182)

-

(1,560,928)

-

(3,336,110)

-

-

-

-

-

1,031,613

-

-

-

1,031,613

(235,028,919)

22,409,898

-

-

(212,619,021)

15,849,219

(15,849,219)

(85,381,287)

-

(85,381,287)

341,878,290

1,312,136

(86,647,113)

-

256,543,313

(8,413,010)

-

(14,616,295)

(669,681)

(23,698,986)

333,465,280

1,312,136

(101,263,408)

(669,681)

232,844,327

Revaluation
funds

Inflation
adjustment

to share 
capital

Additional
contribution

equity due
combination

Currency
translation

differences

Share
premium

Other
losses

Losses
from

hegding

Legal
reserves

Accumulated
losses

Current
period
losses

Equity
holders of 

the 
company

Non-
controlling

interests

Total
equity

Paid in
capital

Revaluation
funds

Inflation
adjustment

to share 
capital

Additional
contribution

equity due
combination

Currency
translation

differences

Share
premium

Other
losses

Losses
from

hegding

Legal
reserves

Accumulated
losses

Current
period
losses

Equity
holders of 

the 
company

Non-
controlling

interests

Total
equity

Paid in
capital

460,000,000

-

-

-

460,000,000

22,585,778

-

-

-

22,585,778

(12,402,788)

-

-

-

(12,402,788)

44,533

-

(13,011)

-

31,522

6,139,733

-

-

-

6,139,733

80,480,862

(5,899,332)

85,110,057

-

159,691,587

(3,336,110)

-

(3,938,857)

-

(7,274,967)

-

-

(2,956,359)

-

(2,956,359)

1,031,613

-

-

-

1,031,613

(212,619,021)

(77,763,752)

-

-

(290,382,773)

(85,381,287)

85,381,287

(62,595,705)

-

(62,595,705)

256,543,313

1,718,203

15,606,125

-

273,867,641

(23,698,986)

(194,694)

(7,603,009)

(502,261)

(31,998,950)

232,844,327

1,523,509

8,003,116

(502,261)

241,868,691
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net loss for the year
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for employment termination benefit
Unrealized foreign currency gain/loss
Adjustments for derivatives financial instruments
Loss from sales of property, plant and equipment
Adjustments for interest expenses-income
Adjustments for inventory impairments
Allowances for doubtful receivables
Changes in provisions
Unused vacation liability
Adjustments for tax income/losses
Losses from the revaluation of tangible fixed assets
Other adjustments

Changes in net working capital
Trade receivables
Inventory
Due from related parties
Other receivables and short term assets
Other long term assets
Trade payables
Due to related parties
Other current/non-current liabilities

Cash flows from operating activities
Current income tax paid
Employment termination benefits paid
Interest received
Interest paid
Provision payments

Net cash used in operating activities

24
19

27
27

13
10

19
28
15

28
19

(70,148,979)
265,605,563

39,088,272
2,862,649

(4,498,540)
5,458,944
1,798,476

145,264,071
-

55,525
115,403,279

722,984
(37,244,888)

3,900,332
(7,205,541)

(169,570,762)
(222,565,117)
(44,499,294)

(3,813,188)
(73,572,986)
19,992,162

110,659,427
38,351,898

5,876,336

(94,837,820)
(693,978)

(1,309,095)
17,119,147

(18,175,925)
(91,777,969)

(68,951,998)

(100,018,618)
105,257,311
31,328,390

1,977,974
(10,777,075)

-
11,192,458
40,660,177
1,046,524

67,012
42,868,738

313,122
(10,796,622)

-
(2,623,387)

4,324,753
35,382,292

4,995,269
(2,054,885)

103,552,264
(80,367,438)

18,047,681
(76,885,066)

1,654,636

(44,004,169)
(520,112)

(1,002,006)
3,178,984

(6,396,849)
(39,264,186)

(34,440,723)

Notes January 1 -
December 31, 2015

January 1 -
December 31, 2014

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest received
Cash flows from derivative instruments
Other

Net cash provided from investing activities

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Interest paid
Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
before the effect of foreign currency translation differences

D. FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSLATION DIFFERENCES 
IMPACT ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

15
16

27
7

6

6

(113,727,434)
(12,288,481)

1,913,675
1,779,721

4,087,860
-

(118,234,659)

704,308,169
(368,376,916)
(141,522,462)

(502,261)

193,906,530

6,719,873

(22,070)

6,697,803

17,764,272

24,462,075

(199,506,850)
(9,829,257)

-
3,328,407

-
(263,520)

(206,271,220)

621,756,495
(355,970,515)
(46,134,065)

(669,681)

218,982,234

(21,729,709)

53,488

(21,676,221)

39,440,493

17,764,272

Notes January 1 -
December 31, 2015

January 1 -
December 31, 2014
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(Amounts expressed in Turkish lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

NOTE 1 - GROUP’S ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Trade Name   : Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. (“Karsan” or “The Company”).
        Hasanağa Organize Sanayi Bölgesi (HOSAB), Sanayi Caddesi, 16225, Nilüfer-BURSA

Related Group   : Kıraça Holding A.Ş.

Registered Stock Exchange : Borsa İstanbul (BIST) Stars

The Company has been established to build any kind of vehicle assembly and bodywork facilities, purchasing and/or participating 
in the already established facilities, importing vehicles for bodywork manufacturing and producing and selling any kind of vehicle 
bodywork in Turkey. The activities of the Company are to produce, import and export motor vehicles to automotive brands. Moreover, 
the Company provides industrial service to automotive companies.

The total numbers of employees of the Company and subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are 1,748 as of December 
31, 2015 (December 31, 2014: 1,384)

The consolidated financial statements has been approved at Board of Directors’ meetings on March 10, 2016. Furthermore consolidated 
financial statements are subject to approval of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. Shareholders concerning General Assembly 
for the year of 2015.

Subsidiaries
The details of The Company’s subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED

2.1   Basis of Presentation

2.1.1 Financial reporting standards applied and its compliance to TAS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Communiqué Serial II, No:14.1, “Principles 
of Financial Reporting in Capital Markets” (“the Communiqué”) published in the Official Gazette numbered 28676 on June 13, 2013. 
According to Article 5 of the Communiqué, consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Turkish Accounting 
Standards issued by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POAASA”). TAS contains Turkish Accounting 
Standards, Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”) and its addendum and interpretations (“IFRIC”).

The financial statements of the consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared as per the CMB announcement of June 
7, 2013 relating to financial statements presentations. 

In accordance with the CMB resolution issued on March 17, 2005, listed companies operating in Turkey are not subject to inflation 
accounting effective from January 1, 2005. Therefore, the consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared 
accordingly.

The Company (and its subsidiaries and Joint Ventures registered in Turkey) maintains its accounting records and prepares its 
statutory financial statements in accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code (the “TCC”), tax legislation and the uniform chart of 
accounts issued by the Ministry of Finance. Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates operating in foreign countries have prepared 
their statutory financial statements in accordance with the laws and regulations of the country in which they operate. The interim 
consolidated financial statements, except for the financial asset and liabilities presented with their fair values, are maintained 
under historical cost conversion in TL. These interim consolidated financial statements are based on the statutory records, which 
are maintained under historical cost conversion, with the required adjustments and reclassifications reflected for the purpose of fair 
presentation in accordance with the TAS.

2.1.2 Consolidation principles

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. and its 
subsidiaries on the basis set out in sections below. The financial statements of the companies included in the scope of consolidation 
have been prepared as of the date of the consolidated financial statements and have been prepared in accordance with TAS stated in 
Note 2 by applying uniform accounting policies and presentation. The results of operations of Subsidiaries are included or excluded 
from their effective dates of acquisition or disposal respectively.

a) Subsidiaries refer to the companies that the Group has the power to make the strategic decisions and to control the financial and 
operating policies by using its actual control on financial or operating policies.

The balance sheets and statements of income of the subsidiaries are consolidated on line-by-line basis and the carrying value 
of the investment held by the Group and its subsidiary is eliminated against the related equity. Intercompany transactions and 
balances between the Group and its subsidiary are eliminated during the consolidation. The cost of, and the dividends arising from, 
shares held by the Group in its subsidiary are eliminated from equity and income for the period, respectively.

(*) Karsan founded a company based in New York, US, with the trade name Karsan USA LLC that is wholly owned by the Company and does not require a capital transfer 
during foundation process, in order to maintain the regular processes with local authorities, regarding the project of taxi model designed. There was no capital transfer 
to the company and there is no effect on the financial position of the Group.

(**) With the decision of Board of Directors dated November 19, 2014, Karsan has established a company titled “Karsan Italy S.R.L” and headquartered in Torino Italy which 
has the capital by EUR 100.000 and is wholly owned by the Karsan on the purpose of increasing export potential of the Company. Since the company has not started 
its operations yet and is not material on the Group’s financial position, it is not consolidated in the financial statements for the year 2014 and it has been started to 
be consolidated in the current period. Title of Karsan Italy S.R.L. has been changed as Karsan Europe S.R.L. as of October 6, 2015.

Karsan Otomotiv Sanayi Mamulleri 

Pazarlama A.Ş. (“Karsan Pazarlama”)

Kırpart Otomotiv Parçaları 

San. ve Tic. A.Ş. (“Kırpart”) 

Kırpart Shanghai

Karsan USA LLC (*)

Karsan Europe S.R.L. (**)

25%

83%

100%

100%

100%

25%

83%

83%

100%

100%

25%

83%

100%

100%

100%

25%

83%

83%

100%

100%

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Direct and

indirect share 
percentage

Direct and
indirect share 

percentage

Effective share 
percentage

Effective share 
percentage

Distributor

Production, Sales,

Marketing and Distribution

Sales and Marketing

Sales and Marketing

Sales and Marketing

Operating activityCompany name

Shareholding of Company



110 111

Karsan Annual Report 2015

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1 - DECEMBER 31, 2015
(Amounts expressed in Turkish lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 
(Continued)

2.1.2 Consolidation principles (Continued)

b) Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the control is transferred to the Group and are no longer consolidated from 
the date that the control ceases.

The shares of the non-controlling shareholders in subsidiary’s net assets and operating results are presented as non-controlling 
shares and non-controlling income/loss, in consolidated balance sheet and income statement, respectively. Capital featured 
funds paid by controlling shareholders is presented in non-controlling interest. Significant portion of the non-controlling interests 
represents non-controlling interests in Karsan Pazarlama.

2.1.3 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable 
right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.

2.1.4 Comparative information and restatement of prior period’s financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include comparative financial information to enable determination of the 
trends in the financial position and performance. Comparative financial items can be reclassified to assure the comparability 
and compliance with the presentation of current year consolidated financial statements. The Group has prepared the consolidated 
balance sheet as of December 31, 2015 comparatively with the balance sheet on December 31, 2014, and consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of cash flow and consolidated statement of change in equity for the period January 
1 – December 31, 2015 compared to the period January 1 – December 31, 2014.

Fixed assets acquired through financial leasing amounting TL 16,241,085 which was classified as intangible assets as of December 
31, 2014 have been reclassified as tangible assets in consolidated balance sheet. 

The provisions amounting to TL 7,626,254 which was classified as long term as of December 31, 2014 have been reclassified as short-
term provisions in consolidated balance sheet.

2.1.5 Going concern

The Group prepared consolidated financial statements in accordance with the going concern principle.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 
(Continued)

2.1.6 Changes in Turkish Financial Reporting Standards

Accounting policies taken as basis for preparation of financial statements as of December 31, 2015 has been applied consistently 
except the adjusted standards and comments on January 1, 2015 summarized below. Impact of these standards and comment on 
the Group’s financial state and performance has been explained in related paragraphs.

a) According to TAS 8 Paragraph 28; Standards, amendments and comments on financial statements effective for 
annual periods ending on December 31, 2015:

- Amendment to IAS 19 regarding defined benefit plans, effective from annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. These 
narrow scope amendments apply to contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The objective of the 
amendments is to simplify the accounting for contributions that are independent of the number of years of employee service, for 
example, employee contributions that are calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary. This amendment is not expected to 
have a significant effect on the financial position and performance of the Group.

- Annual improvements 2012; is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. These amendments include changes 
from the 2010-12 cycle of the annual improvements project that affect 7 standards. None of these improvements is expected to have 
a significant effect on the financial position and performance of the Group.

- TFRS 2, ‘Share-based payment’
- TFRS 3, ‘Business combinations’
- TFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’
- TFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’
- TAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and TAS 38 ‘Intangible assets’
- TFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, TAS 37, ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets’
- TAS 39, ‘Financial instruments - Recognition and measurement’

- Annual improvements 2013; is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. The amendments include changes 
from the 2011-12-13 cycle of the annual improvements project that affect 4 standards. None of these improvements is expected to 
have a significant effect on the financial position and performance of the Group.

- TFRS 1, ‘First time adoption’
- TFRS 3, ‘Business combinations’
- TFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’
- TMS 40, ‘Investment property’
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 
(Continued)

2.1.6 Changes in Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

b) In accordance with TAS 8 paragraph 30, standards, amendments and interpretations issued as of December 31, 2014 
but not early adopted by Group:

Standards, amendments and interpretations that have been published as of the approval date of these consolidated financial 
statements but not yet effective as of the date of consolidated financial statements and not early adopted by the Group are as 
follows. Unless otherwise indicated, the Group will perform the required changes related to these new standards and interpretations 
when they are in force. 

- Amendment to IFRS 11, ‘Joint arrangements’ on acquisition of an interest in a joint operation, effective from annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2016. This amendment adds new guidance on how to account for the acquisition of an interest in 
a joint operation that constitutes a business. The amendments specify the appropriate accounting treatment for such acquisitions. 
This amendment is not expected to have a significant effect on the financial position and performance of the Group.

- Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property, plant and equipment’, and IAS 41, ‘Agriculture’, regarding bearer plants, effective from annual 
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. These amendments change the financial reporting for bearer plants, such as grape 
vines, rubber trees and oil palms. It has been decided that bearer plants should be accounted for in the same way as property, plant 
and equipment because their operation is similar to that of manufacturing. Consequently, the amendments include them within the 
scope of IAS 16, instead of IAS 41. The produce growing on bearer plants will remain within the scope of IAS 41. This amendment is 
not expected to have a significant effect on the financial position and performance of the Group.

- Amendment to IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and IAS 38, ‘Intangible assets’, on depreciation and amortization, effective 
from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. In this amendment it has clarified that the use of revenue based methods 
to calculate the depreciation of an asset is not appropriate because revenue generated by an activity that includes the use of an 
asset generally reflects factors other than the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the asset. It is also clarified that 
revenue is generally presumed to be an inappropriate basis for measuring the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in 
an intangible asset. This amendment is not expected to have a significant effect on the financial position and performance of the 
Group.

- IFRS 14 ‘Regulatory deferral accounts’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2016. IFRS 14, ‘Regulatory deferral accounts’ permits first-time adopters to continue to recognise amounts related to 
rate regulation in accordance with their previous GAAP requirements when they adopt IFRS. However, to enhance comparability with 
entities that already apply IFRS and do not recognise such amounts, the standard requires that the effect of rate regulation must 
be presented separately from other items. This standard is not expected to have a significant effect on the financial position and 
performance of the Group.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 
(Continued)

2.1.6 Changes in Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

b) In accordance with TAS 8 paragraph 30, standards, amendments and interpretations issued as of December 31, 2014 
but not early adopted by Group: (Continued)

- Amendments to IAS 27, ‘Separate financial statements’ on the equity method, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2016. These amendments allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures 
and associates in their separate financial statements. This amendment is not expected to have a significant effect on the financial 
position and performance of the Group.

- Amendments to IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’ and IAS 28, ‘Investments in associates and joint ventures’, effective 
from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. These amendments address an inconsistency between the requirements 
in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. 
The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves a business (whether 
it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute 
a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. This amendment is not expected to have a significant effect on the 
financial position and performance of the Group.  

c) In accordance with TAS 8 paragraph 30, standards, amendments and interpretations issued as of December 31, 2014 
but not early adopted by Group:

- Annual improvements 2014, effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. These set of amendments 
impacts 4 standards. These improvements are not expected to have a significant effect on the financial position and performance 
of the Group.

- IFRS 5, ‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’ regarding methods of disposal
- IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’, (with consequential amendments to IFRS 1) regarding servicing contracts
- IAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’ regarding discount rates
- IAS 34, ‘Interim financial reporting’ regarding disclosure of information.

- Amendment to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’ on the disclosure initiative, effective from annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2016, these amendments are as part of the IASB initiative to improve presentation and disclosure in financial reports.

- Amendments to IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’ and IAS 28, ‘Investments in associates and joint ventures’, effective 
from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. These amendments address an inconsistency between the requirements 
in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. 
The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves a business (whether 
it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute 
a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. This amendment is not expected to have a significant effect on the 
financial position and performance of the Group.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 
(Continued)

2.1.6 Changes in Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

c) In accordance with TAS 8 paragraph 30, standards, amendments and interpretations issued as of December 31, 2014 
but not early adopted by Group (Continued):

- IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. IFRS 15, 
‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ is a converged standard from the IASB and FASB on revenue recognition. The standard will 
improve the financial reporting of revenue and improve comparability of the top line in financial statements globally. The possible 
effects of this standard on the financial position and performance of the Group are evaluated.

- IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. This standard replaces the 
guidance in IAS 39. It includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities; it also 
includes an expected credit losses model that replaces the current incurred loss impairment model. The possible effects of this 
amendment on the financial position and performance of the Group are evaluated.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’, it is effective for annual periods as of January 1, 2019. This change in the event of tenant operations, eliminating the 
distinction between rental and leasing under lease for a single model of many companies that require the collection of the balance 
sheet. Lessor accounting for the difference between the companies is largely unchanged rental and leasing activities are ongoing. 
IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” are permitted as long as the standard is also applicable for early application of 
IFRS 16. The possible effects of this amendment on the financial position and performance of the Group are evaluated.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

Significant accounting policies considered during the preparation of consolidated financial statements are summarised below:

Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer 
returns, rebates, and other similar allowances (Note 22).

Generally, revenue from sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions are satisfied.

(a) Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
(b) The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective 
control over the goods sold; 
(c) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
(d) It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;
(e) The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 
(Continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

Revenue equals to the amount of cash and cash equivalents received in cases where cash and cash equivalents are received for 
sales. However, Group makes high portion of its sales on-term and fair value of the sales amount is determined by net present value 
of receivables. In order to determine the net present value of the receivables, the interest rate, which discounts nominal value of the 
sales amount to cash sales price of the related goods or services, is used. The difference between the nominal value of the sales 
amount and its fair value is reflected to the related periods as interest income. 

Policies used in accounting for revenue derived from main activities are summarized below;

Vehicle sales within the scope of Hyundai Motor Company (“HMC”) project
The Group recognises the revenue related with HMC project to the financial statements as HMC product acceptance procedures are 
completed and vehicles are delivered to HMC or HMC’s related parties. Additionally, the Group has the right to demand compensation 
from HMC in accordance of number of yearly production stays under the determined number in the contract. The Group calculates 
the amount of compensation based on the criteria determined in the contract and accounts for as accrued income in consolidated 
financial statements (Note 20).

Sales of Karsan brand vehicles
Group recognises the revenue from its brand vehicles in financial statements when the risks and the rewards have been transferred 
to the dealers.

Bus sales (Tenders)
The Group recognises the revenue from the tenders when the buses are delivered. The Group provides the service of repair and 
maintenance in the following 5 years of the sale. Related to the cost of services, provisions for repair and maintenance is accounted 
for simultaneously with the revenue.

Finance sector activities

Finance sector activities include the financial leasing transactions where the Group is the lessee according to the TAS 17-“Leasing 
Transactions”.

Group has evaluated the signed contract conditions within “TFRS 4- Determining whether an agreement contains lease transaction”. 
In this scope;

(a) Fulfilment of the terms of the agreement depends on the investments being financed by the Group.
(b) The agreement has transferred the right to use to HMC.
(c) The right of control over the products produced by an investment has been fully transferred to HMC.
(d) Lease payments to be made for investment is separated from the other payments under the agreement.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 
(Continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

In conclusion, Group has classified the related investments as financial leasing transactions where all the risks belong to HMC. 

Leased assets are tracked in the financial statements as a receivable equal to the net lease investment in financial leasing. Income 
related to leasing is determined to bring a constant periodic return on the net investment. Lease payments to reduce the principal 
and the unearned finance charges are deducted from the gross amount of the lease investments (Note 11). Unearned finance 
income is the difference between gross investments in lease rental on the implied interest rate on the present value of gross 
investment. Implied interest rate, at the inception of the lease, the minimum lease payments and guaranteed residual values have 
not been total, the reality is the fair value of the leased asset and the discount rate that equates to the sum of the initial cost.

Rental period projected sales revenues in the financial statements at the beginning of the fair value of the asset, or, as calculated in 
the case of market interest rates, provided it is below this value and to be received by the lessor is the present value of the minimum 
lease payments. The cost of sale recognized at the inception of the lease is the cost of the leased asset. The difference between the 
sales revenue and sales cost is the sales profit (Note 22).

Interest revenue
Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, 
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s 
net carrying amount.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank deposits and highly liquid assets, whose maturity at the time of purchase 
is less and equal than three months (Note 6).

Trade receivables and provision for doubtful receivables
Trade receivables are recorded from invoiced amount and following that carried at net off deferred financial income and less 
provision for doubtful receivables. Net off deferred financial income trade receivables are calculated by discounting of following 
periods financial income with effective interest method from original invoice amounts. When collection of trade receivables is 
not possible, provision for doubtful receivable is estimated. In case of collection of previously as doubtful evaluated receivables, 
collected amounts are deducted from provision and recorded as other income (Note 10). 

The Group transfers their trade receivables to local factoring companies with recourse. Since risks related with negotiated receivables 
have not been transferred to factoring companies and factoring companies have right to recourse if the receivables cannot be 
collected, the receivables subject to factoring transaction were not derecognized and amount provided from factoring companies 
presented as other financial liabilities in the accompanying the consolidated financial statement (Note 10).

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 
(Continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs, including an appropriate portion of fixed and variable 
overhead expenses, are assigned to inventories held by the method most appropriate to the particular class of inventory, with the 
majority being valued on a weighted average basis. The costs of conversion of inventories include costs directly related to the units 
of production, such as direct labour. They also include a systematic allocation of fixed and variable production overheads that are 
incurred in converting materials into finished goods. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value 
represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make a sale (Notes 13). 

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, excluding land, machinery and equipment acquired before January 1, 2005 are carried at indexed 
historical cost based on the effects of inflation as of December 31, 2004; acquisitions after January 1, 2005 are carried at historical 
cost and are presented after depreciation and impairment loss. The Group has adopted “revaluation model” for land and property, 
plant and equipment effective from March 2009 and for buildings from May 2015.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, using the straight-line method. Land is not depreciated as it 
is deemed to have an indefinite life. The depreciation periods for property, plant and equipment, which approximate the useful lives 
of such assets, are as follows:

Buildings and land improvements  6-50 years
Machinery and equipment   4-40 years
Motor vehicles     4 years
Furniture and fixtures   3-15 years
Other fixed assets    4-15 years

Expected useful lives, residual value and depreciation method have been considered every year to determine prospectively possible 
effects of the changes arise from estimations.

Profit or loss realised from disposal of tangible assets or retirement of tangible assets has been included to the income statement 
after determined as difference between sales revenue and book value of the asset.

Karsan’s land, machinery and equipment have been revalued by an independent expertise firm in June 2015, Kırpart also have been 
revalued machinery and equipment in January 2014. In the revaluation performed: 

• All characteristics like; land location, local formation style, substructure and access opportunities, front line to street and avenue, 
area and location that may affect the value, have been taken into account, detailed market research has been done locally and the 
economic conditions that have arisen previously have been considered as well.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 
(Continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
• Machinery and equipment’s physical condition, maintenance and performance that may affect the value have been considered and 
detailed market research has been done, and the country’s economic conditions that have arisen previously have been considered 
as well.
• Revaluation reports have been prepared according to related CMB regulatory provisions.
• Revaluation reports have been prepared by an independent expertise firm which gives service according to CMB regulatory provisions.
• Cost approach in valuation, precedent comparison, fair market value methodology and assumptions and up-to-date market 
conditions have been taken into consideration.
• Revaluation fund net of deferred tax are shown in equity.

The revalued amount is calculated by deducting the total of accumulated depreciation and impairment that have occurred in the 
periods after net realisable value determined in revaluation date. Revaluations are performed regularly, by ensuring that there are 
not any significant differences between net realisable value as of balance sheet date and net book value.

Increase in value of aforementioned land, machinery and equipment as a result of revaluation is booked in revaluation fund in 
equity. Increase in value as a result of revaluation is booked in income statement, in case of impairment was represented in income 
statement previously. Decrease in book value arisen from the aforementioned revaluation process is booked in income statement in 
case the revaluation exceeds the balance already included in revaluation fund related to previous revaluation of the aforementioned 
asset.

When a revaluated tangible asset is disposed, revaluation fund related with tangible asset is transferred to retained earnings (Note 15). 

Intangible assets 
Intangible assets are valued at cost of acquisition is shown as impairment losses and accumulated depreciation and amortization 
are deducted. Purchased intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method (3-25 years).

Capitalized development costs for the improvement of vehicles produced consists of expenditure incurred by the company. 
Intangible assets created within the business providing future economic benefits where possible to the Group are capitalized at 
cost. Development costs are recognized as an expense in the income statement in the period they occur while the necessary 
conditions for recognition are failed to be provided. Cost includes the appropriate portions of overheads relating to all direct costs 
and improvements made to develop (Note 16). 

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 
(Continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Development costs that meet the criteria mentioned below are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis in accordance 
with the relevant project life.

- The costs associated with the product are defined and measured reliably,
- The technical competence of product / feasibility is demonstrated,
- Products will be sold or used in-house,
- A potential market exists for the product, or in-house use is demonstrated,
- Supply of adequate technical, financial and other resources required for the completion of project.

Impairment of assets
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there 
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the 
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent 
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount 
of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit 
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a re-valued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation 
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised 
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an 
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a re-valued amount, in which case 
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 
(Continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost asset which have direct relation with building of assets that are required for long time to be available for use and 
sale are accounted for as part of cost of specific asset until available for use. If such costs can be measured reliably and it is 
probable that future economic benefits from the benefit of the company, are included in the cost of the asset. It was expected to be 
spent on qualifying assets gained through special purpose temporarily accretion of the debt investment income is deducted from 
the borrowing costs enabling the activation conditions. In this context, borrowing costs are expensed if they occur. As of December 
31, 2015 borrowing costs related to credit used amounting to TL 5,232,297 TL were capitalized at the end of the accounting period 
(December 31, 2014: TL 7,878,917). The capitalization rate used to calculate the amount to be capitalized is 8.87% (2014: 9.13%).

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings are recognised initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated 
at amortised cost using the effective yield method. Any difference between proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the redemption 
value is recognised in the income statement as financial expense over the period of the borrowings (Note 10).

Derivative financial instruments
Group’s derivative financial instruments consist of forward transactions to hedge the currency risk arising from fluctuations in 
exchange rates and currency purchase and sale options that has been sold to various banks. Derivatives are initially recognised at 
fair value on the date the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently measured at their respective fair values.

The accounting method of the gain or loss depends on whether the related derivative instruments for hedging purposes, if so, varies 
according to the nature of the item being hedged details are as follows:

Derivatives subject to hedge accounting 
The Group is hegding the risk of cash flows from long term receivables in foreign currency related with public tenders. For cash flow 
hedges, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized directly as other comprehensive income 
in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognized immediately in the statement of consolidated income 
as part of financial income and expense. Amounts recognized as other comprehensive income are transferred to the statement 
of consolidated income when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial 
expense is recognized or when a forecast purchase occurs.

Derivatives not subject to hedge accounting
Other derivatives not designated for hedge accounting are recognized initially at fair value; attributable transaction costs are 
recognized in statement of consolidated income when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair 
value, and changes in the fair value of such derivatives are recognized in the consolidated income statement as part of finance 
income and costs. (Note 9).

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 
(Continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Functional currency and foreign currency transactions

The Group’s primary economic environment in which they operate prevailing currency financial statements of each entity (the 
functional currency) was presented. The functional currency of each entity’s financial position and results of operations of the 
Company and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated. 
Indexed to foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are translated into TL using exchange rates prevailing at the balance 
sheet date. 

Fair value and that are denominated in foreign currency non-monetary items which are followed from the exchange rate at the date 
of the determination of fair value are retranslated at the prevailing.

Non-monetary items in foreign currency measured in terms of historical cost are not subject to retranslation. 

Group’s foreign operations assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet date in the financial statements are expressed 
in TL using exchange rates prevailing. Income and expense items in exchange rates during the period required to use the exchange 
rates at the dates of the transactions unless there is a significant fluctuation (in case of significant fluctuations, the process used 
exchange rates on the date) are translated at the average exchange rates during the period. The resulting exchange differences 
are classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s foreign currency translation reserve funds. Such exchange differences are 
recognized in the income statement in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Earnings/loss per share
Earnings per share stated on statements of income are calculated by dividing net profit by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the year. 

In Turkey, companies can raise their share capital by distributing “bonus shares” to shareholders from retained earnings. In computing 
earnings per share, such “bonus share” distributions are assessed as issued shares. Accordingly, the retrospective effect for those 
share distributions is taken into consideration in determining the weighted-average number of shares outstanding used in this 
computation (Note 29).

Events after reporting period
Events after the balance sheet date are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the balance sheet date and 
the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

The Group records adjusting events after the balance sheet date and disclose non-adjusting events after the balance sheet date on 
the accompanying financial statements (Note 33).
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 
(Continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leasing transactions
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group substantially assumes all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified 
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased property 
or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges 
to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding lease obligations, net of finance charges, are 
included as finance lease obligations. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the statement of comprehensive 
income over the lease period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the useful life 
of the asset.

Risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor is an important part of the leases are classified as operating leases. 
Operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) of the payments under the lease are charged to the income 
statement on a straight line basis over the period.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. 

Possible assets or obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group are not included in consolidated 
financial statements and are treated as contingent assets or liabilities. 

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic 
benefits to the entity. Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements since this may result in the 
recognition of income that may never be realised. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefit is probable. 
Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the consolidated financial 
statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and the related income are 
recognised in the consolidated financial statements of the period in which the change occurs.

The Group provides free of charge maintenance services for the sold vehicles during different periods of time for different models of 
vehicle after the date of sale. Warranty provision is periodically reviewed and reassessed in accordance with the realized expenses 
in the previous periods (Note 12).

Related parties
For the purpose of these financial statements, shareholders, key management personnel and members of the Board, their family 
members and companies, subsidiaries and partnerships managed or controlled by them are considered and referred to as related 
parties (Note 5).

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 
(Continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Segment reporting
Segmental reporting, with the reporting to the competent authority to make decisions regarding the Group’s activities are organized in 
order to ensure the uniformity. The authority to make decisions regarding the activities of the Group, and part of the decisions about 
resources to be allocated to the section responsible for the evaluation of performance. “Other” under the combined section by section 
due to be sufficient to meet the quantitative thresholds for reportable segments are combined for segment reporting.

A reportable segment is a business segment or a geographical segment identified based on the foregoing definitions for which 
segment information is required to be disclosed. A business segment is a distinguishable component of an enterprise that is 
engaged in providing an individual product or service or a group of related products or services and that is subject to risks and 
returns that are different from those of other business segments. A geographical segment is a distinguishable component of an 
enterprise that is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment and that is subject to risks 
and returns that are different from those of components operating in other economic environments.

A business segment or geographical segment should be identified as a reportable segment if a majority of its revenue is earned 
from sales to external customers and if its revenue from sales to external customers and from transactions with other segments is 
10% or more of the total revenue, external and internal, of all segments; or its segment result, whether profit or loss, is 10% or more 
of the combined result of all segments in profit or the combined result of all segments in loss, whichever is the greater in absolute 
amount; or its assets are 10% or more of the total assets of all segments. Management for information on the financial statement 
users about the segment if believed to be useful, industrial or geographical segments that do not meet any of the quantitative 
thresholds can also be considered as a reportable segment and information about them can be explained separately (Note 4).

Taxes on income
Taxes include current period income taxes and deferred taxes. Current year tax liability consists of tax liability on period income 
calculated according to currently enacted tax rates and tax legislation in force as of balance sheet date and includes adjustments 
related to previous years’ tax liabilities (Note 28).

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying values in the consolidated financial statements. Currently enacted tax rates are used to 
determine deferred income tax. 

In substance, temporary differences arise from the differences in the periods of the recognition of income and expenses in 
accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 2.1 and tax legislation.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, whereas deferred tax assets resulting from deductible 
temporary differences are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary difference can be utilised. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities related to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority are offset accordingly.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 
(Continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits/provision for employment termination benefit
Under Turkish law and union agreements, lump sum payments are made to employees retiring or involuntarily leaving the Group. 
Such payments are considered as being part of defined retirement benefit plan as per Turkish Accounting Standard No. 19 (revised) 
“Employee Benefits” (“TAS 19”).

The liability is not funded, as there is no funding requirement. The provision has been calculated by estimating the present value of 
the future probable obligation of the Group arising from the retirement of employees. TAS 19 requires actuarial valuation methods to 
be developed to estimate the entity’s obligation under defined benefit plans. Accordingly, the following actuarial assumptions were 
used in the calculation of the total liability. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses (Note 19). 

Statements of cash flows
In statement of cash flows, cash flows are classified according to operating, investment and finance activities.

Cash flows from operating activities reflect cash flows generated from the main operations of the Group.

Cash flows from investment activities express cash used in investment activities (direct investments and financial investments) and 
cash flows generated from investment activities of the Group. 

Cash flows relating to finance activities express sources of financial activities and payment schedules of the Group.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments which their 
maturities are three months or less from date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value (Note 6).

Government grants
All government incentives, including the non-monetary ones, which are recorded at their fair value are reported in the financial 
statements only in the case that a reasonable guarantee indicating that all the conditions are fulfilled by the entity is obtained. 
Demisable credits that are provided by the government are considered as government incentives in the case that a reasonable 
guarantee indicating that demise conditions are fulfilled by the entity is obtained.

Investment and research and development incentives are defined by the Group when incentive demands are approved by authorities 
(Note 17).

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 
(Continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Share capital, dividends and share premium
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Pro rata capital increases to existing shareholders are accounted for at par value as 
approved. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared. Share premium represents 
the difference between nominal value of the publicly held shares and their sales prices (Note 21).

2.3 Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

Preparation of financial statements requires use of estimates and assumptions that may affect the amount of assets and liabilities 
recognised as of balance sheet date, contingent assets and liabilities disclosed and amount of revenue and expenses reported. 
Although these estimates and assumptions rely on the Group management’s best knowledge about the current events and 
transactions, actual outcome may vary from those estimates and assumptions. The critical accounting estimates which may have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities on operating results of the Group 
are as follows:

(a) Useful lives of tangible and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment (except land and property, plant and equipment) are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment (if any). Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate 
their cost or revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives depend on best estimates of 
management, are reviewed in each financial period and necessary corrections are made.

(b) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

(c) Carry forward tax losses

The group is accounting deferred income tax asset and liabilities for temporary timing differences arise from the difference between 
tax base financial statements and financial statements prepared in accordance with TAS. The group has deferred income tax assets 
consist of unused financial losses could reduce from taxable income in the future and other reducible temporary differences. In this 
context, as of December 31, 2015, Group has accounted deferred taxes amounting to TL 73,703,541 (December 31, 2014: TL 41,111,008) 
which consists of accumulated tax losses amounting to  TL 54,823,568 (December 31, 2014: TL 39,049,149) and investments 
incentives amounting to TL 18,879,973 (December 31, 2014: TL 2,061,859). The Group considered its future profit projections and the 
maturity dates of the tax losses generated in the current period while recognising deferred income tax assets. (Note 28) Where the 
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current 
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made. 
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 
(Continued)

2.3 Significant accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)

(d) Investment allowances
As explained in Note 17, in the assessment result 5520 Tax Law 32/A discounted corporation tax in the corresponding TL 16,628,284 
to 15% of the investment in a total of TL 110,855,227 under the incentive clauses in the framework of subsequently reduced corporate 
pursuant to the first detected anticipation benefit from tax, since December 31, 2015 deferred tax asset was recognized (Note 28). This 
difference in status is different from its findings in the current period of the investment incentives under the investment incentives 
that may affect the Group following the finalization of the deferred income tax assets.

(e) Provision for doubtful receivable 
The Company reserves for doubtful trade receivables that overdue and the possibility of collection is decreased according to the 
experience of past uncollected receivables. In this context, as of December 31, 2015. Group has accounted doubtful receivable 
provision amounting to TL 2,083,182 (December 31, 2014: TL 2,060,000).

(f) Constructions in Progress
As of December 31, 2015, the constructions in progress amounting to TL 130,794,941 (December 31, 2014: TL 208,685,966) consists 
of tangible and intangible investments related to ongoing projects. Following their completion, such projects will be capitalised and 
recognized as an expense via amortization. Based on its best estimates, the management of the group predicts that the economic 
benefit from investments will exceed their book value (Note 15).

NOTE 3 - BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Kıraça Holding owned 99.99% of Kare, therefore according to the financial statements on September 30, 2009 principles are based on 
the incorporated in this framework, all assets and liabilities of Kare were taken over by the company in liquidation.

Karsan’s December 31, 2010 balance sheet prepared in accordance with CMB Financial Reporting Standards by combining the 
balance sheet of two companies. It has been included in the merger process of the preparation due to Kare’s future results of 
operations that occur after April 6, 2010 the date for the year ended on December 31, 2010 consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income. 

The distinction is TL 5,305,140 as a result of the merger, the absence of an item about mandating that financial statement presentation 
format implemented CMB due consolidated under the “additional equity contribution for the merger” is shown.

Kırpart Otomotiv Parçaları Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. which Kare owned 83% has been a subsidiary of Karsan as a result of merger. Kıraça 
Holding A.Ş. has transferred the 83% shares of Kırpart to Kare with a price of TL 28,000,000 on December 28, 2008. This transfer of 
shares under IFRS 3 is not considered as a transaction that occurred between entities or businesses under common control and was 
accounted by Kare via predecessor values method. According to this method, difference between participation fee of TL 28,000,000 
which is determined for Kırpart and the carrying value of equity amounted in financial statements as of December 31, 2008 is TL 
17,707,928 and it has been shown in “Additional equity contribution related to merger”.

NOTE 4 - SEGMENT REPORTING

(*) Consist of Brazil, Italy, Spain, Greece, Dominic Republican, Belgium, South Africa, Macedonia, India, Senegal, Australia, Serbia, Georgia, United Emirates of 

Arabia, Bosnia Herzegovina and Switzerland.

The Group’s main activity is the production of spare parts for automotive and other vehicles. The Group has five operating 
segments for evaluating the performance of Group Management as well as for making decisions about resource allocation. 
These operating segments of Group concern Hyundai H350 for which the reporting of production and local distribution of 
vehicles are performed on a contractual basis;-Buses for which the reporting of production of buses for municipalities are 
performed as a reserve of tenders; Karsan for which the reporting associated to production of commercial vehicles with its 
own brand are performed, Spare Parts for which the reporting associated to the production of spare parts are performed and 
lastly Industrial Sales for which the reporting associated to cataphoresis processes and tractor cabin are performed. Segment 
performance is evaluated on a regular basis in main operations, although considered profit or loss, other expenses from 
main activities and their income is not distributed. Segmental reporting has not been made for assets and liabilities since 
any periodic notification regarding authority to take decision for assets and liabilities have not been performed.

Reporting segment is an industrial or geographical segment where the information must be declared. Industrial segments are 
sections with different characteristics from particular goods or services, or other parts of the Group in terms of providing goods 
or services or the risks and benefits associated with each group. Geographical segment is engaged in providing products or 
services within a particular economic environment and returns that are different from those of segments operating in other 
economic environments in terms of risks and benefits.

735,769,056
319,216,191
19,714,126

14,535,249
11,088,427
10,331,585
10,183,440
9,529,764
9,283,792
7,709,733
6,490,758
5,528,887
3,137,606
6,955,809

1,169,474.423

284,267,241
408,965

18,139,301
9,496,199
9,530,211

3,749,470
10,394,477

10,985
7,047,189
5,178,376

2,822,839
791,951

6,446,805

358,284,009

20142015 

Turkey 
Korea
People’s Republic of China
Slovakia
France
Azerbaijan
Austria
United Kingdom
Hungary
Germany
Romania
Spain
Bulgaria
Other (*)
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NOTE 5 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Balances with related parties

Transactions with related parties

(*)  Including revenue of Hyundai Mighty (HD series) amounting to 1,122,680 TL. 

NOTE 4 - SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Total

1,026,071.041
(903,026,988)
123,044,053
143,403,382

(124,924,195)
18,479,187

141,523,240

(87,051,221)
(39,891,342)
(2,572,269)

152,313,281
(120,802,796)

43,518.893

Hyundai

334,439,627
(310,511,253)
23,928,374
143,403,382

(124,924,195)
18,479,187

42,407,561

(4,930,112)
(11,304,542)

-
-
-

26,172,907

Bus

203,147,713
(165,650,170)
37,497,543

-
-
-

37,497,543

(48,702,241)
(7,598,102)

-
-
-

(18,802,800)

Karsan

237,169,008
(226,523,042)

10,645,966
-
-
-

10,645,966

(23,810,098)
(11,613,473)

-
-
-

(24,777,605)

Spare part

187,062,118
(143,294,042)

43,768,076
-
-
-

43,768,076

(9,305,480)
(7,298,372)
(2,572,269)

-
-

24,591,955

Other (*)

1,769,070
(2,152,568)
(383,498)

-
-
-

(383,498)

(20,471)
(726,655)

-
-
-

(1,130,624)

Industrial
sales

62,483,505
(54,791,801)

7,691,704
-
-
-

7,691,704

(282,819)
(1,350,198)

-
-
-

6,058,687

Elimination
between
sections

-
(104,112)
(104,112)

-
-
-

(104,112)

-
-
-
-
-

(104,112)

Items cannot 
be attributed

-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-

152,313,281
(120,802,796)

31,510,485

January 1 - December 31, 2015

Revenue
Cost of sales (-)
Gross Profit/(loss) from commercial operations
Revenue from financial activities
The cost of financial activities (-)
Gross profit from finance sector operations

Gross Profit/(Loss)

Marketing cost (-)
General administrative expenses (-)
Research and development costs (-)
Other operating income 
Other operating expenses (-)

Operating Profit/(Loss)

Total

358,284,009
(323,911,959)
34,372,050

-
-

34,372,050

(35,863,427)
(51,112,988)
(2,150,105)
81,500,144

(83,577,525)

(56,831,851)

Hyundai

1,053,411
(513,933)
539,478

-
-

539,478

(8,373,448)
(4,220,984)

-
-
-

(12,054,954)

Bus

40,923,951
(34,660,039)

6,263,912
-
-

6,263,912

(6,436,942)
(8,168,156)

-
-
-

(18,341,186)

Karsan

120,650,760
(31,241,247)

(10,590,487)
-
-

(10,590,487)

(11,628,340)
(19,160,062)

-
-
-

(41,378,889)

Spare part

139,859,863
(105,722,446)

34,137,417
-
-

34,137,417

(6,084,737)
(2,634,726)
(2,150,105)

-
-

23,267,849

Other (*)

1,366,534
(7,457,679)

(6,091,145)
-
-

(6,091,145)

(2,130,262)
(6,153,820)

-
-
-

(14,375,227)

Industrial
sales

54,429,490
(44,652,527)

9,776,963
-
-

9,776,963

(1,209,698)
(775,240)

-
-
-

7,792,025

Elimination
between
sections

-
335,912
335,912

-
-

335,912

-
-
-
-
-

335,912

Items cannot 
be attributed

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-

81,500,144
(83,577,525)

(2,077,381)

January 1 - December 31, 2014

Revenue
Cost of sales (-)
Gross Profit/(loss) from commercial operations
Revenue from financial activities
The cost of financial activities (-)
Gross profit from finance sector operations

Gross Profit/(Loss)

Marketing cost (-)
General administrative expenses (-)
Research and development costs (-)
Other operating income 
Other operating expenses (-)

Operating Profit/(Loss)

December 31, 2015

11,998,712
2,730,944

-
58,492

14,788,148

December 31, 2015

3,077,826 

25,133,204
10,879,716
7,411,166
163,030
32,148
18,604 

46,715,694

January 1 - December 31, 2015

11,907,171
6,105,920

215,365
169,930

18,398,386

December 31, 2014

9,309,718
1,664,958

284
-

10,974,960

December 31, 2014

2,713,514 

-
5,003,376
448,292
80,244
60,840
57,530 

8,363,796

January 1 - December 31, 2014

10,038,291
3,431,272

675,804
25,557

14,170,924

a) Trade receivables from related parties

Companies that are managed by main shareholder
Karsa Otomotiv Pazarlama Ticaret A.Ş.
Karland Otomotiv A.Ş.
Heksagon Mühendislik A.Ş.
Legal Danışmanlık Ltd. Şti.

b) Trade payables to related parties

Shareholders
Kıraça Holding A.Ş.

Companies that are managed by main shareholder
Silco S.A.
Heksagon Mühendislik A.Ş.
Sirena Marine Denizcilik ve Ticaret A.Ş.
Kök Ziraat Turizm San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
Kırsan Turizm ve Otomotiv San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
Other

a) Sales

Companies that are managed by main shareholder
Karsa Otomotiv Pazarlama Ticaret A.Ş.
Karland Otomotiv A.Ş.
Heksagon Mühendislik A.Ş.
Sirena Marine Denizcilik ve Ticaret A.Ş.
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NOTE 5 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued) NOTE 5 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The Group pays office usage fee to Heksagon Danışmanlık A.Ş. on monthly basis.

Group sells vehicles and spare parts to its dealer called as Karsa Otomotiv Pazarlama Ticaret A.Ş.

The Group receives engineering and design services for vehicles produced or to be produced from Heksagon Mühendislik A.Ş..

The Group purchases the equipment and spare parts used in the production of BredaMenarinibus brand under the frame of Konya 
and Kocaeli tender from related company called as Silco.S.A. which is headquartered in Geneva. In 2014, there are no purchases 
realized by the Group from Silco S.A..

The Group receives the information technology, human resource, financing and other consulting services from Kıraça Holding.

The relation of Group with Sirena Marine is arising from the purchase of equipment for its factory placed in Organize Sanayi Bölgesi. 
In addition to that, the spare parts used in production of BredaMenarinibus vehicle are provided from Sirena Marine.

Group pays monthly rent to Kök Ziraat A.Ş. for Istanbul office. Oher expenses such as security, natural gas, repair and maintenance, 
cleaning and other common administrative expenses are invoiced monthly by Kök Ziraat A.Ş.

January 1 - December 31, 2015

7,844,671

47,946,122
17,695,893
2,246,539

771,391
718,064
660,838
645,565
493,420
415,810
372,176
314,587

6,071
628

80,131,775

25,499,424

25,499,424

January 1 - December 31, 2014

8,242,028

36,401,082
4,422,534
1,257,695
878,388

-
546,003
550,879
147,760
747,315
333,478

-
5,035

-

53,532,197

-

-

b) Domestic Purchases

Shareholders
Kıraça Holding A.Ş.

Companies that are managed by main shareholder 
Heksagon Mühendislik A.Ş.
Sirena Marine Denizcilik ve Ticaret A.Ş.
Kırsan Turizm ve Otomotiv San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
Karsa Otomotiv Pazarlama Ticaret A.Ş.
Kaynak Sigorta Acenteliği A.Ş.
Legal Danışmanlık Ltd. Şti.
Heksagon Danışmanlık ve Ticaret A.Ş.
Karland Otomotiv A.Ş.
Mercan Sigorta Aracılık Hizmetleri A.Ş.
Kök Ziraat Turizm San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
Arama Araştırma Org. Danışmanlığı Ltd. Şti.
Kar İnşaat Taahhüt San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
Suna ve İnan Kıraç Vakfı Kültür ve Sanat İşletmesi

Overseas purchases 

Silco S.A.

The Group determines key management personnel as the members of board of directors, general manager and assistant general managers.  

NOTE 6 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

January 1 - December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015

January 1 - December 31, 2014

December 31, 2014

814,830
117,861
71,375

1,004,066

2,145

19,460,028
5,002,460

(98)

24,464,535

5,264,047
850,000
356,250
313,914

6,784,211

469,546
1,217

222,226
692,989

3,046

4,165,957
13,614,727

(4,731)

17,778,999

4,165,240
745,000
307,500

9,117
5,226,857

Finance charges and interest expenses
Heksagon Mühendislik A.Ş.
Sirena Marine Denizcilik ve Ticaret A.Ş.
Kıraça Holding A.Ş.

Cash
Bank
   - demand deposits
   - time deposits with maturities less than three months
Cheques given and payment orders

Benefits provided to key management
Salary and Social Security Premiums
Premiums
Allowances
Others
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NOTE 7 - FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

The details of the available-for-sale financial assets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Details of cash and cash equivalents subject to statement of cash flow as of December 31, 2015 and 2014:

(*) Included in consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2015.

17,778,999
(14,727)

17,764,272

24,464,535
(2,460)

24,462,075

Cash and cash equivalents
Interest Accruals (-)

Cash and cash equivalents subjected to cash flow statement

December 31, 
2015

December 31, 
2014

Share
(%)

Share
(%)

263,520
2.114

265,634

-
2,114

2,114

100
<1

100
<1

Not traded in stock market
Karsan Italy S.R.L. (*)
Bosen Enerji A.Ş.

NOTE 6 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Details of time deposits are as follows:

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2014

Interest 
rate (%)

Interest 
rate (%)

TLTL

10
10

11
11

13,614,727
13,614,727

5,002,460
5,002,460

TL deposits
Total

a) Short term financial liabilities

Interest
rate (%)

Interest
rate (%)

TLTL

4.95
9.14
4.94
12.76

-
-

4.73
12.92
4.94

14.86
-

15.65

44,591,972
57,221,410

25,431
5,010,215

9,804,838
-

116,653,866

79,206,170
52,105,987
14,798,652

105,482,295
17,307,086
13,936,980

282,837,170

Short term loans 
   Euro loans
   TL loans
   USD loans
Short term liabilities related to bonds issued (*)
Finance lease liabilities
TL factoring payables

NOTE 8 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

141,759,084
105,482,295

17,307,086
13,936,980
4,351,725

282,837,170

540,332,402
202,164,983

66,640,505

809,137,890

1,091,975.060

93,348,922
5,010,215

9,804,838
-

8,489,891

116,653,866

289,195,418
280,000,000
72,843,378

642,038,796

758,692,662

Short term portion of long term borrowings
Short term liabilities related to bonds issued (*)
Short term finance lease liabilities
Factoring payables
Short tern financial loans

Long term financial loans
Long term liabilities related to bonds issued (*)
Long term finance lease liabilities

Total financial liabilities 
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(*) It consists of the bonds issued to qualified investors except stock market in accordance with the approval of Capital Markets Board dated May 6, 2014 and 
numbered 14/424 with the nominal value of TL 100,000,000 which has 728 days of maturity, quarterly coupon payments, variable interest rate and principal 
payment at the maturity, the bonds issued in accordance with the approval of Capital Markets Board dated October 2, 2014 and numbered 29/966 with the 
nominal value of TL 180,000,000 which has 1,092 days of maturity, quarterly coupon payments, variable interest rate and principal payment at the maturity 
and bond issued on March 27, 2015 and sold to qualified investors outside the stock exchange with the nominal value of TL 20,000,000 which has 1,092 days 
of maturity, quarterly coupon payments, variable interest rate and principal payment at the maturity.

Disclosures on the fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities have been provided in Note 31.

Redemption schedule of long-term bank loans and bonds:

As explained in Note 10, as of December 31, 2015, the receivables from IETT, Konya and Kocaeli Municipalities amounting to 
EUR 81,778,871 are assigned for the long term loans amounting to TL 51,648,196 and EUR 46,256,203 borrowed from T.C. Ziraat 
Bankası A.Ş. and T.C. Vakıflar Bankası TAO. These receivables will be used for amortization of loans.

NOTE 8 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

b) Long-term financial liabilities c) Finance lease liabilities

(*) Total change in the fair value of derivative instruments not for hedging purposes amounting to TL 9,546,804  are classified under expenses from investing 
activities (Note 27).

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2014

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2014

Interest Rate 
(%)

Interest Rate 
(%)

TLTL

5.05
12

4.94
12.76

-

4.55
14.95

-
14.28

-

141,941,112
135,659,806

11,594,500
280,000,000
72,843,378

642,038,796

348,747,977
191,584,425

-
202,164,983

66,640,505

809,137,890

Long-term loans
     Euro loans
     TL loans
     USD loans
Long term liabilities related to bonds issued (*)
Finance lease liabilities

NOTE 8 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

NOTE 9 - FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

-
553,247,452
108,458,459

41,795,111
36,007,884
2,988,479

742,497,385

175,796,795
171,805,810
208,771,450

5,128,545
5,128,545
2,564,273

569,195,418

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

-
-

-

-
-

-

347,854
883,643

1,231,497

3,347,595
8,663,161

12,010,756

Short-term liabilities
Forward contracts
Money trading options (*)

Long-term liabilities
Forward contracts
Money trading options (*)

Interest InterestTotal
liabilities

Total
liabilities

Minimum
financial

 leasing
 payment

Minimum
financial

 leasing
 payment

9,804,838
-

14,844,150
14,758,999
13,768,274
11,879,155
12,755,370
4,837,430

82,648,216

16,260,398
-

20,254,345
18,834,750
16,783,834
13,904,816
13,807,073
4,993,706

104,838,922

-
(6,063,158)

-
(4,574,939)
(3,403,809)
(2,295,404)
(1,187,067)
(176,049)

(17,700,426)

(6,455,560)
-

(5,410,195)
(4,075,751

(3,015,560)
(2,025,661)
(1,051,703)
(156,276)

(22,190,706)

-
17,307,086

-
17,102,076
15,850,585
13,697,217
14,541,122
5,449,505

83,947,591

-
23,370,244

-
21,677,015

19,254,394
15,992,621
15,728,189
5,625,554

101,648,017

Short term
2015
2016

Long term
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
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The movements for provisions of doubtful trade receivables between the dates of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as below:

The Group’s standard credit period of trade receivables is between 30 and 60 days (December 31, 2014: between 30 and 60 
days). The effective annual interest rates applied to trade receivables denominated in TL. EUR and USD are 10.13%. 0.11% and 
%0.32, respectively (December 31, 2014: annual 8.33%. 0.29% and 0.63%).

NOTE 9 - FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 10 - TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The movements of derivative instruments for hedging purposes during the financial period are as follows:

a) Trade receivables (short term)

b) Trade receivables (Long term)

c) Trade payables

(*) The Group’s Istanbul Electric Tramway and Tunnel Management of Establishments (IETT) represent the receivables associated with tenders dated May 
24, 2012 and June 21, 2012, with an opened tender of Kocaeli Metropolitan Municipality dated February 10, 2015 and with an opened tender of Konya 
Municipality dated May 5, 2015. In accordance with signed agreements, the Group has a total receivable amounting TL 343,677,056; TL 246,234,574 of which 
has been classified as long term. These receivables consist of receivables from IETT, Konya Metropolitan Municipality and Kocaeli Municipality amounting 
to TL 140,062,147, TL 82,694,180 and TL 120,920,729 respectively. As of December 31, 2015, the receivables from Konya and Kocaeli Metropolitan Municipality 
amounting to EUR 81,778,871 is assigned for the long term loans amounting to TL 51,648,196 and EUR 46,256,203 borrowed from Ziraat and Vakıfbank.

The Group’s average payment period for its trade payables is 90 days (December 31, 2015: 90 days). The effective annual 
interest rates applied to trade payables denominated in TL, EUR and USD are 10,13%, 0,11% and 0,32% (December 31,2014: 
8,33%, 0,29% and 0,63%) respectively.

2015

2015

2014

2014

-

-

-

119,017,511
(722,198)

118,295,313

59,870,613
(225,298)

59,645,315

(1,992,988)

(67,012)
-

(2,060,000)

-

3,695,449

3,695,449

246,234,574
(2,935,879)

243,298,695

168,266,938
(125,597)

168,141,341

(2,060,000)

(55,525)
32,343

(2,083,182)

Opening balance

Other comprehensive income associated with
- Hedging losses - gross

Balance at the year-end

Trade receivables (*)
Unearned financial income (-)

Trade payables
Unearned credit finance expense (-)

January 1

Doubtful receivables provision (Note 25)
Provisions no longer required

December 31

NOTE 10 - TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (Continued)

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2014
198,815,694

2,083,182
53,151,728

254,050,604

(2,083,182)
(2,759,333)

249,208,089

142,878,349
2,060,000

16,223,067

161,161,416

(2,060,000)
(783,851)

158,317,565

Trade receivables
Doubtful receivables
Notes receivable

Doubtful receivable provision (-)
Unearned credit finance income (-)
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(*) As mentioned in footnote 2.2, the investments related to the contract signed with HMC, considering the terms of contracts concerning the financial leasing 
transaction within the scope of IFRIC 4, are considered as finance lease receivables as a result of the evaluation.

Payment schedule of receivables from leasing transactions is as follows:

NOTE 11 - FINANCIAL RECEIVABLES

(*) It represents Group’s repair and maintenance provisions associated with cost of 5 years after sales services of buses sold to IETT in 2013.

(**) It represents Group’s repair and maintenance provisions associated with cost of 2 and 5 years after sales services of buses sold to Konya Municipality in 
2014 and 2015 respectively.

(***) It represents Group’s repair and maintenance provisions associated with cost of 5 years after sales services sold to Kocaeli Municipality in 2015.

7,626,254
6,800,508
5,467,407

-
3,063,532

421,250

23,378,951

27,809,105
-
-

27,809,105

16,633,048
6,047,566
4,012,887
3,162,392
1,709,975
411,904

31,977,772

16,510,397
12,649,569
9,647,305

38,807,271

a) Other short-term provisions

Provision for IETT bus maintenance and repair expenses (*)
Provision for Konya Municipality bus maintenance and repair expenses (**)
Guarantee expense provisions
Provision for Kocaeli Municipality bus maintenance and repair expenses (***)
Sales discounts provisions
Other

b) Other long-term provisions

Provision for IETT bus maintenance and repair expenses (*)
Provision for Kocaeli Municipality bus maintenance and repair expenses (***)
Provision for Konya Municipality bus maintenance and repair expenses (**)

NOTE 12 - SHORT AND LONG TERM PROVISIONS

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2014

December 31, 2014

7,679,153
7,679,153

124,450,583
124,450,583

132,129,736

-
-

-
-

-

Short term receivables related to finance lease (*)

Long term receivables related to finance lease (*)

Total receivables related to finance lease

Interest InterestTotal
assets

Total
assets

Minimum
financial

 leasing
payment

Minimum
financial

 leasing
payment

-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-

-
-
-
-
-

-

(7,835,479)

(7,380,094)
(6,634,836)
(5,582,515)
(4,257,495)
(2,408,045)

(34,098,464)

-

-
-
-
-
-

-

7,679,153

12,567,289
17,745,300

22,343,823
30,761,246
41,032,925

132,129,736

15,514,632

19,947,383
24,380,136
27,926,338
35,018,741
43,440,970

166,228,200

Short term
2016

Long term
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
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NOTE 12 - SHORT AND LONG TERM PROVISIONS (Continued)

The movements of the guarantee expense provisions during the periods are as follows:

The movements of the sales discounts provisions during the periods are as follows:

The movements of repair and maintenance provisions associated with sales of buses to Kocaeli Municipality 
during the periods are as follows:

The movements of repair and maintenance provisions associated with sales of buses to Konya Municipality 
during the periods are as follows:

NOTE 12 - SHORT AND LONG TERM PROVISIONS (Continued)

NOTE 13 - INVENTORIES

2015 2014

5,467,407
7,142,985

(8,597,505)

4,012,887

1,753,552
9,593,070

(5,879,215)

5,467,407

Balance as of January 1
Additions
Disposals due to the payments

Balance as of December 31

2015 2014

3,063,532
22,481,437

(23,834,994)

1,709,975

1,687,500
17,411,429

(16,035,397)

3,063,532

Balance as of January 1
Additions
Disposals due to the payments

Balance as of December 31

2015 2014

-
18,505,145
(2,693,184)

15,811,961

-
-
-

-

Balance as of January 1
Additions (Note 23 and 24)
Disposals due to the payments

Balance as of December 31

2015 2014

6,800,508
14,189,246
(4,320,153)

(995,111)
20,381

15,694,871

-
7,979,504

(1,178,996)
-
-

6,800,508

Balance as of January 1
Additions (Note 23 and 24)
Disposals due to the payments
Transfers between the corresponding accounts
Revaluation differences

Balance as of December 31

For the period from January 1 to December 31, 2015, a portion amounting to TL 683,172,878 of the cost of goods sold is related 
to raw material and supplies usage (January 1- December 31, 2015: 210,361,634 TL) (Notes 22 and 24). 

The movements of provision for net realisable value of inventories during the period are as follows:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
37,335,761
16,239,343
20,160,214
16,858,353

642,247

91,235,918

(1,046,524)

90,189,394

52,653,627
6,683,486
14,203,769
53,326,126

9,155,513

136,022,521

(918,839)

135,103,682

Raw materials
Semi-finished goods
Finished goods
Trade goods
Goods in transit

Provision for net realisable value of inventories (-)

2015 2014

(1,046,524)
127,685

-

(918,839)

(337,698)
337,698

(1,046,524)

(1,046,524)

January 1
Current period sales
Provision for net realisable value of inventories for the period (-)

December 31

The movements of repair and maintenance provisions associated with sales of buses to IETT during the periods 
are as follows:

2015 2014

35,435,359
15,894,090

(21,257,547)
995,111

2,076,432

33,143,445

44,633,768
7,884,735

(17,083,144)
-
-

35,435,359

Balance as of January 1
Additions (Note 23 and 24)
Disposals due to the payments
Transfers between the corresponding accounts
Revaluation differences

Balance as of December 31



142 143

Karsan Annual Report 2015

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1 - DECEMBER 31, 2015
(Amounts expressed in Turkish lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

NOTE 14 - PREPAID EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

10,420,545
4,988,997

15,409,542 

2,350,046
18,338

2,368,384 

3,833,684
16,903

3,850,587 

303,767 

303,767

5,791,851
4,598,196

10,390,047 

13,992,869
1,601,778

15,594,647 

921,283
286,137

1.207,420 

331,381

331,381

a) Short term prepaid expenses
 
Advances given for purchase orders 
Prepaid expenses 

 

b) Long term prepaid expenses
 
Advances given for purchase orders 
Prepaid expenses
 

 
c) Short term deferred income
 
Advances received from customers 
Unearned income 
 

 
d) Long term deferred income 

Unearned income

NOTE 15 - PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

The movement of property, plant and equipment and related accumulated depreciation for the period ended December 31, 2015 is 
as follows:

(*)  Disposal of the current period represents the investment cost as a result of operation for the finance lease rented to HMC, accordingly cost of the financial sector activities.

Net book value of tangible assets acquired by Group via financial leasing contracts on December 31, 2015 amounts to TL 12,538,676 
(December 31, 2014: TL 16,241,085).

Land

41,740,512
330,029

-
52,220,351
15,000,000

-

109,290,892

-
-
-

-

109,290,892

Land
improvements

13,988,285
120,071

-
-

294,873
-

14,403,229

5,791,512
580,806

-

6,372,318

8,030,911

Buildings

98,209,612
2,183,353

-
28,395,398

(14,622,724)
-

114,165,639

39,761,425
5,249,516
(250,000)

44,760,941

69,404,698

Machinery 
and

equipment

213,314,740
15,424,447
(1,835,939)
20,928,329

3,599,061
(709,757)

250,720,881

118,659,487
16,349,414

(540,791)

134,468,110

116,252,771

Vehicles

5,489,681
2,843,670

(1,189,642)
-

1,355,217
-

8,498,926

2,000,517
1,416,808
(374,573)

3,042,752

5,456,174

Other
tangible

fixed assets

2,143,653
129,526

-
-
-
-

2,273,179

1,483,713
116,890

-

1,600,603

672,576

Furniture 
and fixtures

27,190,074
1,646,884
(672,051)

-
2,622,575

-

30,787,482

17,732,201
2,605,141
(362,008)

19,975,334

10,812,148

Construction
in progress (*)

208,685,966
94,268,502

(124,924,195)
-

(47,235,332)
-

130,794,941

-
-
-

-

130,794,941

Total

610,762,523
116,946,482

(128,621,827)
101,544,078
(38,986,330)

(709,757)

660,935,169

185,428,855
26,318,575
(1,527,372)

210,220,058

450,715,111

Cost
January 1, 2015 Balance
Additions
Disposal
Revaluation Fund Increase
Transfers
Impairment

Accumulated depreciation

January 1, 2015 Balance
Charge for the period
Disposals

Net book value as of
December 31, 2015
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NOTE 15 - PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 

The movement of property, plant and equipment and related accumulated depreciation for the period ended December 31, 2014 is 
as follows:

Tai Investment Holding Co. Ltd., on ground of inconsistency with –pre -defined timeline new alternative joint ventures are started 
to be searched and evaluated. Group, as details mentioned below, has reflected impairments related to machine and equipment 
belonging to J-10 production line in its consolidated financial statements as a result of revaluation as of May 31, 2015. In addition 
to the revaluation, Group has disposed machine and equipment belongs to J10 production line amounting to TL 1,541,891 to scraps 
in current period.

An independent revaluation of the group’s land, buildings and machinery and equipment was performed to determine their fair value 
on September 18, 2015 and May 31, 2015 respectively.  The details of revaluation performed by TSKB Real Estate Appraisal Company 
via comparing the relative sales method for usable real estates on September 18, 2015 and machine and equipment on May 31, 
2015 are given below:

As of December 31, 2015 the Group have mortgages amounting to EUR 59,260,000, TL 149,000,000 and USD 4,500,000 associated 
with credit obtained by Group for the purpose of property plant and equipment purchases (December 31, 2015: EUR 59,260,000, TL 
149,000,000 and USD 4,500,000) (Note 18).

TL 35,868,473 (2014: TL 28,598,713) of the current period depreciation and amortization expenses have been reflected to costs of 
goods sold (Note 22), TL 847,996 (2014: TL 660,439) to marketing, sales and distribution expenses (Note 23), TL 2,247,559 (2014: TL 
2,018,255) to general administrative expenses (Note 23), TL 124,244 to research and development expenses (Note 23), TL 1,369,363 
(2014: TL 1,370,197) to costs of an investment and TL 414,994 (2014: TL 112,313) to inventory costs. Balance of TL 4,028,323 (2014: TL 
916,033) has been netted from provisions of repair and maintenance expenses.

Following the sign of LOI – letter of intent- between Group and Whuna Zhong Tuan Bang Tai Investment Holding Co. Ltd. with intent 
of selling the production line and know-how for J10 vehicle production, machinery and equipment amounting to TL 14,238,301 and 
research and development expenses amounting to TL 15,063,530, tangible and intangible assets amounting to total balance of 
TL 29,301,831 has been classified as asset held for sale from the date of June 30, 2013. In June 2014 an additional protocol has 
been signed. The subject of protocol was performing a preliminary assessment for a possible joint venture between Karsan and 
Whuna Zhong Tuan Bang Tai Investment Holding Co. Ltd. to establish a company with the purpose of production of Group’s vehicles - 
included J10 - in China. As it is mentioned in Note 32, although the ongoing negotiations are continued with Wuhan Zhong Yuan Bang 

Land

41,740,512
-
-
-
-

41,740,512

-
-
-
-
-

-

41,740,512

Land
improvements

13,124,596
328,836
(144,767)

-
679,620

13,988,285

5,260,807
549,509

-
6,717

(25,521)

5,791,512

8,196,773

Buildings

97,069,420
1,140,192

-
-
-

98,209,612

39,520,350
3,191,075

-
-

(2,950,000)

39,761,425

58,448,187

Machinery 
and

equipment

219,991,568
13,548,128

(30,601,825)
(1,874,585)
12,251,454

213,314,740

123,813,931
14,429,431
(2.250.778)
2,517,928

(19,851,025)

118,659,487

94,655,253

Vehicles

3,434,046
2,861,932
(456,038)

-
(350,259)

5,489,681

1,370,663
1,094,476

-
(143,538)
(321,084)

2,000,517

3,489,164

Other
tangible

fixed assets

4,600,532
551,075

-
-

(3,007,954)

2,143,653

3,586,909
180,756

-
(2,283,952)

-

1,483,713

659,940

Furniture 
and fixtures

28,353,795
2,492,403

(3,847,806)
-

191,682

27,190,074

18,127,912
3,063,256

-
(342,797)

(3,116,170)

17,732,201

9,457,873

Construction
in progress

92,300,443
179,954,481

-
-

(63,568,958)

208,685,966

-
-
-
-
-

-

208,685,966

Total

500,614,912
200,877,047
(35,050,436)
(1,874,585)

(53,804,415)

610,762,523

191,680,572
22,508,503
(2.250.778)
(245,642)

(26,263,800)

185,428,855

425,333,668

Cost

January 1,2014 Balance
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation fund
Transfers

Accumulated depreciation

January 1, 2014 Balance
Charge for the period
Revaluation Fund Increase
Transfers
Disposals

Net book value as of
December 31, 2014

(*) The assets held for sale are consisting of machinery and equipment belongs to J10 production line. Total revaluation decrease of machinery and equipment 
classified as asset held for sale is amounted to TL 8,138,396, TL 4,947,821 of revaluation decrease is deducted from “Revaluation reserve” (Note 27). 
TL 3,190,575 is associated with “Expenses from investing activities” account in income statement. 

The movements of revaluation fund of lands and buildings and machinery and equipment in 2015 and 2014 are as 
follows:

Revaluation 
fund 

increase

Net book value 
as of valuation 

day

Revaluation 
fund 

decrease

Appraisal 
value

-
-

(709,757)
(8,138,396)

(8,848,153)

104,569,941
64,309,029
73,038,530
4,569,470

246,486,970

52,220,351
28,395,398
20,928,329

-

101,544,078

52,349,590
35,913,631
52,819,958
12,707,866

153,791,045

Lands
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Assets held for sale (*)

2015 2014

80.480.862

101.544.078
(4.947.821)

(11.486.200)
(7.617.535)
1.523.509

159.496.893

194.694

159.691.587

85.478.836

326.575
-

(76.006)
(6.560.679)

1.312.136

80.480.862

-

80.480.862

January 1

Deferred income tax calculated on increase in revaluation fund
Deferred income tax calculated on decrease in revaluation fund
Deferred tax effect of disposals of tangible assets on revaluation found
Fund decrease arising from revaluation of land
Deferred income tax calculated on increase in revaluation fund due to business combination

Revaluation and measurement gains change - net

Non-controlling interests

December 31
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NOTE 16 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The movement of intangible assets for the period ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

NOTE 17 - GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND INCENTIVES

In order to mitigate the negative effects of the global financial crisis, the Law No. 5838 entered into force after publication in the 
Official Gazette on February 28, 2009. With the relevant articles of the law for encouraging investments, the application of reduced 
corporate income tax rate has been brought forward. Reduced corporate income tax rate shall be subject to the incentive certificate 
by the under secretariat of Treasury ROI. Accordingly the discount rate, the investment of the earnings from these investments 
partially or completely account for the period from the operation that initiated the “investment amount” will continue to apply until 
it reaches. “Investment amount” in the law that reduced corporate income tax by applying a tax means the amount to be borne by 
the state subject to amnesty, it is stated that through investments 2009/15199 received July 16, 2009 Council of Ministers decision 
with no. 5838 to benefit from the investments made with certain conditions and determinations of Law On state aid has made the 
arrangement actually feasible.

As of the date of December 31, 2015, incentive certificate numbered as A-107742 received for product diversification /modernization 
investments on November 27, 2012 has been revised with 06888 number on January 28, 2014, with 45008 number on July 3, 2014 
and lastly with 22555 number on February 18, 2015. The revised investment incentive certificates amounts to TL 63,617,253 (local) and 
USD 37,493,947 (imported).

Kırpart, while continuing its activities in production of thermostat for automotive industry, water and oil pumps and castings, it is 
continuing to invest in fixed assets related to the new product lines or related to the capacity increase in existing product lines. 
The incentive certificate numbered as 106988 received for modernization/extension investments on September 27, 2012 has been 
revised with document number of B106988 on July 23, 2013 and with document number of C106988 on July 24, 2015. The revised 
investment incentive certificates amounts to 20,990,065 TL.

Below are the details of the advantages enabled by the investment incentive certificates: 

• VAT exemption and customs duty exemption
• The tax rate 50% Investment Participation Rate:15%

The Group, as a result of the assessment as well as prediction of benefiting from subsequent periods of reduced corporate tax 
in the frame of Corporate Tax Law No. 5520. Article 32/A, has accounted deferred tax assets amounting to TL 16,628,284 balance 
representing 15% of total TL 110,855,227 within the scope of  government grants and incentives (Note 28).

The group has accounted tax reductions amounting to 2,251,689 TL (December 31, 2014: 2,061,859 TL) (Note 28) carried forward from 
previous years that have not been used but yet able to be utilized within the scope of other incentives as deferred tax assets. 

Capitalised
development

costs

TotalComputer
software

155,904,639
12,288,481

(1.217)
38,986,330

207,178,233

23,720,235
18,582,377

(1,217)

42,301,395

164,876,838

92,005,961
9,829,257

54,069,421

155,904,639

12,521,169
11,218,430

(19,364)

23,720,235

132,184,404

12,046,826
1,601,707

(1,217)
1,162,803

14,810,119

8,173,985
2,386,701

(1,217)

10,559,469

4,250,650

10,769,765
1,277,061

-

12,046,826

7,062,495
1.130,854

(19,364)

8,173,985

3,872,841

143,857,813
10,686,774

-
37,823,527

192,368,114

15,546,250
16,195,676

-

31,741,926

160,626,188

81,236,196
8,552,196

54,069,421

143,857,813

5,458,674
10,087,576

-

15,546,250

128,311,563

Cost Value
Opening balance on January 1, 2015
Additions
Disposals
Transfers

Accumulated amortization
Opening balance on January 1, 2015
Amortization for the period
Disposals

Net book value as of December 31, 2015

Cost Value
Opening balance on January 1, 2014
Additions
Transfers

Accumulated amortization
Opening balance on January 1, 2014
Amortization for the period
Transfers

Net book value as of December 31, 2014
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NOTE 18- PROVISIONS. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

a) Guarantees. Pledges and Mortgages given by the Group (“GPMs”):

As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, guarantees, pledges and mortgages (“GPMs”) given by Group are as follows: 

NOTE 18- PROVISIONS. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

Ratio of other GPMs given by Group to Group’s equity is 0% as of December 31, 2015 (December 31, 2014: 0%).

(*) As of December 31, 2015, TL 8,087,165 given to Custom offices, tax offices and other public institutions are comprised of guarantee letters  amounting to 
USD 670,071 and EUR 24,871,920; of letters of credit amounting to EUR 1,374,151 and JPY 159,640,000 which was spared to buy raw materials and kits, but 
hadn’t been actually imported; of endorsement loan amounting to EUR 7,780,049, lastly of  mortgages amounting to TL 149,000,000, USD 4,500,000 and EUR 
59,260,000 given with the long-term loans.

(*) As of December 31, 2014, consists of guarantee letters given to custom administrations, tax administration, other public corporations amounting to TL 
30,180,592 and EUR 11,789,524; and USD 90,000 of mortgage given on the property, plant and equipment in line with the requirements of the long-term loan 
used and amount of TL 149,000,000 TL, USD 4,500,000 and EUR 59,260,000 mortgages, which were given with the long-term loans.

Orjinal
currency

EUR

Orjinal
currency

EUR

Orjinal
currency 

TL

Orjinal
currency 

TL

Orjinal
currency

JPY

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Orjinal

currency 
USD

Orjinal
currency 

USD

Total
TL 

equivalent

Total
TL 

equivalent

159,640,000 

None 

None 

None 
None 
None 

None

159,640,000

None

5,170,071 

None 

None 

None 
None 
None 

None

5,170,071

None

4,590,000 

YNone 

None 

None 
None 
None 

None

4,590,000

None

472,389,450 

None 

None 

None 
None 
None 

None

472,389,450

None

390,233,735

None 

None 

None 
None 
None 

None

390,233,735

None

93,286,120 

None 

None 

None 
None 
None 

None

93,286,120

None

71,049,524 

YNone 

None 

None 
None 
None 

None

71,049,524

None

157,087,165

None 

None 

None 
None 
None 

None

157,087,165

None

179,180,592

None 

None 

None 
None 
None 

None

179,180,592

None

A.  GPMs given on behalf
    of the Company’s legal personality (*)
B.  GPMs given in favour of
     subsidiaries included in full consolidation
C.  GPMs given by the Company for
     the liabilities of third parties in order
     to run ordinary course of business
D.  Other GPMs
i.   GPMs given in favour of the Company
ii.   GPMs given in favour of group companies
     not in the scope of B and C above
iii.  GPMs given in favour of third-party
     companies not in the scope of C above

Total GPMs

Other GPMS

A.  GPMs given on behalf
     of the Company’s legal personality (*)
B.  GPMs given in favour of
     subsidiaries included in full consolidation
C.  GPMs given by the Company for
     the liabilities of third parties in order
     to run ordinary course of business
D.  Other GPMs
i.   GPMs given in favour of the Company
ii.  GPMs given in favour of group companies
    not in the scope of B and C above
iii. GPMs given in favour of third-party
    companies not in the scope of C above

Total GPMs

Other GPMS
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NOTE 18- PROVISIONS. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

Guarantees received:

Guarantees received by the Group are as follows:

NOTE 19 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

b) Explanation for ongoing lawsuits related with the Group as of December 31, 2015:
There are ongoing lawsuits related to Group’s receivables as of December 31, 2015, After considering collaterals and trade payables 
related with those trade receivables, a provision is set aside for the remaining amount of TL 2,083,182 (December 31, 2014: TL 
2,060,000) (Note 10).

c) Other:
The Group has letters of credit amounting to TL 8,210,314 as of December 31, 2015 (December 31, 2014: TL 253,863) which have been 
opened for the purchases of raw materials and supplies but not yet been imported.

NOTE 19 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 

Under Turkish Labour Law, the Group is required to pay employment termination benefits to each employee who has Under the Turkish 
Labour Law, the Group is required to pay employment termination benefits to each employee who has qualified for such payment. 
Also, employees are entitled to retirement pay provisions subsequent to the completion of their retirement period by gaining a right 
to receive retirement payments in accordance with the amended Article of 60 the applicable Social Insurance Law No. 506 and the 
related Decrees Nos. 2422 and 4447, issued on March 6, 1981 and August 25, 1999, respectively. The amount payable consists of 
one month’s salary, limited to a maximum of TL 4,092.53 for each period of service on December 31, 2015 (December 31, 2014: TL 
3,438.22). The liability is not funded, as there is no funding requirement.
 
The provision has been calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the Group arising from the 
retirement of the employees. IAS 19 (“Employee Benefits”). It requires actuarial valuation methods to be developed to estimate the 
enterprises’ obligation under defined benefit plans. Accordingly, the following actuarial assumptions were used in the calculation of 
the total liability:

Ceiling amount of payable for termination indemnity is revised in every 6 month. For the calculation of The Group’s provisions 
for employee termination benefits is calculated with ceiling amount of TL 4,092.53 which is effective from January 1, 2016. The 
movement of provisions for employee termination benefits assets for the period ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

2,779,987
3,629,490

6,409,477

2,719,980

2,719,980

19,700,845

19,700,845

3,857,298
1,187,962

5,045,260

1,996,996

1,996,996

13,172,875

13,172,875

a) Employee benefit payables

Due to personnel
Withholdings Payable

b) Employee benefit provisions- Short term

Unused vacation liability

c) Employee benefit provisions- Long term

Provisions for employee termination benefits

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2014

57,132,207
30,850,660

87,982,867

5,207,352
15,190,818

20,398,170

Letters and cheques of guarantees received
Direct debiting system

2015 2014

97
3.3

13,172,875
1,649,829
1,212,820
4,974,416
(1,309,095)

19,700,845

96
2.5

10,197,866
1,163,728
814,246

1,999,041
(1,002,006)

13,172,875

Probability of retirement (%) 
Discount rate (%)

January 1
Service cost for the current period
Interest expense
Actuarial loss (Note 21)
Paid during the period

December 31
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NOTE 20 - OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(*) It is consisted of accrued compensation incomes related to HMC project 

NOTE 21 - CAPITAL. RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS 

a) Paid-in Capital 

The composition of the Group’s paid-in share capital as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

The Group’s share capital consists of 3,352,039,857 Group A shares and 42,647,960,143 Group B shares with par value Kr1 for both 
share groups (2014: Kr 1) (2014: 3,352,039,857 Group A and 42,647,960,143 Group B).

According to Article 8 of Articles of Association, Group (A) shareholders are privileged to introduce 5 members out of 7 for selection 
to the board of directors as long as board of directors is consisted of 7 members; 6 members out of 9 as long as board of directors 
is consisted of 9 members. 

Tier   Group  Privilege on BOD Election

1+2+3+4+5+6+7+8  A  Article No: 8

a) Reserves on retained earnings

The legal reserves consist of first and second reserves, appropriated in accordance with the TCC. The TCC stipulates that the first legal 
reserve is appropriated out of statutory profits at the rate of 5% per annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the Company’s 
paid-in share capital. The second legal reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10% per annum of all cash distributions in excess of 5% 
of the paid-in share capital. Under the TCC, the legal reserves can only be used to offset losses and are not available for any other 
usage unless they exceed 50% of paid-in share capital. 

The aforementioned amounts shall be classified in “Legal Reserves” in accordance with CMB Financial Reporting Standards. As of 
December 31, 2015, the Group has legal reserves assorted from profit in the amount of TL 1,031,613 (December 31, 2014: TL 1,031,613).

63,234,045
56

63,234,101

3,768,605
177,530

3,946,135

70,000,000
-

70,000,000

1,943,635
105,934

2,049,569

b) Other fixed assets

Long-term VAT receivables
Other

c) Other short-term liabilities

Other payable taxes and funds
Other

64,608,993
17,653,512
6,656,731
1,712,513

90,631,749

16,341,574
5,236,234

-
463,404

22,041,212

a) Other current assets

VAT carried-forward
Income Accruals (*)
Other VAT
Other

TLTL Share (%)Share (%)
291,905,176
160,143,853

7,950,971

460,000,000

22,585,778

291,905,176
160,143,853

7,950,971

460,000,000

22,585,778

63.46
34.81

1.73

100.00

63.46
34.81

1.73

100.00

Kıraça Holding A.Ş.
Publicly traded part
Other

Inflation adjustment to share capital

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
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NOTE 21 - CAPITAL. RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS (Continued) 

c) Share Premium

Share premium represents the difference between face value and selling price of the public shares.

Share premium as December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

d) Other loss

NOTE 22 - SALES AND COST OF SALES

TL 25,889,253 of cost of sales for the period January 1 – December 31, 2015 is related to idle capacity expenses (January 
1-December 31, 2014: TL 22,387,405).

(*) Represents accrued rental income from financial leasing contracts.

2015 2014

6,139,733

(3,336,110)
(4,974,416)

994,883

(7,315,643)

40,676

(7,274,967)

6,139,733

(1,775,182)
(1,999,041)

399,808

(3,374,415)

38,305

(3,336,110)

Share premium

January 1
Actuarial losses (Note 19)
Actuarial losses - tax effect (Note 28)

Change in Actuarial Losses -net

Non-controlling interests

December 31

January 1 - December 31, 2015 January 1 - December 31, 2014

304,356,690
72,267,881

5,407,977
(10,513,367)
(13,235,172)

358,284,009

-
-
-

-

(210,361,634)
(32,220,586)
(18,706,162)
(19,196,156)
(28,598,713)

7,658,839
(18,535,357)
(2,148,664)
(1,803,526)

(323,911,959)

749,935,983
290,301,985
27,253,630

(27,630,746)
(13,789,811)

1,026,071.041

137,511,508
5,891,874

(124,924,195)

18,479,187

(683,172,878)
(52,394,039)
(41,927,060)
(41,523,405)
(35,868,473)
(35,732,505)
(9,555,856)
(1,527,488)
(1,325,284)

(903,026,988)

a) Net sales

Domestic sales
International sales
Other income
Sales returns (-)
Sales discounts (-)

b) Income/expense from financial activities

Financial lease revenue
Financial leasing income (*)
Cost of financial leasing (-)

c) Cost of sales

Raw material
General production expenses
Cost of goods sold
Direct labour expense
Amortization
The change in the trade goods and finished goods
The change in the semi-finished goods
Cost of service sold
Other

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
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NOTE 23 - MARKETING EXPENSES. GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES AND RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT NOTE 23 - MARKETING EXPENSES. GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES AND RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 
EXPENSES (Continued)

a) Marketing, sales and distribution expenses

(87,051,221)
(39,891,342)
(2,572,269)

(129,514,832)

(18,505,145)
(15,894,090)
(14,189,246)
(8,847,096)
(7,142,985)
(5,441,263)
(4,961,292)
(4,195,180)
(1,742,962)

(847,996)
(827,375)
(139,048)

(4,317,543)

(87,051,221)

(51.112.988)
(35.863.427)

(2.150.105)

(89.126.520)

-
(7,884,735)
(7,979,504)
(7,464,262)
(9,593,070)
(3,264,347)
(2,847,624)

(757,909)
(1,258,476)

(660,439)
(1,117,226)
(653,797)

(7,631,599)

(51.112.988)

Marketing, sales and distribution expenses
General administrative expenses
Research and development expenses

Kocaeli Municipality bus repair and maintenance expenses
İETT Bus repair and maintenance expenses
Konya Municipality bus repair and maintenance expenses
Personnel expenses
Guarantee expenses
Advertising expenses
Transportation and insurance expenses
Sales research and development expenses
Subcontract work expenses
Amortization expenses
Rental expenses
Dealer and authorised service meeting expenses
Other

b) General administrative expenses

(16,610,441)
(6,226,530)
(4,428,150)
(2,247,559)
(2,046,183)
(1,101,333)
(982,323)
(877,432)
(689,383)
(414,851)
(211,319)
(198,205)

(3,857,633)

(39,891,342)

(13,882,917)
(4,373,769)
(3,706,452)
(2,018,255)
(2,779,695)
(1,129,322)
(679,889)
(916,039)
(505,761)
(470,247)
(693,082)

(2,290,671)
(2,417,328)

(35,863,427)

Personnel expenses
Subcontract work expenses
Consultancy expenses
Amortization expenses
Holding services expenses
Rental expenses
Travel expenses
Subscription and dues expenses
Tax and penalty expenses
Energy Expenses
Insurance expenses
Legal and consultancy expenses
Other

c) Research and development expenses
January 1 - December 31, 2015 January 1 - December 31, 2014

(1,849,208)
(305,583)
(197,694)
(124,244)

(95,540)

(2,572,269)

(1,598,297)
(139,353)
(234,856)

(50,983)
(126,616)

(2,150,105)

Personnel expenses
Material expenses
Services and benefits rendered by 3rd parties
Amortization expenses
Other

NOTE 24 - EXPENSES BY NATURE

(210,361,634)
(32,220,586)
(18,706,162)
(19,196,156)

(31,328,390)
(7,658,839)

(22,945,476)
-

(7,884,735)
(7,979,504)

(18,535,357)
(5,632,245)
(9,593,070)
(3,264,347)
(3,540,706)
(3,706,452)

(757,909)
(2,779,695)

(2,246,548)
(2,148,664)

(17,869,682)

(413,038,479)

(683,172,878)
(52,394,039)
(41,927,060)
(41,523,405)
(39,088,272)
(35,732,505)
(27,306,745)
(18,505,145)
(15,894,090)
(14,189,246)
(9,555,856)
(7,969,492)
(7,142,985)
(5,441,263)
(5,172,611)

(4,428,150)
(4,195,180)
(2,046,183)
(1,928,708)
(1,527,488)

(13,400,519)

(1,032,541.820)

Raw materials
General production expenses
Cost of goods sold
Direct labour
Amortization
Changes in trade and finished good stocks
Personnel expenses
Kocaeli Municipality bus repair and maintenance expenses
İETT Bus repair and maintenance expenses
Konya Municipality bus repair and maintenance expenses
Changes in semi-finished good stocks
Subcontract work expenses
Guarantee expenses
Advertising expenses
Transportation and insurance expenses
Consultancy expenses
Sales research and development expenses
Holding services expenses
Rental expenses 
Cost of services sold
Other

January 1 - December 31, 2015 January 1 - December 31, 2014

January 1 - December 31, 2015 January 1 - December 31, 2014
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NOTE 27 - OTHER INCOME/ (EXPENSES) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NOTE 28 - TAXATION ON INCOME (INCLUDING DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES)

Tax income for the period ended on December 31, 2015 is detailed as follows:

Deferred tax:
The Group recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon temporary differences arising between its consolidated financial 
statements prepared in compliance with CMB Financial Reporting Standards and its statutory tax consolidated financial statements. 
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are calculated in rate of 20% for the current period under the method of liability over 
temporary differences (December 31, 2014: 20%).

NOTE 25 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME/ (EXPENSES)

127,760,999
10,503,461
2,630,320
11,418,501

152,313,281

(103,757,306)
(16,012,524)

(55,525)
(977,441)

(120,802,796)

68,690,188
8,432,681
1,814,052
2,563,223

81,500,144

(75,726,363)
(6,301,927)

(67,012)
(1,482,223)

(83,577,525)

Other operating income

Translation gain on trade receivables and payables
Interest income on trade receivables and payables
Social security institution premium discount
Other

Other operating expense

Translation loss on trade receivables and payables
Interest expense on trade receivables and payables
Provision expenses (Note 10)
Other

NOTE 26 - FINANCIAL EXPENSES

(91,383,287)
(45,432,480)

(2,178,644)
(2,528,051)

(141,522,462)

(47,268,219)
6,045,101

(1,321,727)
(3.589,220)

(46,134,065)

Financial expenses

Interest expense
Translation gains/(losses)
Factoring expenses
Other

Total financial expenses - net

-
3,343,134

-

3,343,134

-
-

(8,520,384)
-

(2,672,074)

(11,192,458)

(628,298)
11,424,920

10,796,622

4,087,860
1,767,454

640,197

6,495,511

(9,546,804)
(3,190,575)
(2,438,673)

(709,757)
-

(15,885,809)

(689,217)
37,934,105

37,244,888

Income from investing activities

Premiums received from derivative instruments
Time deposit interest income
Profit on sales of fixed assets

Expenses from investing activities

Change in fair value of derivative instruments
Impairment of assets that are classified as held for sale
Losses on sales of fixed assets
Fixed asset impairment
Other

Current period corporate tax expense
Deferred income tax charge

January 1 - December 31, 2015 January 1 - December 31, 2015

January 1 - December 31, 2015

January 1 - December 31, 2015

January 1 - December 31, 2014 January 1 - December 31, 2014

January 1 - December 31, 2014

January 1 - December 31, 2014
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NOTE 28 - TAXATION ON INCOME (INCLUDING DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES) (Continued) 

The expiration dates of unused accumulated losses over which deferred tax assets calculated are as follows:

The expiration dates of unused accumulated losses, over which deferred tax income are not calculated, are as follows:

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets is as follows:

NOTE 28 - TAXATION ON INCOME (INCLUDING DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES) (Continued)

 Temporary differences subject to deferred income tax and the effect of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 
2015 and 2014 are summarised below using the above tax rate applied:

TL 52,915,718 net of deferred tax assets is anticipated to be short term (December 31, 2014: TL 26,034,758).

The Group has accumulated tax losses amounting to TL 330,781,214 as of December 31, 2015 (December 31, 2014: TL 
280,093,205), The Group management has accounted for TL 56,663,374 (December 31, 2014:84,847,461 TL) of deferred tax 
asset for accumulated tax losses amounting to TL 274,117,840 (December 31, 2014: TL 195,245,744) in the accompanying 
financial statements after accounting for a provision for carry forward tax losses amounting to TL 54,823,568 (December 31, 
2014: TL 39,049,149) which the Group will not be able to utilise according to the five year projections.

2015 2014
19,567,636

58,642,708
117,035,400

-

195,245,744

-
58,642,707

115,242,066
100,233,067

274,117,840

Expires in 2016
Expires in 2017
Expires in 2019
Expires in 2020

2015

2015

2014

2014

47,708,498
7,921,026
1,868,107

15,194,304
12,155,526

84,847,461

19,003,402
1,236,130
399,808

-
11,424,920

32,064,260

-
27,488,662

1,868,107
15,194,304
12,112,301

56,663,374

32,064,260
(9,962,691)

994,883
739,090

37,934,105

61,769,647

Expires in 2015
Expires in 2016
Expires in 2017
Expires in 2018
Expires in 2019

January 1
Recognized in equity - revaluation fund (Note 15)
Recognized in equity - tax effect of actuarial loss (Note 21)
Recognized in equity - tax effect of hedging losses 
Current period deferred tax income

December 31

Total temporary differences Deferred income tax /
  assets/(liabilities)

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2014December 31, 2015
39,049,149

2,061,859
8,469,747
2,570,454

-
-

514,771
1,093,482

411,915
618,721

482,687

55,272,785

(21,745,253)

(1,463,272)

(23,208,525) 

32,064,260

280,093,205
58,180,025
42,348,735
12,852,272

-
-

2,573,853
5,467,407
2,059,571
3,093,606
2,413,435

(111,077,310)

(7,316,360)

54,823,568
16,628,284
12,930,055
3,940,169
2,648,451
2,251,689

820,031
802,577
543,996
341,995
740,599

96,471,414

(31,170,573)

(3,531,194)

(34,701,767)

61,769,647

330,781,214
110,855,227
64,650,277
19,700,845
13,242,253
59,127,332

4,100,153
4,012,887
2,719,980
1,709,975
3,702,991

(236,748,556)

(17,655,972)

Carry forward tax losses
Investment incentives
Provision for maintenance and repair expenses
Provision for employment termination benefits
Derivative instruments
Other incentives
Unearned credit finance income, expense (net)
Provision for guarantee expenses
Provision for unused vacation
Provision for sales discounts
Other

Deferred income tax asset

Differences between inflation adjustment and 
amortizationof tangible and intangible assets
Financial income/expense not accrued (net)

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets - net
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NOTE 29 - PROFIT / (LOSS) PER SHARE 

A summary of the weighted average number of shares outstanding for the year ended in December 31, 2015 and 2014 and 
the basic earnings per share calculation is as follows:

NOTE 30 - CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management

The Group’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks; these risks are market risk including the effects of changes 
in debt and equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates, fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk, 
credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group.

Financial risk management is carried out by individual subsidiaries under policies, which are approved by their Board of 
Directors within the limits of general principles set by the Group.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while generating the return to 
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and the equity balance.

The management of the Group evaluates the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. As a part 
of this evaluation, the management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital and 
present the evaluations subject to the decision of the Board of Directors to the Board of Directors. Based on the evaluations of 
the management and the Board of Directors, the Group aims to balance its overall capital structure through the payment of 
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The Group controls its capital using total liabilities/total capital ratio. This ratio is the calculated as net debt divided by the 
total capital amount. Net debt is calculated as total liability amount (comprises of financial liabilities as presented in the 
balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity plus the net debt amount as presented 
in the balance sheet.

NOTE 28 - TAXATION ON INCOME (INCLUDING DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES) (Continued) 

The reconciliation of the taxation on income in the consolidated statement of income for the periods ended December 31, 
2015 and 2014 and the taxation on income calculated with the current tax rate over income from continuing operations 
before tax is as follows:

(110,815,240)
22,163,048
(9,287,821)

2,935,862
(2,583,362)

-
(2,431,105)

10,796,622

(107,393,867)
21,478,773
(4,217,380)

3,625,964
(270,753)

16,628,284
-

37,244,888

Loss before income taxes and non-controlling interests
Current period tax income calculated by effective tax rate of 20%
Effects of carry forward tax losses over which deferred tax asset 
is not recognised
Disallowable revenue
Disallowable expenses
Deferred tax effect calculated on investment allowance
The effect of accumulated losses which no deferred tax assets recognised

Tax income of the current period

2015 2014
46,000,000.000

(85,381,287)

(0,0019)

46,000,000.000

(62,595,705)

(0,0014)

Weighted average number of outstanding shares

Net profit / (loss) for the period (TL)

Net profit / (loss) per share (TL)

Corporations are required to pay provisional corporation tax quarterly at the rate of 20% on their corporate income and 
declare by the 14th of the second month following the quarter. (December 31, 2014: 20%). Advance tax is payable by the 17th 
of the second month following each calendar quarter end. Advance tax paid by corporations is credited against the annual 
corporation tax liability. The balance of the advance tax paid may be refunded or used to set off against other liabilities to the 
government.

Losses are allowed to be carried a maximum of five years to be deducted from the taxable profit of the following years. Tax 
carry back is not allowed.

Corporate tax

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2014

(628,298)
478,139

(150,159)

(689,217)
543,819

(145,398)

Corporate taxes payable
Prepaid taxes

Total taxes
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NOTE 30 - CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk management (Continued) 

Credit risk exposure by financial instrument types

(*) Items that increase the credit reliability, such as; letter of guarantees received, are not taken into account in the calculation.

NOTE 30 - CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Capital risk management (Continued)

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. 
A significant part of the trade receivables are comprised of due from dealers. The Group monitors the credit risk arising from 
the transactions with dealers via the control system. The Direct Debiting System (“DDS”) is applied for receivables related to 
the domestic vehicle sales to the dealers. Accordingly, receivables within the predetermined limits agreed with the banks are 
risk free and collected on due dates. DDS used in the collection of receivables of the dealers is an effective method to reduce 
credit risk. 

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
901,843,489
(17,778,999)

884,064,490

232,844,327

1,116,908.817

79%

1,427,935.580
(24,464,535)

1,403,471,045

241,868,691

1,645,339.736

85%

Total liabilities
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6)

Net liability

Total equity

Total capital

Net debt/Total capital ratio

14,788,148

-

4,448,317

-

10,339,831
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

Maximum credit risk exposed as of reporting date (*) (A+B+C+D+E) 

-  The part of maximum risk under guarantee by collateral etc.

A.  Net book value of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

B. Net book value of financial assets that are renegotiated, if not that will be
 recognized as past due or impaired

C.  Net book value of financial assets that are past due but not impaired
  The part under guarantee by collateral etc.
 
D.  Net book value of the assets impaired
    - Overdue (gross carrying amount)
    - Impairment (-)
    - The part of net value under guarantee by collateral etc.
    - Not overdue (gross carrying amount)
    - Impairment (-)
    - The part of net value under guarantee by collateral etc.
 
E.  Off balance sheet items with credit risk

-

-

-

-

-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

492,506,784 

37,557,176

464,908,126

-

27,598,658
4,675,446

-
2,083,182

(2,083,182)
-
-
-
-

133,888,494

-

132,129,736

-

1,758,758
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

24,460,028

-

24,460,028

-

-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-

-

-

-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-

-

-

-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

Related
party

Related
party

Third
party

Third
party

Bank 
deposits

Derivatives Other  

Trade receivables Other receivables
Receivables

December 31, 2015
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NOTE 30 - CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk management (Continued) 

Credit risk exposure by financial instrument types

NOTE 30 - CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk management (Continued) 

Aging analysis for overdue receivables is as follows:

Liquidity risk management
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by 
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities. 

Cash flows of financial liabilities as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 according to maturity dates of contracts are as follows:

(*) Items that increase the credit reliability, such as; letter of guarantees received, are not taken into account in the calculation.

10,974,960

-

4,607,289

-

6,367,671
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

Maximum credit risk exposed as of reporting date (*) (A+B+C+D+E) 

-  The part of maximum risk under guarantee by collateral etc.

A.  Net book value of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

B. Net book value of financial assets that are renegotiated, if not that will be
 recognized as past due or impaired

C.  Net book value of financial assets that are past due but not impaired
  The part under guarantee by collateral etc.
 
D.  Net book value of the assets impaired
    - Overdue (gross carrying amount)
    - Impairment (-)
    - The part of net value under guarantee by collateral etc.
    - Not overdue (gross carrying amount)
    - Impairment (-)
    - The part of net value under guarantee by collateral etc.
 
E.  Off balance sheet items with credit risk

-

-

-

-

-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

276,612,878

5,207,352

232,937,246

-

43,675,632
5,207,352

-
2,060,000

(2,060,000)
-
-
-
-

1,079,455

-

1,079,455

-

-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

17,765,957

-

17,765,957

-

-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-

-

-

-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-

-

-

-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

December 31, 2014

Maturities for contract terms

Agreed total
  cash 

outflows
(I+II+III+IV)

Net book 
value

Less than 
3 months 

(I)

3-12 
months

(II)

1-5 
years

(III)

More than 
5 years

(IV)

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bank loans
Finance lease liabilities
Factoring payables
Trade payables
Payables to related parties
Liabilities related to bonds issued

Derivative instruments
Derivative liabilities

Total liabilities

743,280,383
101,648,017
13,936,980

168,266,938
46,715,694

368,423,125

13,242,253

1,455,513.390

686,443,211
83,947,591
13,936,980

168,141,341
46,715,694

307,647,278

13,242,253

1,320,074.348

81,233,406
5,780,545

-
168,266,938

46,715,694
11,200,231

71,653

313,268,467

99,700,695
17,541,356
13,936,980

-
-

126.266,938

1,159,844

258,605,813

562,346,282
78,326,116

-
-
-

230,955,956

12,010,756

883,639,110

-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
9,404,255

17,326,184
7,735,220

15,577,644

50,043,303

5,207,352

12,994,268
4,924,649
2,611,158

17,408,414

37,938,489

4,675,446

1-30 days overdue
1-3 months overdue
3-12 months overdue
1-5 years overdue

Total overdue receivables

The part under guarantee by collateral

Related
party

Related
party

Third
party

Third
party

Bank 
deposits

Derivatives Other  

Trade receivables Other receivables
Receivables
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NOTE 30 - CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Liquidity risk management (Continued) 

Market risk management

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates. 

At a Group level market risk exposures are measured by sensitivity analysis

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or the manner which it manages and measures the risk 
compared to prior year.  

Foreign currency risk management

Transactions involving foreign currency balances expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The foreign currency denominated 
assets and liabilities of monetary and non-monetary items are as follows.

The table below summarized foreign currency position of the Group as of December 31, 2015 and 2014:

NOTE 30 - CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

Maturities for contract terms

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bank loans
Finance lease liabilities
Trade payables
Payables to related parties
Liabilities related to bonds issued

Total liabilities

439,975,439
104,838,921
59,826,610
8,363,799

364,555,520

977,560,289

391,034,231
82,648,216
59,645,315
8,363,796

285,010,215

826,701,773

26,739,110
3,205,209

59,826,610
8,363,799
8,623,260

106,757,988

101,972,510
13,055,189

-
-

26,172,616

141,200,315

302,903,399
69,777,745

-
-

329,759,644

702,440,788

8,360,420
18,800,778

-
-
-

27,161,198

December 31, 2014
TL Equivalent

(Functional
currency) USD EUR CHF CNY

1.
2a.  
2b.  
3.  
4. 
5. 

6a. 
6b. 

7. 
8. 
9. 

10. 
11. 

12a. 
12b. 
13. 
14. 
15. 

16a. 
16b. 

17. 
18. 
19. 

19a 
19b. 
20. 
21. 

22. 
23. 
24. 
25. 
26.

Trade Receivables
Monetary Financial Assets
Non-monetary Financial Assets
Other
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade Receivables
Monetary Financial Assets
Non-monetary Financial Assets
Other
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS
Trade Payables
Financial Liabilities
Other monetary liabilities
Other non-monetary liabilities
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables
Financial liabilities
Other monetary liabilities
Other non-monetary liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
Net Asset / (Liability) Position of the Off- Balance-Sheet Foreign Currency 
Derivatives (19a-19b)
Off-balance sheet foreign currency derivative assets
Off-balance sheet foreign currency derivative liabilities
Net Foreign currency asset / (liability) Position
Net Foreign currency asset / (liability) Position of the Monetary Items
(1+2a+5+6a-10-11-12a-14-15-16a)
Fair value of foreign currency hedged financial assets
Hedged foreign currency assets
Hedged foreign currency liabilities
Exports
Imports

153,759,404
16,339,698

-
23,037,800

193,136,902
370,685,159

-
-

561,943
371,247,102

564,384,004
113,860,019
101,919,016

1,258
-

215,780,293
-

409,764,183
-
-

409,764,183
625,544,476

-
-
-
-

(61,160,474)
(84,760,215)

(3,695,449)
102,186,532

-
293,659,662
368,220,392

15,906
1,900

-
134,299
152,105

-
-
-

77,544
77,544

229,649
2,784,510
5,985,632

-
-

8,770,142
-

909,781
-
-

909,781
9,679,923

-
-
-
-

(9,450,274)
(9,662,117)

-
-
-

1,287
3,109,180

48,373,979
5,140,412

-
7,126,827

60,641,218
116,655,702

-
-

105,890
116,761,592
177,402,810
33,141,238
26,597,178

396
-

59,738,812
-

128,121,508
-
-

128,121,508
187,860,320

-
-
-
-

(10,457,510)
(17,690,227)

(1,270,962)
32,158,400

-
67,232,841

115,565,642

-
-
-

378
378

-
-
-
-
-

378
133,750

-
-
-

133,750
-
-
-
-
-

133,750
-
-
-
-

(133,372)
(133,750)

-
-
-
-

91,677

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

140,503
-
-
-

140,503
-
-
-
-
-

140,503
-
-
-
-

(140,503)

(140,503)
-
-
-
-
-

December 31, 2015
Agreed total

  cash 
outflows
(I+II+III+IV)

Net book 
value

Less than 
3 months 

(I)

3-12 
months

(II)

1-5 
years

(III)

More than 
5 years

(IV)
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NOTE 30 - CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

NOTE 30 - CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

As of December 31, 2015, foreign currency dominated assets and liability balances were converted with the following exchange 
rates: 2.9076 TL = 1 USD, 3.1776TL = 1 EUR, 0.44545 TL = 1 CNY and 2.9278 TL = 1 CHF (December 31, 2014: 2.3189 TL = 1 USD, 
2.8207 TL = 1 EUR, 3.5961 TL = 1 GBP and 2.3397 TL = 1 CHF).

Foreign currency sensitivity

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in EUR and USD hence exposures to exchange rates arise. 

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in TL against EUR, USD, CHF and CNY 10% 
is used in. the reporting of currency risk to the key management and it represents the management’s expectation on the 
potential exchange currency fluctuations. Sensitivity analysis related to the foreign currency exposure risk of the Group is 
determined according to the change at the beginning of the fiscal year and is kept stable throughout the reporting period. 
Negative value represents the effect of the 10% increase in value of EUR, USD, CHF and CNY against TL on the income statement.

1.
2a.  
2b.  
3.  
4. 
5. 

6a. 
6b. 

7. 
8. 
9. 

10. 
11. 

12a. 
12b. 
13. 
14. 
15. 

16a. 
16b. 

17. 
18. 
19. 

19a 
19b. 
20. 
21. 

22. 
23. 
24. 
25. 
26.

Trade Receivables
Monetary Financial Assets
Non-monetary Financial Assets
Other
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade Receivables
Monetary Financial Assets
Non-monetary Financial Assets
Other
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS
Trade Payables
Financial Liabilities
Other monetary liabilities
Other non-monetary liabilities
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables
Financial liabilities
Other monetary liabilities
Other non-monetary liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
Net Asset / (Liability) Position of the Off- Balance-Sheet Foreign Currency 
Derivatives (19a-19b)
Off-balance sheet foreign currency derivative assets
Off-balance sheet foreign currency derivative liabilities
Net Foreign currency asset / (liability) Position
Net Foreign currency asset / (liability) Position of the Monetary Items
(1+2a+5+6a-10-11-12a-14-15-16a)
Fair value of foreign currency hedged financial assets
Hedged foreign currency assets
Hedged foreign currency liabilities
Exports
Imports

TL Equivalent
(Functional

currency) USD EUR CHF

87,228,459
3,399,939

-
11,413,621

102,042,019
119,017,513

-
-

11,631,297
130,648,810
232,690,829

17,108,066
56,985,485

1,117
-

74,094,668
-

210,643,845
-
-

210,643,845
284,738,513

-

-
-

(52,047,684)
(75,092,602)

-
-
-

72,325,505
80,297,362

14,619
1,900

-
365,467
381,986

-
-
-
-
-

381,986
1,527,711

10,967
-
-

1,538,678
-

6,705,482
-
-

6,705,482
8,244,160

-

-
-

(7,862,174)
(8,227,641)

-
-
-
-

889,883

30,912,383
1,203,791

-
3,745,928

35,862,102
42,194,318

-
-

4,123,550
46,317,868
82,179,970
4,809,252

20,193,588
396

-
25,003,236

-
69,165,279

-
-

69,165,279
94,168,515

-

-
-

(11,988,545)
(19,858,023)

-
-
-

24,858,892
27,058,748

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

3,210
64,271

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
72,325,505
80,297,362

0%

293,659,662
368,220,392

0%

Total Export
Total Import
Total Hedging Ratio of Foreign Currency Denominated Liability
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NOTE 30 - CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity (Continued)

NOTE 30 - CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Interest-rate risk management

Financial liabilities based on fixed and floating interest rates expose the Group to interest rate risk. 

Interest rates on financial liabilities to which the Group is exposed to are detailed at Note 8. 

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the balance sheet date and 
the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period. 
A 0.5% basis point increase or decrease on Euribor is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management 
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the possible change in interest rates.

If interest rate of government bond had been 0.5% higher and all other variables were held constant:

Loss for the period ended January 1 – December 31, 2015 would increase by 1,500,000 TL (January 1 - December 31, 2014 
250,511 TL). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings. If Euribor had 
been 0.5% lower, the loss of the Group for period ended will decrease by the same amount.

The Group’s interest rate sensitive financial instruments are as follows:

December 31, 2014
Profit/loss appreciation of

foreign currency
Profit/loss depreciation of

foreign currency

(1,823,160)
-

(1,823,160)

(3,381,609)
-

(3,381,609)

(5,204,769)

1,823,160
-

1,823,160

3,381,609
-

3,381,609

5,204,769

10% change in USD against TL: 
1- USD net asset/liability
2- The part hedged from the USD risk (-)
3- USD Net Effect (1+2) 
10% change in EUR against TL: 
4- EUR net asset/liability
5- The part hedged from the EUR risk (-)
6- EUR Net Effect (4+5) 
Total (3+6) 

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015

Financial instruments with fixed interest rates

Financial instruments with floating interest rates

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2014

13,614,727
473,682,447

285,010,215

5,002,460
784,327,782

307,647,278

Time deposits 
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities

December 31, 2015
Profit/loss appreciation of

foreign currency
Profit/loss depreciation of

foreign currency

(2,747,762)
-

(2,747,762)

(3,322,978)
(10,218,653)
(13,541,631)

(6,259)
-

(6,259)

(41,679)
-

(41,679)

(16,337,331)

2,747,762
-

2,747,762

3,322,978
10,218,653
13,541,631

6,259
-

6,259

41,679
-

41,679

16,337,331

10% change in USD against TL: 
1- USD net asset/liability
2- The part hedged from the USD risk (-)
3- USD net effect (1+2) 
10% change in EUR against TL: 
4- EUR net asset/liability
5- The part hedged from the EUR risk (-)
6- EUR net effect (4+5)

10% change in CNY against TL: 
7- CNY net asset/liability
8- The part hedged from the CNY risk (-)
9- CNY net effect (7+8)

10 % change in CHF against TL:
10- CHF net asset/liability
11- The part hedged from the CHF risk (-)
12- CHF Net Effect (10+11)

Total (3+6+9+12)



174 175

Karsan Annual Report 2015

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1 - DECEMBER 31, 2015
(Amounts expressed in Turkish lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

NOTE 31 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value of financial instruments 

The Group classifies financial instruments reflected at fair value on financial statements due to resource of valuation inputs 
for each financial instrument class by using three level hierarchy as follow described:.

Level 1: Valuation techniques that utilized actively trading market prices for financial instruments.
Level 2: Other valuation techniques that reflect directly or indirectly observable inputs.
Level 3: Valuation techniques that do not contain any observable market inputs. 

Fair value of financial instruments
The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Group using available market information 
and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, judgment is necessarily required to interpret market data to estimate the 
fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Group could realise 
in a current market exchange.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of the financial instruments for which it is 
practicable to estimate fair value:

Monetary assets
The fair values of certain financial assets carried at cost, including cash and amounts due from banks are considered to 
approximate their respective carrying values due to their short-term nature.

The carrying values of trade receivables are estimated to be their fair values.

NOTE 31 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) 
Fair value of financial assets held to maturity determines with market prices or in case of the price is not calculated with basis 
on market prices of securities quoted for similar qualified in interest, maturity and other conditions.

Fair value of given advances and loans to customers is calculated by determining cash flows discounted with current market 
interest rate. Carrying value of variable interest rate loans approximately assumed as fair value.

Financial Liabilities
The fair values of short-term bank loans and trade payables are considered to approximate their book values due to their 
short-term nature. Fair value of long-term financial liabilities is calculated by determining cash flows discounted with current 
market interest rate.

In addition to financial assets, details of other assets measured at fair value are as follows:

Level 3Level 1
December 31, 2015
Financial assets

Other Assets (Level 2)

Total

December 31, 2014

Level 2

December 31, 2015

3,695,449

9,546,804

13,242,253

136,395,765

136,395,765

3,695,449

9,546,804

13,242,253

246,486,970

246,486,970

-

-

-

-

-

-

Derivative instruments for hedging purposes.
- Foreign currency trading contracts (Forward)
Derivative financial instruments not for hedging purposes
- Sale and purchase options

Tangible fixed assets carried by revaluation model

Financial assets 
at amortised 

cost

Financial 
liabilities at 
amortised 

cost

Available for 
sale financial 

assets

Receivables Carrying 
value

Fair value Note

Financial assets 
at amortised 

cost

Financial 
liabilities at 
amortised 

cost

Available for 
sale financial 

assets

Receivables Carrying 
value

Fair value Note

24,462,074
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

17,764,272
-
-

-
-
-
-

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Finance lease receivables
Trade receivables
Other financial assets

Financial liabilities
Short-term financial liabilities
Long-term financial liabilities
Derivative instruments
Trade payables
Payables to related parties

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Other financial assets

Financial liabilities
Short-term financial liabilities
Long-term financial liabilities
Trade payables
Payables to related parties

-
-
-

2,114

-
-
-
-
-

-
-

265,634

-
-
-
-

-
132,129,736
507,294,932

-

-
-
-
-
-

-
287,587,838

-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

282,837,170
809,137,890

-
168,141,341
46,715,694

-
-
-

116,653,866
642,038,796

59,645,315
8,363,796

24,464,535
132,129,736
507,294,932

2,114

282,837,170
809,137,890
13,242,253
168,141,341
46,715,694

17,778,999
287,587,838

265,634

116,653,866
642,038,796

59,645,315
8,363,796

24,464,535
132,129,736
507,294,932

2,114

282,837,170
809,137,890
13,242,253
168,141,341
46,715,694

17,778,999
287,587,838

265,634

116,653,866
642,038,796

59,645,315
8,363,796

6
11
10
7

8
8
9

10
5

6
10
7

8
8

10
5

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014
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(Amounts expressed in Turkish lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

NOTE 32 - OTHER ISSUES THAT SIGNIFICANTLY AFFECT THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OR OTHER ISSUES REQUIRED 
FOR THE CLEAR UNDERSTANDING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1) Signed with company’s business partner, Hyundai Motor Company (HMC), on November 27, 2012 and developed newly by 
HMC with maximum laden weight of the panel van between 3- 6 tons, the mass production of H350 model with light trucks 
and van version, under the terms of the agreement of production over 200,000 units during 7 years and the completion of 
necessary industrial investments and trial production phases, is announced to Public Disclosure Platform on April 3, 2015. 
Due to postponement of start of mass production date to April 2015 from 2015 year beginning (mentioned in the main 
contract), term of contract has been extended from 7 years to 8 years as a result of mutual negotiations held between parties 
without considering any change in total production units.

2) In relation to the tender of “200 CNG-Fueled Solo Bus” tender held by Kocaeli Metropoliton Municipality for the delivery of 
the buses, the contract has been signed in April and deliveries of the buses have been completed on December 31, 2015. 
Calculated over the contracted amount of EUR 31.84 million intended for the tender, 24 months of valid taxes, levies and 
charges for exemption certificates have been charged. The period of validity of the document has been extended until the 
date of December 4, 2020.

3) In relation to the tender of “120 units of natural gas solo-type buses” tender held by Konya Metropoliton Municipality on 
May 5, 2015, the contract has been signed in June and deliveries of the buses have been completed on December 31, 2015. 
Calculated over the contracted amount of EUR 26.02 million intended for the tender, 6 months of valid taxes, levies and 
charges for exemption certificates have been charged. The period of validity of the document has been extended until the 
date of January 2, 2021.

4) In relation to platform production and supply to be used in tractor production, the contract has been signed with Türk Traktör 
and Ziraat Makineleri A.Ş. for minimum duration of five years. In accordance with the contract signed by both parties, it is 
planned to produce approximately 15.000 units of platforms.

5) Classifying in the balance sheet as a value of TL 19,621,544 for sales of J10 production line or enabling the overseas 
production through the use of J-10 production line, the Group continues negotiations with Wuhan Zhong Yuan Bang Tai 
Investment Holding Co. Ltd. in terms of using the related production line. Since the stipulated time of the ongoing work does 
not progress according to plan, new strategic partnerships have started to be explored and evaluated alternatively.

NOTE 33 - EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

1) Gaining the preliminary qualification in new generation delivery vehicle procurement process for the U.S. Postal Service, the 
company is entitled to be taken to the vendors list for the purpose of prototype development and the contracting authority has 
sent call for tender and final agreement to the company. In February 2016, the company has presented an offer cooperating 
with Heksagon Mühendislik ve Tasarım A.Ş. and Karsan USA LLC for the tender comprising of “Request for Proposal (RFP) 
Production” as a result of acceptance of proposal offered for “Request for Proposal (RFP) Prototype Development”

2) The company has participated in “410 units 12 Metres EUR 6 diesel solo-type bus” tender of IETT (Istanbul Electric Tramway 
and Tunnel Management of Establishments) dated as March 3, 2016 in order to place the proposal. It was learnt that the best 
proposal has been given by the Group. There is not yet any written notification made by the competent authority about the 
results of the auction.

3) It has been decided to ensure the participation in MaaS Finland Oy Company headquartered in Helsinki, Finland by cash 
investment of EUR 200,005 for the issuance of shares amounting to EUR 315,000.





We look forward with pride.

Head Office and Factory
Hasanağa Organize Sanayi Bölgesi (HOSAB), 

Sanayi Cad. 16225 Nilüfer/Bursa
Tel: +90 224 484 21 70 (25 lines) / +90 224 280 30 00

Fax: +90 224 484 21 69

Organized Industrial Zone Factory
Organize Sanayi Bölgesi Mavi Cad. No: 13 

16159 Nilüfer/Bursa
Tel: +90 224 243 33 10 (4 lines)

Fax: +90 224 243 74 50

İstanbul Office
Emek Mah. Ordu Cad. No: 10 

34785 Sarıgazi, Sancaktepe/İstanbul
Tel: +90 216 499 65 50
Fax: +90 216 499 65 53

www.karsan.com.tr
karsan@ karsan.com.tr

facebook.com/KarsanOtomotiv
twitter.com/KarsanOtomotiv

Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. is an affiliate 
of the Kıraça Group of Companies.


